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The year 2010 started to look brighter
towards year end. The recession eased up,
our strategy was realigned, and the number
of our co-op members increased to 1.9 million.

Recession a thing
of the past in S Group
I

n 2010, the atmosphere surrounding the Finnish
economy was extremely two-sided. Whereas the
beginning of the year was characterised by deep recession, the situation cleared up significantly by the middle
of the year.
Changes in the economy were also seen in S Group,
although our strength lies in grocery sales which withstand economic fluctuations quite well. The situation
was the most difficult in the agricultural trade, which
is still experiencing the global disturbance in business
operations, and the market in Finland is not growing.
In the automotive trade, we are again on solid
ground. Sales started to pick up gradually in the spring,
and the positive development continued towards the
end of the year. In the tourism and hospitality business,
recession also ended in the summer of 2010.
The reduction of the value added tax on restaurant
food and the favourable summer in terms of tourism in
Finland gave the business a welcome boost.
Consumer goods trade suffered from recession during the first months of the year, but the rest of the year,
including the Christmas sales, was positive for S Group.
As the economy recovered, construction, renovation and
interior decoration picked up as well.
I took up the role of CEO in April 2010. The timing
was favourable, since I could immediately participate in
S Group’s strategy reform and have an impact on our
key strategic choices. I believe that our new strategy
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enables us to navigate safely through the last waves of
recession.
I would like to emphasize two basic principles in our
new strategy which I believe will carry us forward for a
long time. Firstly, customer-orientation will be increasingly highlighted as the starting point in all our operations. Secondly, we will emphasize our unique cooperative form of business even more clearly. For us, the core
of our strategy is responsible operations everywhere
where we do business. That enables us to obtain the
approval of our co-op members for our vision: to offer
the most sought after and extensive services available at
the co-op member’s own store.
The new strategy requires changes in the organisation. Organisational changes were released last autumn
and implemented at the turn of the year, based on the
renewal of our service model which had been launched
earlier. By developing the new organisation further, we
will intensify the common service production in our
group.
It is equally important to develop our current business areas to address new challenges. A good example of
this is the consumer goods trade development project
which has been going on for a couple of years. Within
the framework of this project, an enormous logistics
centre with the most low-carbon heating and cooling
systems in the Nordic countries has been built, the
Kodin Terra chain with near-nationwide coverage has

been established, and an online store for beauty,
operating under the Sokos brand, has been launched.
The foundation of S Group’s operations is solid and,
for that, I would like to express my thanks to every
employee of our group. In particular, I would like to
thank my predecessor, Arto Hiltunen. The changes
underway now continue and complement the work carried out under his leadership. I also want to express my
thanks to Antti Sippola for taking responsibility in the
transition phase; his support gave me a good start in my
work with SOK.
However, the group that deserves the greatest thanks
is our cooperative enterprise co-op members, totalling
1.9 million, who trust our services. We will do our best
to continue to earn their trust, because trust is the only
thing that will allow our independent cooperative of
people to develop in the years to come. We have good
tools in our hands for building a successful future.

Helsinki, 17 February 2011

Kuisma Niemelä
Chief Executive Officer, SOK
SOK CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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Grocery trade
changes as
customers change
S Group’s grocery trade does not
rest on its laurels despite being
the market leader in grocery sales
in Finland. The store network is
being upgraded and operations
are continuously developed to meet
the changing needs of co-op members.

S

Group’s grocery trade lives and changes with the
rhythm of the changes in the operating environment and in customers’ everyday lives. Special attention
is now being paid to environmental friendliness, properly targeted selections and increasingly smooth service
provision as existing units are renewed and completely
new stores are established.
Extensive investments in the development of the store
network have been going on for several years. Currently,
S Group’s grocery stores can be found in the areas of
every cooperative enterprise.
In 2010, the number of stores increased by 10 new
Alepa and Sale neighbourhood stores, 13 new S-markets
and five Prisma hypermarkets in Finland.
Although the network is already fairly extensive,
upgrading the stores and keeping them up-to-date
requires continuous work. In addition, in big cities
there is a constant need to expand the store network
since migration from sparsely populated areas to larger
residential centres continues.Group’s grocery trade lives
and changes with the rhythm of the changes in the
operating environment and in customers’ everyday lives.
Special attention is now being paid to environmental
friendliness, properly targeted selections and increasingly
smooth service provision as existing units are renewed
and completely new stores are established.
Extensive investments in the development of the store
network have been going on for several years. Currently,
S Group’s grocery stores can be found in the areas of
every cooperative enterprise.
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In 2010, the number of stores increased by 10 new
Alepa and Sale neighbourhood stores, 13 new S-markets
and 5 Prisma hypermarkets in Finland.
Although the network is already fairly extensive,
upgrading the stores and keeping them up-to-date
requires continuous work. In addition, in big cities
there is a constant need to expand the store network
since migration from sparsely populated areas to larger
residential centres continues.

Private label selection grows
Sales growth in the grocery trade in S Group was in line
with targets and exceeded the overall growth in the sector in 2010. The set performance targets were also met
and the market share strengthened further.
The strikes in the foodstuffs industry hindered the
availability of products in the spring, and this slowed
down growth in S Group’s grocery trade. The economic
recession resulted in customers buying more affordable
products last year.
S Group responded to the growing demand for more
affordable products by developing its private label selections Rainbow and X-tra. Private label selections have
grown particularly strongly in fresh products recently.
Growth in the selection boosted the sales of the private
labels in 2010, resulting in growth of nearly 30 percent.
The goal is to increase private label sales to approximately a fifth of the value of the entire grocery trade.

Expanded hours for
improved services
The change in the legislation on retail store hours was
put to the test for the first time during 2010. From the
retail perspective, the experiences have been very positive, and customers have also welcomed the extended
hours. The liberalisation of retail store hours has
improved customer service by providing more flexibility
for customers to shop whenever it suits them.
The experiences of S Group’s grocery trade in relation
to extended hours are positive. Customer volumes are
now spread more evenly across different weekdays, and
the weekend peaks have evened out. Customers have
welcomed the extended Saturday hours in particular.
S Group has extended service hours in all of its
grocery stores. The biggest benefits of the extended
store hours are felt by small stores of no more than
400 square metres in area, which have total freedom
SOK CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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Grocery trade is conducted in the Prisma, S-market,
Sale and Alepa chains, ABC service station stores,
ABC Delis and the grocery sections of Sokos stores.
At the end of 2010, the supermarket chains comprised 834 outlets. There were 108 ABC service station
stores and 17 ABC Delis. In Finland, the business
operations of all supermarket outlets are handled
by the regional cooperative enterprises.
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to determine their store hours. Around the clock store
hours have also been tested in S Group’s store network,
with good results. S Group’s grocery trade considers
the new legislation on store hours to benefit most of all
co-op members.

Listening to co-op members
Although the traditional success factors of the grocery
trade, such as close proximity, service, affordable prices
and good product selection, remain nearly unchanged
year after year, technological advancements create new
opportunities for the grocery trade as well. The role of
online stores as a new distribution channel and service
opportunity is considered an area for development in S
Group. Online store pilots for foodstuffs have also been
implemented in several regional cooperative enterprise
areas, and the prerequisites for expanding the new distribution channel profitably are being investigated.
Mobile services to facilitate shopping have also been
developed and will be developed further. With the
Foodie service, co-op members may already create shopping lists, monitor prices and view recipes using their
mobile phones. Paying and ordering by phone will be
tested.
The new electronic forms of customer interaction
are seen as an opportunity in S Group’s grocery trade.
Electronic customer panel activities already offer an
opportunity to listen to customer needs and wishes in
a customised manner in order to develop the operating methods at both individual outlets and at the chain
level. Increasing customer interaction is one of the most
important development targets for the coming years.
Information systems created to serve co-op members
offer excellent opportunities for this.

Improved predictability
Responsibility is part of everyday management in S
Group’s grocery stores. Responsibility programmes were

26.3 27.8 29.0 30.5 31.1 31.1 34.3 35.9 39.9 41.1 42.4 43.2 44.1
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

created for all chains in S Group during 2009–2010,
and they are being implemented as part of everyday
operations.
The grocery trade highlights, in particular, environmentally friendly transportation options, energy savings
and energy efficiency, product safety, ethically sustainable procurement and the management of the entire
long value chain, spanning from suppliers to customers.
A co-op member can rest assured that all products purchased from S Group’s grocery stores are manufactured
responsibly and are safe to use.
S Group bears its financial responsibility in the
grocery trade by offering easily accessible services to
co-op members throughout Finland. The operations
are effective, which is manifested in the price level of
food, which is at the European average level in Finland,
despite the challenging climate and long distances
involved.

Everyday responsibility
Responsibility is part of everyday management in S
Group’s grocery stores. Responsibility programmes were
created for all chains in S Group during 2009–2010,
and they are being implemented as part of everyday
operations.
The grocery trade highlights, in particular, environmentally friendly transportation options, energy savings
and energy efficiency, product safety, ethically sustainable procurement and the management of the entire
long value chain, spanning from suppliers to customers.
A co-op member can rest assured that all products purchased from S Group’s grocery stores are manufactured
responsibly and are safe to use.
S Group bears its financial responsibility in the
grocery trade by offering easily accessible services to
co-op members throughout Finland. The operations
are effective, which is manifested in the price level of
food, which is at the European average level in Finland,
despite the challenging climate and long distances
involved.
SOK CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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A year of growth
and development
in consumer
goods trade
S Group’s consumer goods trade saw strong
growth and implemented several development
projects in 2010. Thanks to new and renewed
units and several strengthened product areas,
sales developed extremely favourably.

S

Group’s goal is to clearly improve the consumer
goods trade offering to co-op members and to
increase sales by 2015. Development projects cover all
chains selling consumer goods in S Group: the Prisma,
Sokos and Emotion stores, Kodin Terra outlets, S-markets and ABC service station stores.
Meeting the growth targets in the consumer goods
trade is not easy since competition in the sector is fierce
and getting continuously tougher. This is attributable,
among other things, to the rush of foreign competition
in the market and the strongly growing trend of online
shopping. Currently, the share of foreign competitors of
the total markets in the Finnish consumer goods trade is
estimated at nearly 20 percent.
The share of foreign online trade in the growing
online shopping sector was 17 percent in 2010. The
shares vary significantly by product group.
The ramifications of the recession made purchasing
activities in the consumer goods trade still cautious at
the beginning of 2010. There was a turn for the better
in consumer confidence in the spring, and the remainder of the year, including the Christmas holiday sales,
was profitable in the consumer goods trade. S Group’s
significant investments and development inputs resulted
in sales that were even better than targeted.

Prisma’s concept
reform progresses
There were 60 Prisma hypermarkets at the end of 2010
in Finland. Last year, new Prisma stores opened in Pori,
Lempäälä, Forssa and also Palokka in Jyväskylä and
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Koivistonkylä in Tampere. In addition, stores in Kotka,
Kuusamo and Oulu were expanded.
In 2010, S Group purchased eight Euromarket units
from Suomen Lähikauppa and they were successfully
integrated into the Prisma and S-market chains. All
Euromarket employees continued their employment
with S Group.
In 2011, new Prisma stores will open in Lielahti in
Tampere and in Ylivieska. Significant expansions will
be carried out in Kannelmäki in Helsinki, Seinäjoki,
Kouvola and Lahti.
Co-op members have welcomed the extended consumer goods selections in the Prisma stores. Sales of
consumer electronics and household appliances have
been brisk from the beginning. In 2010, demand for
fashion and sports products picked up significantly.
All S Group chains which sell consumer products
are intensively developing private label products. In the
spring of 2011, a new label, House, will be launched
in the home product area. A new private label in small
appliances is the inter-Nordic Hugin.

Kodin Terra network
almost doubled
As the recession waned, construction, renovation and
interior decoration recovered considerably. This is visible
in the sales for the entire hardware trade in Finland,
including in S Group’s home goods store chain Kodin
Terra. Its comparable sales also developed favourably in
2010. The market for garden business did not decline
despite the recession, and gardening sales were lively in
Kodin Terra as well.
SOK CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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S Group’s consumer
goods trade (EUR million)
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In S Group, the consumer goods trade
chains are Prisma, Sokos, Emotion
and Kodin Terra. In addition, consumer
goods are sold by the S-markets,
Sale stores and ABC service station
stores. The Pukumies chain operates
in some areas of Finland.
At the end of 2010, there were

The Kodin Terra chain has grown rapidly in recent years.
In 2010, the chain expanded with five new units which
opened in Hämeenlinna, Kuopio, Kokkola, Nokia and
Rovaniemi. The goal is to establish a network of 20
Kodin Terra stores by 2015. At the end of 2010, the
number of stores was 11.
Concurrently with the expansion of the Kodin
Terra chain, several internal development projects are
underway relating to the streamlining of operations,
development of selections and improvement of
customer service.

60 stores in the Prisma chain in Finland
and 17 outlets in neighbouring countries.
There were 22 Sokos department
stores, 22 Emotion stores and
11 Kodin Terra stores. The Pukumies
chain had nine outlets.
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Developing the Sokos chain
The Sokos department store chain is also experiencing
intense development. During 2008–2009, two new
department stores opened, in Lappeenranta and Kouvola. In addition, several Sokos department stores have
been expanded and renewed considerably.
In 2010, the most significant expansion projects were
completed in Jyväskylä and in Tampere. The revamped
cosmetics department of the Helsinki department store
opened in the spring of 2010.
The Sokos stores have been revamped in terms of
selections, displays and visual appearance. The brand
product offering has been expanded in the selections at
the same time as the offering of private labels has been
renewed and increased. The selection has been expanded
and display concepts have been revamped in all product
areas.
In 2011, the most important events in the Sokos
chain will be the opening of Sokos Mikkeli in the new
Stella shopping centre in November, the makeovers of
the Tampere Sokos and the women’s department in the
Helsinki store. The number of Emotion stores, which
focus on beauty and lingerie, continues to increase at an
annual rate of a few stores. Last year, new units opened
in Lempäälä, Kemi, Pori and Forssa. The Kamppi store
in Helsinki closed. The total number of Emotion stores
was 22 at the end of 2010.

Sales in both Sokos and Emotion chains increased from
the previous year.
Women’s and men’s clothing and the cosmetics
business in S Group is operated also by the Pukumies
chain owned by the Osuuskauppa Arina cooperative
enterprise. It will open a new pilot unit for a women’s
wear chain Companys in Helsinki in the spring of 2011.
Pukumies Oy operates Pukumies stores and Mick’s
youth fashion stores in Oulu, Kokkola, Seinäjoki,
Jyväskylä, Kemi and Rovaniemi. The Pukumies store 
in Kotka is operated by the Osuuskauppa Ympyrä
cooperative enterprise.

Beauty online
The Finnish online shopping trend is growing strongly.
Technical development has created a solid foundation
for the final breakthrough of online shopping. Almost
80 percent of Finnish households have broadband access
to the Internet.
S Group is ready to address co-op members’ growing
demand for online shopping. It is making preparations
for it in both the consumer goods and grocery trade.
In 2010, S Group launched an online store for cosmetics in the Sokos chain. The goal of the Sokos online
store for beauty is to be one of the most extensive and
diverse online stores for beauty offered in the Finnish
language. In 2011, the entire cosmetics selection of the
chain will be available online. In addition to the products, co-op members will be offered plenty of tips and
information about beauty.
The Sokos chain will later expand the online store
product selection to other product areas as well.
The Internet is a significant medium for co-op
members, facilitating the pre-selection of products
and supporting purchasing decisions. Currently, the
Prisma chain’s website contains information on more
than 19,000 products. The Kodin Terra website will be
launched in 2011, providing information and prices for
more than 15,000 products.
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Service station and fuel trade in S Group
is operated by a network of 108 ABC
service station stores, 280 unmanned
ABC stations and 17 ABC Delis (in 2010).
The ABC Deli operates in the Helsinki
metropolitan area and in Porvoo only.
All ABC outlets are operated
by S Group’s regional cooperative
enterprises.

Co-op members’ ABC
The ABC chain
does not stand still,
but keeps expanding its
network and developing
its services.

S Group’s market share in fuel sales (%)
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T

he year 2010 was extremely difficult for the fuel
trade. Sales volumes plummeted to negative figures
as the ramifications of the recession made people travel
less than before. The price level varied but still remained
at a relatively high level.
Sales in the ABC chain were better than in the sector
on average, so the chain’s market share grew again. The
service station store network expanded with seven new
units which were completed in the port of Vuosaari in
Helsinki, Kolmikulma in Nokia, Koulukatu in Turku,
Niirala in Kuopio and in Huittinen, Mäntyharju and
Alavus. The operations have started well in all new units.
A total of 12 new unmanned ABC stations were opened
last year.
The goal of the ABC chain is to continue to implement a growth strategy although the approach is a bit
more moderate than in the previous years. New service
station stores will likely be established at a rate of 5–8
units per year.

Fuel procurement volume grows
Among the changes that took place in the operating
environment was the new legislation on store hours
effective at the end of January 2010. The legislation
liberalised the store hours and enabled year-round
Sunday hours. This cut down growth in the sales of
grocery goods in the service station stores, particularly
during months when, previously, grocery stores could
not be open on Sundays.

SOK CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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The biggest piece of news regarding competition was
the sale of Shell to the St1 chain. This will decrease the
total number of service stations in Finland, particularly
in areas where St1 and Shell stations are located close to
each other.
For the ABC chain, the Shell deal presents an opportunity. The deal means that the volume of the procurement company NEOT Oy, shared by the ABC and St1
chains, will grow. NEOT will become the largest fuel
procurement company in the Nordic countries, affording
increased negotiation power with large international oil
producers.
Finland will increase the share of biofuels in road
traffic as part of the prevention of climate change. At the
beginning of 2011, the basic petrol grade was changed
to 95 E10 which contains a maximum of ten per cent
by volume of ethanol. The existing 98 E5 fuel with five
per cent by volume of ethanol is still available for engines
which cannot use the new petrol grade.

Continuous renewal
The ABC chain is celebrating its 12th anniversary this
year. It is a Finnish pioneer and a success story which
is imitated by the competition. Service clusters consisting of sales of fuel, a supermarket store, restaurant and
often also other services, such as a pharmacy and an Alko
liquor store, are emerging in many parts of Finland.
According to surveys, ABC is still the best known and
most respected brand in the sector, for a fourth year in a
row in 2011.
However, even the best business ideas require renewal.
A couple of years ago, the ABC chain started establishing ABC Deli stores in the Helsinki metropolitan area in
business locations where a full service station store could
not be built. Currently, there are 17 such Deli units, and
the plan is to also start establishing similar, smaller ABC
units elsewhere in Finland. They will be no-frills versions
of the Delis in the Helsinki area and it is believed that
they will appeal to male motorists in particular.

Improving the restaurant business
and consumer goods trade
The large ABC service station stores have also undergone changes. The restaurant menus were renewed, with
the new ones targeting specific customer groups more
16
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clearly. In addition to the ABC classics, the new offering
contains dishes from the grill, international portions
and light options. The buffet and burgers continue to
constitute a significant portion of the offering.
Another visible change is the increase in the regional
and local offering. Well-known local dishes will become
available at all ABC service station stores and the offering concept of each store will be defined separately.
The majority of development measures in the ABC
markets will take place in the consumer goods trade.
It is expected to become a new engine for growth now
that the grocery trade will no longer grow due to the
new store hours legislation. The consumer goods selection will expand considerably. Key product groups will
include, among others, affordable gift items, knitwear,
sweaters and t-shirts, souvenirs, toys and music, movies
and games.
Increase in the consumer goods sales in service station stores is an international phenomenon which is
now arriving in Finland.

Welcoming the young
The ABC chain takes responsibility for the environment
in all operations. This is also what the co-op members
increasingly want. Fuel trade products are being developed to be more environmentally friendly, and opportunities are created for the use of alternative forms of
energy. In terms of environmental protection, the new
modern ABC network is among the top in Finland.
The ABC chain is no longer simply a commercial but
also a social phenomenon. In several towns, the arrival
of an ABC store has sparked a new kind of spirit and
activity.
Young people have embraced the ABCs, and the
chain heartily welcomes them as customers. Nevertheless, shared ground rules must be agreed on, and this is
done locally together with the young people.
The ABC chain participates in a project by Nuorten
palvelu ry, funded by RAY. The project promotes the
customer service aimed at the young through personnel
training, among others. This helps to improve the overall comfort and safety in the service station stores.
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S Group’s Tourism and Hospitality Business comprises
several nationwide restaurant chains and two hotel
chains, Sokos Hotels and Radisson Blu Hotels &
Resorts. In addition to the chains, S Group also
has a large number of independent restaurants.
Tourism and Hospitality Business in Finland is
operated by both regional cooperative enterprises
and SOK’s subsidiary Sokotel Oy. S Group had a
total of 728 restaurant outlets and 58 hotels in
Finland at the end of 2010. In addition, SOK’s
subsidiaries operate the Sokos Hotel Viru in Tallinn
and the three Sokos Hotels in St. Petersburg.
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Tourism and Hospitality
Business recovers
Recession ended in S Group’s Tourism and Hospitality Business
in the summer of 2010, and the business is now more eager than
ever to boost development. The measures are based on the
changing wishes and needs of co-op members.

T

he two halves of the year 2010 presented a different
situation in the Tourism and Hospitality Business.
Recession, which the sector had been struggling with for
a couple of years, was still felt in the first half of the year,
but there was a clear turn for the better in S Group in
July. July marked an upward turn in both hotel occupancy rates and sales in restaurants.
Both S Group and the sector overall are now cautiously optimistic. The growth in private consumption,
which started at the end of 2010, is anticipated to continue in 2011. Business travel and tourism to Finland
have also shown clear signs of recovery.
Demand for restaurant food was boosted by the July
2010 reduction of value added tax from 22 percent to
13 percent. In S Group, the reduction was transferred
directly to prices. This generated an approximately 7.4
percent fall in the price level of restaurant food. On the
other hand, growth in demand was curbed by increases
in alcohol tax. The positive impact of the reduced value
added tax will be tangibly visible in 2011.

Continuous renewals
in restaurant offerings
A new competition strategy was confirmed in S Group’s
Tourism and Hospitality Business in 2010.
Its focus areas include the development of customerand market-oriented offerings, facilitation of purchasing
and services as well as improvements in profitability.

Financial performance burdened by the years of recession showed considerable improvement in 2010 due to
various streamlining and development programmes.
The focus in both hotel and restaurant business continues to be on a mid-priced offering.
This choice also protected S Group’s Tourism and
Hospitality Business during the recession when demand
in high-priced products and services declined the most.
In the restaurant operations, S Group’s key focus
is on developing its fast food concept. The goal is to
provide customers with convenient meal solutions in the
locations they generally visit. Examples include the restaurant world concept and offering in Prisma stores now
being developed. The first new type of Prisma restaurant
world will open in Lahti in the summer of 2011.
This offering, a hybrid between stores and restaurants,
will receive special information overall in the future. S
Group believes that the boundaries between different
sectors will become blurred in the future, and more and
more ready-made meal solutions will be purchased from
stores, and restaurants will increase the sales of take-out
food.
Makula, a new ready-made meal concept, was
introduced by S Group last year. It is being piloted in
the Alepa and S-market stores and ABC service station
stores, among others.
Food and dining restaurant operations will also be
developed. Bravuria, a restaurant serving pasta and
other delicacies found in Italian cuisine, will open in
Kamppi, Helsinki, in March. Its service principle is
SOK CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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something completely new in Finland. This “free flow”
method, already popular abroad, means, for example,
that customers order their meals directly from the chef
who prepares them in accordance with customers’ wishes.
Despite the recession, S Group has been renovating
its restaurants continuously and also opened new units.
Restaurant worlds were opened at new Prisma stores in
2010. The number of Amarillo, Torero and Coffee
House units increased in different parts of Finland.
Trattoria, a new type of restaurant opened at the Sokos
Hotel Tammer.

New hotels on the horizon
In S Group, hotels also succeeded in pulling through the
recession, and demand has clearly picked up. S Group’s
hotel offering contained three different brands in 2010.
The best known and oldest of these is Sokos Hotels,
Finland’s largest hotel chain, which aims its services
in particular at co-op members and domestic business
travellers. Sokos Hotels also increased its market shares
in 2010.
Radisson Blu is an international chain serving a large
volume of business travellers. Decline in business travel
reduced sales in the Radisson chain during the recession
but the chain has been recovering since the summer of
2010. Radisson Blu hotels currently target their offering
increasingly to co-op members.
The third hotel brand, Holiday Club Spa, has a
majority of clientele who are co-op members. In January
2011, S Group sold four hotels of the chain to Holiday
Club Resorts as of 1 March 2011. The spa operations
will continue under the Sokos Hotel name in Caribia in
Turku, Eden in Oulu, Bomba in Nurmes and Vesileppis
in Leppävirta.
The principle in S Group is to thoroughly renovate at
least one hotel per year, and smaller makeovers are carried out on an ongoing basis. In 2009, the Sokos Hotel

S Group’s
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Tammer was renovated in Tampere. In 2010, the Radisson Blu Espoo was completely renovated, and the Sokos
Hotel Vaakuna, in Joensuu, was expanded. This year, it
will be the turn of Sokos Hotel Villa in Tampere.
A brand new Sokos Hotel will open in Jyväskylä in
2012. Sokos Hotel Paviljonki, to be built in connection
with the International Congress and Trade Fair Center,
will have a total of 170 rooms, which will be among the
largest in the city.
A tower hotel with 24 floors is being designed in
Tampere with construction expected to start in the
summer of 2011.

Web services under development
The rapid increase in electronic commerce is posing new
challenges for the hotel business both in Finland and
internationally. Among other things, this means that
long-term corporate agreements on hotel accommodation services will become rarer. Price comparisons are
completely transparent online, and private consumers are
also able to make hotel reservations more independently.
S Group is responding to the challenge by renewing its web services and reservation options as well as
by developing flexible pricing to match the consumer
behaviour of today.
In the hotel and catering business, S Group wants to
listen to customers even more and meet their demands
with targeted offerings. One of the increasingly important ways of listening to customers and communicating
with them is through the social media, where S Group’s
hotel and catering business is an active participant.
The recession once again proved the point that good
and skilled customer service is a determining factor for
success. Personnel training highlights, among other
things, the importance of active selling, which surveys
have shown constitutes good service to customers.

S Group’s market share
in restaurants (%)
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Automotive trade gets up to speed
Sales in the Automotive Trade and
Accessories picked up towards the
end of 2010. Currently, S Group is
intensively developing the
Automotive Trade.

T

S Group’s Automotive Trade services

he uncertainty and weakened demand that continued throughout 2009 in both the private automotive trade and corporate sales was still felt at the beginning of 2010. In the first months of the year, the automotive trade increased but only slightly. The stevedore
strike at the beginning of the year affected the delivery
times of vehicles, slowing down trade.
Nevertheless, sales picked up towards the spring, and
sales for the entire year ended up better than anticipated.
The number of new passenger cars registered during the
year was 112,000, or 23.6 percent higher than in the
previous year. The positive development accelerated at
the end of the year. For example, the number of new
vehicles registered in December was 50 percent higher
than in the previous year.
The outlook for 2011 is expected to be good. According to Statistics Finland, 16 percent of Finnish households are going to buy a new car in the current year.

are provided by SOK’s subsidiary
SOK Autokauppa Oy and 12 regional
cooperative enterprises. The services include new vehicles, trade-in
vehicles, spare parts and accessories sales, service and maintenance
as well as automotive trade financing. The Karla maintenance service
for multiple makes will be launched
as a new service in 2011, with the
first pilot shop in Mikkeli. S Group
has representation of 21 vehicle
makes, which were sold in 38
outlets at the end of 2010.
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Significant result improvements
During the recession, sales in used cars were brisk. In
the summer, there was a shortage of new trade-in cars.
Supply was increased throughout the year by importing
trade-in cars. At the end of the year, trade-in car sales
slowed down to the normal consumption demand. As
the sales of new cars became livelier, dealerships also
received newer trade-in cars to sell.
The recession had a particularly severe effect on
the sales of commercial vehicles. Companies avoided
purchasing new vehicles and bankruptcies in, for
example, the construction industry weakened demand.
Towards the end of the year, sales of commercial vehicles
increased considerably.
The number of new passenger cars registered in 2010
was 11,045, or 27.3 percent higher than in the previous
year.

Sales in S Group’s Automotive Trade and Accessories
developed positively in 2010 and the financial result
improved significantly. The result improvement was
attributable to revived demand, various development
measures and cost management.
Globally, the car industry is also seeking means to
improve cost-efficiency by rationalising functions and
developing new techniques with partners. In production
there is still overcapacity globally.

Centralised maintenance
for multiple makes
A change in attitudes and consumption behaviour
stemming from environmental factors has increased the
sales of small cars with low carbon dioxide emissions
and is reducing the sales of large cars. In terms of new
passenger car emissions, Finland has not quite reached
the target set by the EU, but ranks in the middle in the
comparison between EU countries. As the vehicle tax
changed into emissions based tax, consumers are also
encouraged to favour low emission cars.
Vehicle stock in Finland continues to be the oldest in
Western Europe: the average wrecking age is nearly 20
years. With the current sales volumes the stock will not
get any younger but the average age of cars will continue
to rise. Newer vehicle stock would, however, be important for both traffic safety and the environment.
Competition in the automotive trade in Finland is
fierce, and the profit level overall continues to be weak.
There are a few nationally significant players in Finland.
Nevertheless, the sector continues to be fragmented,
and the automotive trade is operated by several regional
players.
The competitive situation is changing in vehicle
maintenance services. Parallel to dealer maintenance,
chains are emerging, providing professional maintenance
services for several makes. S Group is participating in
this change. The first Karla maintenance service for
multiple makes was launched at the car dealership of
Osuuskauppa Suur-Savo cooperative enterprise at the
beginning of 2011. The goal is to develop Karla
into a nationwide maintenance chain.

Automaa chain emerges
S Group’s Automotive Trade is currently going through
an intense development phase. Chain operations are
being developed under the Automaa brand. The service
concept for both car sales and maintenance are being
developed on a customer-oriented basis. The goal is
to expand motoring services for co-op members and
include them in the total offering together with the
other chains in S Group.
Co-op members’ needs are related to motoring
in many ways. In addition to buying vehicles, these
include, for example, using maintenance services,
financing and insurance products, tyre storage services as
well as purchasing of automotive accessories and parts.
Online services are also being developed. The goal is
to increase the flexibility of ordering maintenance services, facilitate the pre-selection and comparison carried
out online and to enable purchasing products online.
Currently, the former Automaa Oy, now SOK
Autokauppa Oy, covers approximately 40 percent
of the Automotive Trade volume in S Group. Other
automotive trade is operated by 12 dealerships owned
by regional cooperative enterprises. Altogether, the car
dealerships of S Group represent 21 different makes in
dealerships in different parts of Finland. At the end of
the year, the number of outlets was 42, of which four
were maintenance shops.
The building of the Automaa chain gained full
momentum in 2010, and will soon be visible. The chain
currently consists of the dealerships of SOK Autokauppa Oy and the dealerships owned by seven regional
cooperative enterprises. The network planning of the
Automotive Trade is underway for both car sales and the
maintenance services for multiple makes. The intention
is to create a regionally versatile selection of vehicles and
a maintenance service for multiple makes which is close
to the customer nationwide.
At the beginning of 2010, SOK sold the Peugeot
importer Maan Auto Oy to Veho Oy. The deal is part
of S Group’s strategy of focusing solely on the retail of
vehicles and maintenance services and development of
services for co-op members.
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Agricultural Trade feels
the pressure to change
Global turmoil is shaking the agricultural trade and the effects are being felt in
Finland as well. Hankkija-Maatalous Oy is increasingly focusing on its core business.

A

gricultural trade is a global business. Slow demand
and low prices are burdening all parties operating
in the sector both in Finland and internationally. This
global market interference has been going on for several
years.
International agricultural trade is considerably influenced by the weather conditions in the main production
areas. Yield levels are reduced by, among other things,
drought, floods and locusts. Demand for grain crops has
increased by the increased consumption of grain and, in
particular, meat in developing national economies such
as China and India. Furthermore, a significant portion
of grain crops are currently used for energy production.
For example, in the USA, maize is used for producing
ethanol, which was a significant reason for the most
recent food crises.
In the first half of 2011, global demand for food is
again high and it is forecast that a new food crises may
break out. The price of grain is nearing an all time high.
The problem is the shortage of grain.
All of these issues affect supply and demand in the
global market. They are difficult to anticipate, which is
why prices also fluctuate steeply.

No growth in the
agricultural market
In Finland, demand in the agricultural trade in 2010
remained at the previous year’s level. In terms of volumes, the agricultural trade has decreased considerably
from the best years of the decade. Price changes in grain
and feed raw materials and fertilisers in particular have
had a declining effect on the value of trade. A eurodenominated reduction in the agricultural trade in
Finland is thus a result of both declining demand and
reduction of prices. Demand has shrunk in all agricultural trade product groups.
In Finland, demand in the agricultural trade is above
all influenced by the development of revenue available
to farmers and by structural issues such as the development of the number and size of farms. The number of
agricultural farms in Finland continued to decline in
2010. Overall, the sector has not grown in Finland in
24
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years, which is attributable, among other things, to the
production quotas set by the EU.

Revamped Agrimarket chain
The purchasing habits of agricultural producers are
changing and this is affecting the structure of the sector
in Finland. Inputs are procured using multiple channels
more than before. The majority of the inputs are currently purchased elsewhere than in stores. Therefore,
the store network is inevitably changing, or shrinking
in terms of the number of stores.
Hankkija-Maatalous Oy is a market leader in the
agricultural trade in Finland. Sales in the Agrimarket
chain amounts to over EUR 1 billion, which is over one
half of the entire agricultural trade in Finland in terms
of market share. In 2010, the Agrimarket chain’s market
share remained unchanged.
Last year, performance in Agricultural Trade was
weakened in particular by the competitive situation in
the machinery and feed trade. Hankkija-Maatalous Oy
launched a concept renewal programme, and concurrently, consumer and corporate trade operations were
streamlined within S Group. The Agrimarket chain of
Hankkija-Maatalous will focus more clearly on its core
business in the future. This comprises the agricultural,
machinery, hobby, animal and gardening trade. Production construction will be a significant part of Agricultural Trade.
The stores will also offer consumer hardware products but the selection will be more limited than before.
In 2010, Hankkija-Maatalous Oy’s 21 outlets were
updated to the renewed Agrimarket concept. A few
outlets were closed, and the centralisation will continue
in 2011.
Trade aimed at consumers, including gardening, succeeded well during the recession as well, and gardening
sales will continue to be one of the focus areas. In 2010,
gardening sales was close to the 2009 level.
In addition to the Agrimarket stores, S Group
sells gardening products and supplies in the outdoor
summer markets of Prisma stores and in Kodin Terra
stores.

Agrimarket sales
by business area 2010 (%)
Hardware and
gardening sales
23

Agribusiness
54

Machinery sales
23

Agricultural and machinery trade is carried out by
the Agrimarket stores in S Group. The consumer
hardware trade is carried out in the Kodin Terra and
S-Rauta stores and some Agrimarkets. Gardening
trade is conducted by the Multasormi sections of
the Agrimarket stores, outdoor summer markets of
Prisma stores as well as the Kodin Terra stores.
SOK’s subsidiary Hankkija-Maatalous Oy conducts
nationwide agricultural trade. In addition, four regional cooperative enterprises conduct agricultural trade
independently. There were a total of 123 Agrimarket
outlets at the turn of the year, a decrease of 15
outlets compared to the previous year.
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Rapid expansion in
neighbouring countries
S Group’s international operations are currently
expanding very rapidly. This requires significant
investments, but the future profit expectations
are also high.

S

Group has international business operations in
the Supermarket Trade in St. Petersburg, Estonia,
Latvia and Lithuania. In 2010, the supermarket sales in
neighbouring countries amounted to EUR 265 million,
an increase of 33 percent compared to the previous year.
This area is already quite a sizeable business entity
which will grow significantly in the coming years.
S Group’s goal is to increase supermarket sales in neighbouring countries to EUR 1 billion by 2015.
The number of units has increased rapidly. Investments were primarily made during the recession, but
despite this, the set sales and financial performance
targets were exceeded.
All S Group’s Supermarket Trade units operate under
the Prisma brand in neighbouring countries. Some of
the Prisma stores are large supermarket units and others
operate under the hypermarket concept.
Currently, there are a total of seven Prisma stores in
Estonia, five of which are located in Tallinn. The newest
Prisma stores in Estonia opened in Tartu and Narva in
October and November 2010, respectively.
SOK’s sixth Prisma store in St. Petersburg was completed in September. SOK’s third Prisma store in Latvia
will open in the spring of 2011. All stores are located in
Riga.
In Lithuania, S Group currently has one Prisma store
in Vilnius and a second in Kaunas, which opened in
December 2010.

Demand picked up
in St. Petersburg
Outside of Finland, S Group operates Tourism and
Hospitality Business in Tallinn and St. Petersburg. Sokos
Hotel Viru has been achieving excellent results through-

out SOK’s ownership. Visitor numbers have continued
to increase, although the competitive situation in the
hotel business in Tallinn has become considerably
tighter. Over the course to the past two to three years,
hotel capacity in the city has grown by more than 20
percent.
In St. Petersburg, S Group has three Sokos Hotels
which were completed during the worst phase of the
recession. The initial difficulties have been overcome: 
for example, visitor numbers increased by a staggering 60 percent in 2010. The hotels also improved their
profits considerably.
The future outlook for St. Petersburg is excellent now
that the Russian economy is experiencing strong growth
again. The new fast train connection and a boat cruise
route from Finland have boosted Finnish tourism in 
St. Petersburg.

Customer loyalty
programme creates interest
S Group already has more than 2,000 employees
abroad. The number of personnel will continue to
increase considerably, since S Group is planning to
increase the number of its units in the area to 40 or
45 by 2015.
In 2011, S Group will introduce a customer loyalty
card in both St. Petersburg and the Baltic markets.
Naturally, it will not be a co-op membership system but
a customer loyalty bonus system aimed at local residents, with area-specific types of rewards. Based on pilot
projects run so far, there is enormous interest in the new
customer loyalty system in these markets. In St. Petersburg, more than 60,000 people obtained a customer
loyalty card in the first couple of months.
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SOK’s subsidiary Inex Partners Oy
is responsible for procuring S Group’s
grocery and consumer goods. In purchasing, it works in collaboration with
Nordic Coop Trading, of which SOK
owns one quarter. Inex Partners
also owns half of Finnfrost Oy, which
specialises in the procurement and
logistics of frozen products.
Meira Nova Oy is SOK’s subsidiary and
it specialises in the procurement,
marketing and logistics of grocery
goods for the HoReCa sector. Among
its customer groups are hotels and
restaurants, staff lunchrooms, public
sector catering and service station stores
with restaurants. Meira Nova also
procures goods for the whole of Finland,
including customers outside S Group.
NEOT (North European Oil Trade Oy) is a
fuel procurement company jointly owned by
SOK and Greeni Oy.
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More effective procurement
S Group’s effective and streamlined procurement
means affordable prices, targeted selections and
improved product availability for customers.

A

mong the cornerstones of S Group’s success are
the effective and skilled procurement companies which enable S Group to manage a value chain
spanning from suppliers to customers. This results in
good and well-targeted selections as well as the most
competitive price level on the market due to costefficiency.
Procurement was streamlined in the spring of 2010
with the merger of Inex Partners Oy, responsible for
the procurement and logistics of grocery goods, and
Intrade Partners Oy, responsible for the procurement
of consumer goods. The merger clarifies the division of
tasks, makes product flow control more effective and
improves the product availability. In the end, all this
translates into better service for the co-op members.

Increased flexibility
and faster responses
As a result, there are high expectations for the new
operating model, implemented as the procurement
companies merged. Among other things, it aims to
improve the flexibility and response times in the fastpaced consumer goods trade of today.
The streamlining of operations includes a shift from
chain-specific procurement to product area-specific procurement of goods. In practice, this means that the same
category sourcing manager may be procuring goods for,
for example, the Prisma and Sokos chains. Combining S Group’s own procurement volumes in this way
improves negotiation momentum and competitiveness.
In addition, Inex Partners is involved in continuous
procurement collaboration internationally, and these
activities will be developed further.

Logistics improvements
A significant portion of the streamlining in the consumer goods trade covers logistics. S Group’s largest
investment of all time, EUR 150 million, is in the
logistics centre for consumer goods in Sipoo, which is
due to be completed in 2012. It applies environmentally
conscious energy solutions which are top of the line in
Finland. The logistics centre will be Finland’s largest
hybrid plant utilising renewable energy.
The benefits offered by the new consumer goods
logistics centre will, in time, also create clear advantages for stores. For example, it will enable centralised
inventories, improving the product availability for stores
in all circumstances. Centralised handling of products,
or preparing them for selling, will expand. The goal is
to receive a significant proportion of consumer goods to
stores in a shelf-ready configuration.
All of SOK’s logistics centres were transferred under
the ownership of S-ryhmän logistiikkakeskukset Oy
in 2010. The 22 regional cooperative enterprises of S
Group own the company.

Ethically sustainable procurement
Requirements on companies to carry out transparent
operations and provide opportunities for sustainable
consumption are continuously getting stricter. For
example, companies must be able to provide customers
with information on the country of origin of products,
raw materials and the production conditions of
products if customers request it.
Procurement companies have a key role in meeting
these expectations. Proper management of the long
value chain and the resources provided by international
collaboration guarantee the ethical sustainability of
procurement.
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Taking care of personnel
Personnel competence will be a decisive
competitive advantage in the future.
By taking care of the well-being and
skills of its personnel, S Group aims to
recruit and retain the best competence.

Retail employs more than 300,000
people in Finland, making it a sector
with the most extensive impact
on employment. A total of 39,500
professionals work in S Group, of
whom approximately 9,400 are
employed by the SOK Corporation.
More than 2,000 S Group employees
earn their living by working for
the Corporation abroad, in
the Baltic countries and Russia.

Age
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hile Finland was in the middle of recession, the
service industries, with retail as the largest sector,
maintained the employment levels. The service sector will
continue to grow in the future and offer the majority of
new jobs. This will increase the importance of retail in
social discussion. Retail as an employer is gaining more
and more interest among people.
S Group aims to be the most sought after employer
and the choice of competent employees in the service
industry. It will strive to accomplish this by taking care of
its personnel and by giving them opportunities to develop
their competence. S Group offers diverse and interesting
positions and career paths. In S Group, practical action
and boosting the internal and external employer image
play a key role in recruiting new talent and retaining
existing competence.
According to surveys, S Group is currently a desirable
and reliable employer. S Group is among the companies
that employ the largest numbers of young people in Finland. A career at S Group usually begins through participating in the A Day’s Work programme (taksvärkki) or
practical professional orientation for schoolchildren, onthe-job learning during studies, or through traineeship.
The path often leads to evening, weekend and summer
jobs. Good experiences often also spark interest in retail
studies or work in S Group. More than 25 percent of
all employees in S Group are under 25 years old.

3.9
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Manager’s crucial role

Gender distribution 2010 (%)
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S Group believes that job satisfaction is high and wellbeing at work is good in a pleasant, fair and encouraging
work atmosphere.
This is why special attention is paid to managerial
work and developing it. A significant portion of coaching provided by S Group’s training and learning centre,
Jollas Institute, is aimed at the more than 2,000 managers
in S Group; although all S Group employees are entitled
to develop at their work and themselves through training. In 2010, approximately 20,000 S Group employees
participated in various training events organised by Jollas
Institute.

Competence is the key
The more competent the personnel are the more valuable
asset they are for the company. For S Group, among the most
important personnel development areas in the future are identifying various competence areas and mapping competence
needs in the working community.
In 2010, a competence management model was implemented in several cooperative enterprises through Jollas. The
goal is to implement it in all cooperative enterprises by 2015.
Another significant development area in 2010 was the
improvement of the effectiveness of work shift planning. The
goal is to provide as many work hours as possible to S Group’s
own personnel through, for example, flexible job rotation.
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For the benefit of co-op members
The cooperative S Group
listens to its co-op members.

S

Group is an enterprise based on cooperative principles and established to produce services and benefits
for co-op members. The number of co-op members, or
Finnish households that are members of cooperative
enterprises, has reached 1,930,000. The number of
co-op members has increased annually by about 100,000
households for several years in a row, and 2010 was no
exception.
A total of approximately 77 percent of Finnish households are co-op members.
S Group does not aim to maximise short-term profit,
but operates responsibly and for the long-term in order
to benefit its co-op members. The wishes and needs of
the co-op members drive the development of S Group’s
service and benefit the offering and service network.
Each co-op member has the opportunity to influence
the operations of their local cooperative. This is possible
through, among other things, the administrative bodies
and various online customer panels in which over 15,000
co-op members participated last year.

S-Etukortti – the most valued
bonus card in Finland
A cooperative enterprise gives back to its members in the
proportion to the services they have used. In other words,
the more a co-op member centralises their purchases to
S Group, the more financial benefits they gain. Financial
benefits for co-op members include a purchase reward or
bonus, a payment method-related benefit as well as an
annual return of surplus and interest paid on the membership fee invested, which are all based on the financial
performance of the cooperative. In 2010, these benefits
returned a total of EUR 373 million to co-op members,
or an average of EUR 197 for each member household.
According to surveys, households of all sizes consider
S Group’s co-op member scheme understandable and fair.
Co-op members’ impressions of S Group as a producer
of high-quality and diverse services and the best benefits
have strengthened further. There has also been an increase
in the use of S Group’s services; they are increasingly
being recommended and more and more users continue
to use them.
The S-Etukortti card was again chosen as the most
valued retail bonus card in Finland last year.
32
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S-Bank, an S Group company, is a Finnish
in-store bank with approximately
2.3 million customers. S-Bank offers
customers services related to saving,
payments and financing purchases.
S-Bank serves customers in
approximately 1,000 S Group outlets
throughout Finland, and also offers
online bank and telephone banking
services. S-Bank is owned by SOK
(one half) and S Group’s regional
cooperative enterprises and one local

Co-op members’
own bank
S-Bank has become extremely popular
among co-op members. In 2010, it
continued to grow and its service
selection was expanded with
new products.

cooperative enterprise (one half).
S-Bank was awarded the Key Flag
logo in recognition of the
company’s Finnish origins.

Deposts by private individuals
in S-Bank (EUR million)
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S

-Bank, which started deposit bank operations in
2007, offered Finnish customers a new banking
alternative. It appears that there was a need for a new
in-store bank since within a short period of time, the
number of users of S-Bank’s services has reached more
than 2.3 million.
By the end of 2010, the amount of deposits by private customers in S-Bank was EUR 2.3 billion. Corporate deposits included, S-Bank’s total funds on deposit
were nearly EUR 2.5 billion.
At the end of the year, the amount of outstanding
credit was EUR 299 million, of which EUR 211 million
was to private customers.
S-Bank’s operations have been profitable from the
start. In 2010, the bank made a profit of EUR 12.5
million. This was a four-fold increase compared to
the previous year.

S-Bank provides the best benefits
The majority of S-Bank’s customers are private customers, in practice co-op members, and in accordance with
S Group’s operating principle, the bank’s best benefits
are also targeted at them.
The reason behind S-Bank’s positive figures is the
confidence of the co-op members in their own bank.
According to a survey published in December 2010
(Customer loyalty barometer), the S-Bank customers
were the most satisfied with the services and benefits
provided by their bank.

S-Etukortti Visa users
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According to the Customer loyalty barometer and other
surveys, the co-op members value S-Bank’s free-ofcharge services, extensive service network, extended
service hours, easy-to-use online bank as well as competitive products related to saving and financing purchases.

S-Etukortti Visa gains popularity
The green S-Etukortti card, the symbol of the S Group’s
co-op membership, is also the key to S-Bank’s services
and benefits. In 2010, S Bank issued approximately
292,000 new S-Etukortti Visa cards. The total number
of active S-Etukortti Visa cards has reached 664,000.
The popularity of S-Bank’s online bank has also
increased. Last year, an average of 12,000 new banking
ID agreements were signed monthly. At the end of the
year, S-Bank’s electronic services had 933,000 users.

Revamped product selection
During the first years, S-Bank’s product selection has
gradually expanded to better meet the needs of its co-op
members. In November last year, S-Bank increased the
deposit product selection with the S-Sijoitustili investment account, providing an opportunity to obtain
additional revenue on a fixed-term deposit. Another
new product added to the selection last year was the
S-Joustoluotto credit, accessible through the online
bank.
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The S Group’s regional cooperatives
Andelslaget Varuboden*, Kirkkonummi

What is the S Group?
       

Etelä-Karjalan Osuuskauppa, Lappeenranta
Etelä-Pohjanmaan Osuuskauppa, Seinäjoki
Helsingin Osuuskauppa Elanto, Helsinki
Jukolan Osuuskauppa, Nurmes

The S Group is a notable Finnish cooperative trade corporate group.
It is composed of the SOK Corporation and its subsidiaries in addition
to 22 regional cooperatives and 10 local cooperatives. The members or
co-op members own the cooperatives, which in turn own the central
firm (SOK).
The purpose of the S Group’s business activities is to produce services
and benefits for its co-op members. The group’s goal is to offer its co-op
members diverse services and a wide outlet network all around Finland.
The premises of the activities are the customer’s service needs and
making the customer’s everyday life easier.

Keskimaa Osk, Jyväskylä
Koillismaan Osuuskauppa, Kuusamo
Osuuskauppa Arina, Oulu
Osuuskauppa Hämeenmaa, Lahti
Osuuskauppa Keula, Rauma
Osuuskauppa KPO, Kokkola
Osuuskauppa Maakunta, Kajaani
Osuuskauppa Osla Handelslag*, Porvoo
Osuuskauppa PeeÄssä, Kuopio
Osuuskauppa Suur-Savo, Mikkeli

Values are the backbone of the activities:

Osuuskauppa Ympyrä, Hamina

•
•
•
•

Osuuskauppa Ympäristö, Kouvola
Pirkanmaan Osuuskauppa, Tampere
Pohjois-Karjalan Osuuskauppa, Joensuu
Satakunnan Osuuskauppa, Pori
Suur-Seudun Osuuskauppa SSO, Salo

The S Group’s business activities

Turun Osuuskauppa, Turku
*In 30.6.2011 Andelslaget Varuboden and Osuuskauppa Osla Handelslag will merge into Osuuskauppa
Varuboden-Osla Handelslag.

The S Group’s key figures in 2010
EUR million
S Group’s retail sales

10 465

S Group’s retail salesin
the Baltics and Russia
S Group’s domestic retail sales

262
10 202

Cooperatives’ retail sales

9 092

S Group’s Bonus sales

8 431

Bonus paid to co-op members

333

S Group’s investments

600

S Group’s result

296

S Group’s retail sales
according to business areas
*includes sales in the Baltic
countries and Russia
Supermarket trade*
Service station stores and fuel trade

EUR million
6 385
1 553

Department and specialty store trade

351

Tourism and hospitality business*

750

Automotive and auto
accessories trade

484

Agricultural trade

932

Remaining

9

Retail sales numbers VAT 0 %.
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We exist for the customer.
We take responsibility for the environment and the people.
We constantly renew our operations.
We operate profitably.
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The S Group’s business areas are the supermarket trade, service
station and fuel trade, department and specialty store trade, tourism
and hospitality business, automobile and auto accessories trade and
agricultural trade.
The S Group’s business activities are organised into national chains.
SOK produces the shared service activities centrally. When the cooperatives’ good local market and customer knowledge is combined with
chain activities, an effective S Group business model is born.
The S Group’s national chain brands in the supermarket trade are
Prisma, S-market, Sale and Alepa, and in the department and specialty
store trade Sokos and Emotion.
In the service station and fuel trade, the ABC chain turned
12 years old last year.
The national hotel chains are the Sokos Hotels and the Radisson
Blu Hotels. On the restaurantside, the S Group’s offerings range from
well-known chain brands to individual restaurants around Finland.
Agrimarket is the national chain of the agricultural trade.
The S-Rautamarket and Multasormi chains serve co-op members
in the hardware and garden trade.
Kodin Terra is the S Group’s department store for living.
The chain has expanded strongly in recent years.
In addition to the domestic market, the S Group has international
business activities in Russia and the Baltic countries, where the
supermarket trade and the tourism and hospitality business are practiced. Three Sokos Hotels operate in St. Petersburg and one in Tallinn.
There are seven Prismas in Tallinn, six in Russia, two in Latvia’s Riga,
one in Lithuania’s Vilnius and one in Kaunas.
At the end of last year 2010, the S Group had 1 636 outlets in Finland. In addition there were ten outlets in the Baltics and nine in Russia.
Some 39 646 service field professionals work at the S Group.

The S Group’s retail sales
by business area 2010

S Group Retail Outlets as of 31 December 2010
Number *

(VAT 0%) EUR million
2 668

Prisma hypermarkets

S-Markets

2 868

S-Markets

428

Sale stores

437

Sale stores

247

Alepa stores

287

Alepa stores

82

Kodin Terra stores

116

Supermarket outlets

Prisma hypermarkets*

Other supermarket trade
Supermarket trade *

9
6 385

ABC service station stores

805

ABC unmanned stations

557

Number **

77

834

Kodin Terra stores

11

Other outlets *

11

Supermarket trade

856

ABC service station stores

108

108

37

ABC unmanned stations

77

280

ABC-Deli convenience stores

81

ABC-Deli convenience stores

17

17

Other service station stores

71

Other service station stores

15

6

ABC fuel oil service

Other unmanned stations

2

Other service station stores and fuel sales

0,1

Service station stores and fuel sales

1 553

Other unmanned stations
Service station stores and fuel trade

6
217

Sokos department stores

23***

Sokos department stores

296

Emotion speciality stores

22

Emotion speciality stores

22

Pukumies fashion stores

9

Pukumies fashion stores

27

Other speciality stores

Other consumer goods

7

Department stores and speciality stores

351

Tourism business *

241

Hospitality business *

510

Tourism and hospitality, total *

750

6

Department stores and speciality stores

60

Sokos Hotels

47

Radisson Blu Hotels

7

Holiday Club Spa Hotels

8

Other hotels

2

Automaa

186

Tourism outlets

Other car dealerships

298

Hospitality outlets

262

Motor trade and accessories

484

Tourism and hospitality

326

Agrimarkets

622

Car dealership

Machine Centres

160

Hardware trade

24

64

Agrimarkets

112

108

Machine Centres

9

Other agribusiness
Agricultural and hardware trade

18
932

Other hardware and agribusiness outlets

4

Hardware and agribusiness outlets

125

S Group retail sales total *
* including retail sales in neighbouring countries

9
10 465

783

42

Grain trade

Others

417

Other outlets

10

S GROUP TOTAL

1 636

* The number of outlets does not include restaurants,
stores or stations connected to other outlets.
** The number of outlets includes restaurants,
stores and stations connected to other outlets.
*** The number of outlets includes also the Sokos webstore of cosmetics.
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SOK Corporation 2006–2010
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
2010
2009
2008
2007
				
				
SOK CORPORATION
9 258
8 532
8 800
7 659
Revenue
65
72
76
78
Depreciation and impairment losses
49
63
48
69
Operating profit
7
-26
-1
0
Financial income and expenses (+/-)
41
37
46
58
Profit before taxes
34
37
46
50
Profit for the financial year
				
2 068
2 015
3 956
3 280
Total assets
702
684
658
710
Non-current assets
346
346
352
356
Inventories
1 020
966
2 946
2 483
Current assets
87
Assets held for sale				
567
536
504
522
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, total
20
20
18
16
Minority interest
12
16
23
13
Provisions
1 481
1 439
3 434
2 697
Liabilities
				
46
Liabilities associated
with assets held for sale
323
395
2 334
1 634
Interest-bearing liabilities
268
241
2 125
1 389
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments
54
154
209
245
Net interest-bearing liabilities
				
9 406
9 032
9 346
8 889
Personnel at 31.12
				
				
FAS
FAS
FAS
FAS
2010
2009
2008
2007
EUR Million
				
				
SOK
6 557
6 162
5 933
5 280
Sales (excl. VAT)
6 202
5 797
5 577
5 133
Sales to cooperative societies
				
Operating profit before
extraordinary
22
34
22
59
items, appropriations and taxes
8
24
13
45
Profit/loss for the financial year
				
1 196
1 191
970
863
Personnel at 31.12
				
COOPERATIVE				
SOCIETIES + SUBSIDIARIES
9 092				
Sales (excl. VAT)
10 113
9 928
8 840
Sales (incl. VAT)
31
32
34
36
Number of societies
1 933 587
1 854 419
1 797 653 1 707 274
Memberships of societies
EUR Million

IFRS
2006

6 636
63
32
-4
28
25
2 489
661
301
1 758
71
478
17
7
1 955
39
1 046
818
228
8 563

FAS
2006

4 316
4 191
6
11
761

8 073
39
1 621 060

30 240
28 732
28 389
27 010
Personnel at 31.12
				
				
S GROUP
10 465				
Retail sales (excl. VAT)
11 687
11 821
10 544
Retail sales (incl. VAT)
1 636
1 598
1 566
1 526
Outlets

25 482

39 646
37 764
37 735
Personnel at 31.12
				

34 045

35 899

CALCULATION OF KEY RATIOS
Net interest-bearing liabilities = Interest-bearing creditors - cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments
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9 777
1 488

SOK Corporation’s Corporate
Governance and Management System
Applicable Rules
SOK is a Finnish cooperative whose decision-making
and administration are subject to the provisions of the
Cooperatives Act, other regulations concerning the
operations of the business areas and SOK’s Statutes.
The operations of its subsidiaries are regulated, among
others, by the Limited Liability Companies Act, and
the operations of the entire Corporation are governed
by the investment and approval guidelines confirmed
by SOK’s Executive Board as well as the rules of procedure confirmed for different bodies.
The Securities Market Association approved a
Corporate Governance Code for listed companies
in Finland in June 2010. According to the Central
Chamber of Commerce, other nationally significant
institutions should also adhere to the Code to the
extent that it is possible considering their special characteristics. SOK adheres to the Corporate Governance
Code for listed companies to the extent that it is a
cooperative form of business and that it is relevant
considering its special characteristics.

Cooperative Meeting
The Cooperative Meeting is SOK’s highest decisionmaking body. Each cooperative enterprise is eligible
to send a maximum of five representatives to the
Cooperative Meeting, all of whom have the right to
address the meeting, but only one of whom has the
right to vote on behalf of the cooperative enterprise.
Exercising the members’ ownership rights is based on
the Cooperative’s Statutes.
The task of the Annual Cooperative Meeting is to
attend to the matters defined in the Statutes, such as
adoption of the financial statements, disposal of the
profit/loss, granting of release from liability, and the
election and remuneration of the Supervisory Board
and the auditors. An Extraordinary Cooperative
Meeting can be convened whenever necessary.

Supervisory Board
The Cooperatives Act does not require the setting up of
a Supervisory Board, but a Supervisory Board has been
set out in SOK’s Statutes as part of SOK Corporation’s
administrative model. The role of the Supervisory Board
is to represent the extensive grass-roots membership and
to act as a forum on which the Cooperative’s joint position on major strategic issues is defined. Its duty is to
determine overall policies and to safeguard the members’

interests. The Supervisory Board confirms all the main
strategic policies of S Group and SOK Corporation
based on a proposal from the Executive Board. Matters concerning the actual operational management are
handled by the Cooperative’s Executive Board and line
management.
The Supervisory Board oversees that the administration of the cooperative society and SOK Corporation complies with the law, the Statutes, and the
decisions of the Cooperative Meeting and the Supervisory Board, and that such administration is in the
cooperative society’s best interests. The Supervisory
Board approves and, if necessary, expels members of
the cooperative society and appoints and dismisses
the Chief Executive Officer and other members of the
Executive Board, and also decides on the remuneration of Executive Board members other than those
who are employed by the cooperative society.
Furthermore, the Supervisory Board decides on the
principles of cooperation for the S Group’s operations
and long-term plans.

The Supervisory Board
has confirmed rules of procedure
The chairman of the Supervisory Board and the two
vice chairmen comprise the Committee of Presiding
Officers, which assists the Supervisory Board in carrying out its duties. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
attends the meetings of the Committee of Presiding
Officers. In addition, the Committee of Presiding
Officers takes decisions on, among other things, the
CEO’s salary and other compensation.
The Supervisory Board has set up four permanent
committees: a Nomination Committee, Compensation Committee, Audit Committee and Cooperative
Committee.
The Cooperative Meeting elects the members of
the Supervisory Board on the basis of candidates put
forward by the cooperative enterprises. The Supervisory Board has 12–25 members. A person elected
to the Supervisory Board must be a Finnish citizen,
a member of a cooperative enterprise and under 65
years of age. The Cooperative Meeting decides on
the emoluments of the chairman, vice chairmen, and
members of the Supervisory Board as well as of the
auditors.
The Supervisory Board had 22 members and two personnel representatives in 2010. The Supervisory Board
met six times.
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The special fee for the chairman of the Supervisory
Board in 2010 was EUR 2,210 per month, and the vice
chairmen were paid a fee of EUR 800 per month.
The meeting fee for the chairmen and members of
the Supervisory Board in 2010 was EUR 420 for each
meeting and per day spent carrying out a specific assignment.

Executive Board
Election and Composition of the Executive Board
Under SOK’s Statutes, the Executive Board is composed of the Cooperative’s CEO, acting as chairman,
and of a minimum of three and a maximum of eight
other members. The Supervisory Board elects the
members of the Executive Board for a term of one
year on the basis of the Nomination Committee’s
proposal. According to the rules, a person elected to
the Supervisory Board must be a Finnish citizen and
under 65 years of age. The objective is to ensure sufficient rotation, but, on the other hand, continuity is
considered important.
Duties of the Executive Board
The Executive Board represents the cooperative society
and attends to its administration and the due arrangement of its operations within the framework of SOK
Corporation and in compliance with the law and SOK’s
Statutes. A special duty of the Executive Board is to
prepare strategic decisions for presentation to the Supervisory Board as well as to decide on the operating plans
of both SOK and its subsidiaries.
In addition, the Executive Board, upon a proposal
from the CEO, decides on setting up SOK’s Corporate
Management Team and on appointing its members and
their compensation. The Executive Board appoints a
Nomination Working Group, which prepares a proposal on the composition of the Boards of Directors
and Business Area Boards of SOK’s subsidiaries for
decision by the Executive Board. Rules of procedure
have been confirmed for the Executive Board.
SOK’s Executive Board has not established the committees mentioned in the Corporate Governance Code
for listed companies because they have been established
by the Supervisory Board. The Executive Board convenes as required and upon the chairman’s invitation,
and has a quorum when more than half of the members
are present. The Executive Board regularly evaluates its
work and procedures by carrying out a self-assessment
once a year.
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Meetings of the Executive Board
In 2010, SOK’s Executive Board had seven members,
six of whom were managing directors of cooperative
enterprises. SOK’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is
the chairman of the Executive Board. In 2010, the
vice chairman of the Executive Board was managing
director Taavi Heikkilä.
The Executive Board convened 14 times in 2010,
with an attendance rate of 96%. The total compensation received by the members of the Executive Board in
2010 was EUR 97,500. The CEO does not receive separate remuneration for his work on the Executive Board.
The chairmen of the Supervisory Board also regularly
attend the meetings of the Executive Board.

Chief Executive Officer
Contrary to the recommendation of the Corporate
Governance Code for listed companies, the Chief
Executive Officer employed by the Cooperative is
the chairman of SOK’s Executive Board. Because the
CEO is the chairman of the Executive Board, the
Supervisory Board appoints the CEO. The duty of
the CEO is to manage the operations of the Executive Board and the Cooperative in accordance with
legislation, SOK’s Statutes, and the decisions of the
governing bodies.
From 1 April 2010, Kuisma Niemelä was chairman
of SOK’s Executive Board and the CEO.
As Arto Hiltunen resigned from the position of
SOK’s Chief Executive Officer and the chairman of the
Executive Board for health reasons on 31 December
2009, Antti Sippola, Senior Vice President, Business
Units, served as deputy to the CEO between 1 January
and 31 March 2010. The duties of the chairman of the
Executive Board were attended to by the vice chairman
and managing director Taavi Heikkilä.

SOK’s Corporate Management Team
The duties of SOK’s Corporate Management Team
include assisting the CEO in the management of the
SOK Corporation and S Group. The Corporate Management Team coordinates and prepares, among other
things, the central proposals made to the Executive
Board. These proposals include business strategies, target levels, operating plans and budgets, as well as major
investment projects and disposals of S Group and SOK
Corporation. In addition, the Corporate Management
Team discusses operational matters concerning all of

SOK Corporation’s areas of responsibility. The pensionable age of the members of SOK’s Corporate Management Team is 60–62 years, determined in accordance
with personal executive contracts.
The Corporate Management Team has eight members and it convened 21 times in 2010. Salaries and
bonuses paid to the Corporate Management Team
totalled EUR 1,959,298.99, which includes fringe
benefits.

Subsidiaries
The chairman of the Board of Directors of a subsidiary
is primarily a member of the Corporate Management
Team and is employed by SOK and responsible for the
line of business in question. SOK’s Executive Board
nominates the members of the subsidiaries’ Boards of
Directors for the subsidiaries’ Annual General Meetings
to decide on. The members of the Boards of Directors
of subsidiaries are primarily elected from amongst the
employees of the S Group.
The Board of Directors of a subsidiary elects the
company’s managing director, but the election is
subject to approval by SOK’s Executive Board. The
managing directors of subsidiaries do not, as a rule,
have seats on the Board of Directors of the company
in question. The operations of the subsidiaries are
guided by the corporation-wide principles decided by
SOK’s Executive Board.

Chain Management
The chain management organisations manage and coordinate the different business and service operations
under the supervision of SOK’s Executive Board.
Each chain management organisation is made up of
a Business Area Board, a chain management unit,
and steering groups assisting them. The chain management organisation is the main organisation for
cooperation between the cooperative enterprises and
SOK Corporation.
The chain management organisation is responsible for steering, developing, and supervising chain
operations in its own area. It operates in cooperation
with the cooperative enterprises and different expert
organisations. The Business Area Board, within the
scope of its authority, takes the main decisions concerning its own area of responsibility and chains.
The Business Area Boards are comprised of the
managing directors of cooperative enterprises and
Corporate Management Team members who are

employed by SOK. SOK’s Executive Board decides
on the composition of the Business Area Boards.

Management Bonus Scheme
SOK Corporation’s entire personnel in Finland are
covered by a bonus scheme. SOK’s Executive Board
decides on the bonus scheme for the management
(the Corporate Management Team), and the Supervisory Board’s Committee of Presiding Officers decides
on the bonus scheme for the CEO. The bonus
scheme for the management is based on both shortterm and long-term objectives.
The Supervisory Board has set up a permanent
Compensation Committee whose task is to assess and
develop the compensation systems and principles for
the S Group’s top management and to issue recommendations on compensation to be submitted to SOK’s
decision-making governing bodies.

Audit
The Annual Cooperative Meeting elects an auditor to
audit the financial statements and consolidated financial
statements as well as the accounting records and administration of the cooperative society. The auditor must
have the legally required qualifications. The Cooperative
Meeting held on 23 April 2009 elected the following as
SOK’s regular auditors for 2010: Tomi Englund, M.Sc.
(Econ.), LL.M., Authorised Public Accountant (APA),
Helsinki; managing director Tapani Rotola-Pukkila,
APA, Kauhajoki; and Juhani Heiskanen, D.Sc. (Econ.),
APA, Huittinen. The deputy auditors elected were Ernst
& Young Oy and Eero Huusko, M.Sc. (Econ.), APA,
Kajaani. In accordance with the amendment to the
Statutes of the cooperative society, effective from 2010,
the auditors for 2011 are elected in the Cooperative
Meeting to be held in April.
In 2010, the auditing fees paid by the SOK Corporation companies in Finland, the Baltic countries,
and Russia amounted to EUR 1,269,664, and fees for
consultancy services amounted to EUR 17,860.

Internal Control, Internal Audit,
and Risk Management
SOK’s Executive Board is responsible for duly
organising the operations and corporate management
and for the legality and reliability of the accounting
records, financial management, and routine management. In addition, the Chief Executive Officer, SOK’s
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unit directors, and the Boards of Directors of the
subsidiaries and their Managing Directors carry out
the management and control of business activities
in day-to-day operations within their own areas of
responsibility.
The Corporation’s internal audit is carried out by
the internal control functions of SOK and its subsidiaries. SOK’s Executive Board reviews the annual
plan for SOK’s internal audit every year. The internal
audit function regularly reports on the findings of the
internal audit to the CEO, Executive Board, and the
Supervisory Board’s Audit Committee.
SOK’s Executive Board has confirmed a risk
management policy for identifying and analysing
risks across the Corporation and for defining and
determining risk management measures as part of
operational planning.������������������������������
The key risks in the Corpora�����������������������������
tion’s operations and strategic objectives are identified on the basis of the analyses. The management of
SOK Corporation’s subsidiaries and units reviews and
approves each unit’s major risks and the defined risk
management measures and is responsible for implementing these measures.
Precautions have been taken for property, lossof-profits and liability damage risks of operations
through measures such as contingency plans and
insurance. SOK Corporation’s risk management
expert organisation directs and develops risk management in the S Group and provides support for risk
management. SOK’s internal audit function assesses
the sufficiency and functioning of the risk management processes.

Financial Reporting
SOK Corporation publishes its financial statements
in February and its interim report for six months in
August. Furthermore, reports on the development
of the S Group’s retail sales are published quarterly.
SOK Corporation’s Annual Report is published
at the Annual Cooperative Meeting in April.

Communications
Up-to-date information and other communications
concerning the SOK Corporation and S Group are
available on the Group’s website at www.s-kanava.fi.
SOK Reputation and Responsibility unit is responsible for producing and updating the information.
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SOK Supervisory Board

Otto Mikkonen (born 1949)
Joensuu
M.Sc. (Tech.)
Chairman 2002–
Former Managing Director, KM-Yhtymä Oy
Chairman, Supervisory Board,
Pohjois-Karjalan Osuuskauppa
Member of the Supervisory Board 2001–
Retiring in 2013
Simo Kutinlahti (born 1957)
Keuruu
Farmer, MBA
First Vice Chairman 23.4.2009–
Chairman, Supervisory Board, Keskimaa Osk
Member of the Supervisory Board 1998–
Retiring in 2013
Esko Hakala (born 1952)
Kajaani
Second Vice Chairman 23.4.2009–
Managing Director, Osuuskauppa Maakunta
Member of the SOK Executive Board
2003–2007
Member of the Supervisory Board 1996–
2003, 2008–
Retiring in 2012
Jorma Bergholm (born 1954)
Helsinki
Managing Director
Helsingin Työväenyhdistys ry
Chairman, Supervisory Board,
Helsinki Cooperative Society Elanto
Member of the Supervisory Board 2005–
Retiring in 2011
Marcus H. Borgström (born 1946)
Helsinki
M.Sc. (Agr. and For.)
Chairman, Supervisory Board,
Andelslaget Varuboden
Member of the Supervisory Board 2004–
Retiring in 2013
Heikki Hämäläinen (born 1966)
Mikkeli
M.Sc. (Econ.)
Managing Director, Osuuskauppa Suur-Savo
Member of the Supervisory Board 2007–
Retiring in 2012

Pentti Hämäläinen (born 1954)
Hamina
Advocate
Chairman, Supervisory Board,
Osuuskauppa Ympyrä
Member of the Supervisory Board 2008–
Retiring in 2012

Ahti Manninen (born 1950)
Lappeenranta
Managing Director,
Etelä-Karjalan Osuuskauppa
Member of the Supervisory Board 1989–
1991, 2000–
Retiring in 2012

Timo Sonninen (born 1948)
Iisalmi
Entrepreneur
Chairman, Supervisory Board,
Osuuskauppa PeeÄssä
Member of the Supervisory Board 1985–
Retiring in 2011

Heikki Ikonen (born 1943)
Nurmes
Farmer
Chairman, Supervisory Board,
Jukolan Osuuskauppa
Member of the Supervisory Board 1985–
Retiring in 2011

Timo Mäki-Ullakko (born 1963)
Tampere
M.Sc. (Econ.)
Managing Director, Pirkanmaan
Osuuskauppa
Member of the Supervisory Board 2008–
Retiring in 2011

Sinikka Kelhä (born 1964)
Rauma
Advocate
Chairman, Supervisory Board,
Osuuskauppa Keula
Member of the Supervisory Board
1.10.2010–
Retiring in 2011

Arto Piela (born 1960)
Porvoo
LL. M.
Managing Director,
Osuuskauppa Osla Handelslag
Member of the Supervisory Board 2005–
Retiring in 2012

Hanna Valtari (born 1948)
Seinäjoki
Training Director
Seinäjoki Vocational Education Centre - Sedu
Chairman, Supervisory Board, EteläPohjanmaan Osuuskauppa
Member of the Supervisory Board 2001–
2003, 2006–
Retiring in 2013

Jukka Kihlman (born 1954)
Kuusamo
eMBA
Managing director, Koillismaan Osuuskauppa
Member of the Supervisory Board 23.4
2009–
Retiring in 2012
Kimmo Koivisto (born 1956)
Salo
Farmer
Chairman, Supervisory Board,
Suur-Seudun Osuuskauppa SSO
Member of Supervisory Board 2003–2004
and 2007–
Retiring in 2013
Maija-Liisa Lindqvist (born 1951)
Lahti
Training Planner
Chairman, Supervisory Board,
Osuuskauppa Hämeenmaa
Member of the Supervisory Board 1997–
Retiring in 2011

Jouko Pihlajamaa (born 1948)
Pietarsaari
Engineer
Managing Director, Oy Elkamo Ab
Chairman, Supervisory Board,
Osuuskauppa KPO
Member of the Supervisory Board 2009–
Retiring in 2011
Matti Pikkarainen (born 1953)
Oulu
Th.D., Dean
Director of Christian Education
Oulu Evangelical Lutheran Parishes
Chairman, Supervisory Board, Osuuskauppa
Arina
Member of the Supervisory Board 2004–
Retiring in 2013
Heikki Santavuo (born 1953)
Pori
M.Sc. (Econ.)
Financial Manager
Member of Executive Board,
Satakunnan Osuuskauppa
Member of the Supervisory Board 2009–
Retiring in 2012

Matti Vanto (born 1945)
Raisio
LL. M.
Lawyer, City of Naantali
Chairman, Supervisory Board, Turun
Osuuskauppa 1991–2010
Member of the Supervisory Board 1998–
Retiring in 2013
Jouko Vehmas (born 1956)
Kouvola
M.Sc. (Econ.)
Managing Director, Osuuskauppa Ympäristö
Member of the SOK Executive Board
2001–2003
Member of the Supervisory Board 1994–
2000, 2004–
Retiring in 2013
Personnel Representatives
Outi Hohti (born 1978)
Helsinki
M.Sc. (Agr. and For.)
Development Manager
SOK Reputation and Responsibility
Member of the Supervisory Board 2009–
Retiring in 2011
Iiris Merimaa (born 1962)
Helsinki
Secretary
SOK Facility Services and Risk Management
Member of the Supervisory Board 2009–
Retiring in 2011
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SOK
Executive Board 2011

Harri Koponen (born 1964)
M.Sc. (Econ.), Managing Director,
Turun Osuuskauppa
Member of the SOK
Executive Board 2009–
With the S Group since 1989
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Kuisma Niemelä (born 1958)
SOK’s Chief Executive Officer
MA
Member of the SOK Executive
Board 2002–2007, 2010–
With the S Group since 1983

Taavi Heikkilä (born 1962)
M.Sc. (Econ.), Managing Director,
Osuuskauppa Hämeenmaa
Member of the SOK
Executive Board 2007–
With the S Group since 1987

Esko Jääskeläinen (born 1956)
M.Sc. (Econ.), Managing Director,
Suur-Seudun Osuuskauppa SSO
Member of the SOK
Executive Board 2011–
With the S Group since 1980

Arttu Laine (born 1970)
M.Sc. (Econ.), Managing Director,
Osuuskauppa KPO
Member of the SOK
Executive Board 2008–
With the S Group since 1995

Antti Määttä (born 1966)
M.Sc. (Econ.), Managing Director,
Keskimaa Osk
Member of the SOK
Executive Board 2008–
With the S Group since 1991

Matti Niemi (born 1955)
M.Sc. (Econ.), Managing Director,
Helsinki Cooperative Society Elanto
Member of the SOK
Executive Board 2007–
With the S Group since 1982
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SOK Corporation’s
Corporate Management Team 2011

Kuisma Niemelä (born 1958)
SOK’s Chief Executive Officer
MA
Member of the SOK Executive
Board 2002–2007, 2010–
With the S Group since 1983

Jari Annala (born 1964)
Executive Vice President, CFO
SOK Finance and Administration
M.Sc. (Econ.)
With the S Group since 1989

Suso Kolesnik (born 1961)
Executive Vice President
SOK Reputation and
Responsibility
M.Soc.Sc
With the S Group since 2003

Vesa Kyllönen (born 1968)
Executive Vice President
SOK Grocery Trade, Hospitality
Business, Fuel Sales
M.Sc. (Econ.)
With the S Group since 1995

Leena Laitinen (born 1970)
Executive Vice President
SOK Consumer Goods
M.Sc. (Econ.)
With the S Group since 1995

Harri Miettinen (born 1962)
Executive Vice President
SOK Customer Relationships
and Information, M.Sc. (Econ.),
With the S Group 1986–1987,
1997–

Leena Olkkonen (born 1962)
Executive Vice President,
SOK Human Resources
M.Sc. (Econ.)
With the S Group since 2007

Risto Pyykönen (born 1951)
Executive Vice President
SOK
M.Sc. (Econ.)
With the S Group
1977–30 April 2011

Antti Sippola (born 1955)
Executive Vice President
SOK Travel Industry, Automotive
Trade, SOK’s Business
M.Sc. (Econ.), Deputy CEO
With the S Group since 1980

Seppo Kuitunen (born 1961)
Executive Vice President
Legal Affairs
LL.B.
With the S Group since 2005
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SOK Corporation’s Organisation 2011

Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Kuisma Niemelä

Executive Vice President
Ms. Suso Kolesnik
Reputation and Responsibility

Director
Mr. Markku Kemppainen
Internal Audit

Executive
Vice President
Mr. Vesa Kyllönen

Executive
Vice President
Ms. Leena Laitinen

Executive
Vice President
Ms. Leena Olkkonen

Executive
Vice President, CFO
Mr. Jari Annala

Executive
Vice President
Mr. Harri Miettinen

Executive
Vice President
Mr. Antti Sippola

Grocery Trade

Consumer Goods

Human Resources

Finance and
Administration

Customer
Relationships
and Information

Travel Industry

Hospitality Business
Fuel Sales
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SOK’s Business
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Executive board report on operations

Overall operating environment in retail in 2010
The Finnish national economy started seeing rapid growth in
2010. After the 8.2 per cent decline in the GNP in 2009, production started to increase in the second quarter of the year. Recovery
in the Finnish economy was brisk towards the end of the year in
particular. The GNP increased by approximately 3 per cent from
the previous year, supported by residential building investments
and private consumption.
Private consumption started to grow after the recession as early
as the end of 2009. Several factors contributed to the increase in
consumption. Reduction in the value added tax of food at the
end of 2009 significantly increased the real purchasing power of
households. Most of this positive impact was felt last year. Wages
and salaries in Finland increased by 2.7 per cent during January–October last year. The increase in the wage and salary level
was clearly higher than the increase in consumer prices, which
supported growth of the purchasing power. The average inflation
for the year did not exceed 1.2 per cent. Employment developed
positively during the year. The improved employment increased
both the total wages paid in Finland and households confidence in
the future. Interest rates remained at a low level, which benefited
households.
The level of consumer confidence was good throughout the
year. Confidence improved steadily towards the end of the year,
but the news about debt problems in the euro region temporarily
weakened it in December. In January, confidence returned to a
level above the long-term average.
According to Statistics Finland, the value of revenue from retail,
excluding the automotive trade, increased by 3.7 per cent by the
end of November. Viewed by business area, the development of
sales was not uniform. Revenue in the grocery trade increased by
4.1 per cent by the end of November. In the department store
trade, the increase in revenue was only 0.2 per cent. Revenue from
automobile sales (retail) increased by as much as 10.6 per cent.
The number of new passenger cars registered during the year was
23.6 per cent higher than last year.
Among the more specific retail areas, revenue in fashion
increased by 3.8 per cent by the end of October. The household
appliance and consumer electronics trade grew 4.0 per cent. Retail
sales increased by 7.7 per cent. The positive development in the
revenue of fuels, or 4.6 per cent, was solely attributable to the
increased price level.
The operating environment of the agricultural trade varied.
Grain prices fluctuated significantly during the year. Grain harvest
decreased by a third from the previous year. This was partly due to
the reduced area of land used for cultivation. Demand for agricultural machinery continued to be slow during the first months of
the year, but towards the end of the year, demand for machinery
and other capital goods in agriculture started to recover gradually
from the recession.
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Hotels in Finland recorded 14.2 million overnight stays by the
end of November. The number of overnight stays increased by 4.3
per cent. Sales in off-licence restaurants increased by 0.5 per cent
by the end of September. Growth picked up clearly in the third
quarter.
Changes in the Group structure
Changes during the period
Business acquisitions, establishments, and reorganisations
Intrade Partners Oy merged with Inex Partners Oy in February.
The objective is to streamline the division of work between chain
management and the procurement companies.
In February, SOK established Kiinteistö Oy Lempäälän Terminaali.
In June, SOK established S-Verkkopalvelut Oy, which launched
its operations in September. SOK’s electronic services control unit
was transferred to S-Verkkopalvelut through a business deal in
September. The online stores established earlier for music and the
S Group gift cards became a part of the newly established company. In November 2010, an online store for beauty was opened.
S-Verkkopalvelut Oy manages the development of electronic
services in the S Group.
The business name of Automaa Oy was changed to SOK Autokauppa Oy in November.
Business sales and discontinued operations
SOK sold the remaining 49 per cent of Kilon Logistiikkakeskus
Oy logistics centre to S-ryhmän Logistiikkakeskukset Oy in March
2010. Fifty-one per cent had been sold in December 2009.
SOK sold the entire share capital of Maan Auto Oy to Veho
Group Oy Ab in May. The sale comprised the import of Peugeot
-vehicles, spare part operations, and vehicle PDI functions in
Hanko.
In June, SOK sold the shares of the associated company TuuliWatti Oy to S-Voima Oy, which was founded in May. S-Voima Oy
brings together S Group’s projects related to electricity procurement. S-Voima is owned by SOK and the regional cooperative enterprises. SOK’s ownership share in the company is 14.9 per cent.
In December, SOK sold the share capital of KOy Uudenkaupungin City.
Changes after the financial period
Sokotel sold the operations of the Radisson Blu Marina Palace
hotel to Turun Osuuskauppa cooperative enterprise. The deal was
completed on 1 February 2011.
Sokotel has agreed on selling the business operations of the
Saariselkä, Kuusamo, Vuokatin Katinkulta and Tampere spa hotels
to Holiday Club Resorts Oy on 1 March 2011. The prerequisite

of the finalisation of the deal is the consent of the owners of the
properties, or the CapMan funds and Insurance Company Fennia
Life, to re-lease the properties.
SOK Corporation’s revenue by segment
The revenue of the SOK Corporation in 2010 totalled EUR 9,276
million, up 7.8 per cent from the previous year. The increase of
EUR 675 million in revenue is mainly attributable to the growth
in the procurement companies, the EDI invoicing related to the
cooperative enterprises’ goods procurement in the Services Business segment, and especially in the supermarket trade in the St.
Petersburg area. International operations accounted for 2.9 per
cent of the revenue, or EUR 267 million.
SOK Corporation’s revenue by segment
EUR million
1.1.–31.12.
2010
224

Supermarket Trade
Tourism and Hospitality
Business
Automotive Trade and
Accessories
Agricultural Trade
Procurement
Services Business
Elimination of internal items
for the Retail and Wholesale
Business 1)
Revenue from the Retail
and Wholesale Business
Revenue from Banking 2)
Elimination of items between
the Retail and Wholesale
Business and Banking
SOK Corporation total

EUR million ± previous
1.1.–31.12.
year
2009
%
167
34.2

264

253

4.1

203
889
5 847
6 613

227
898
4 873
6,216

-10.2
-1.0
20.0
6.4

-4 764

-4 053

17.5

9 276
-

8 580
23

8.1
-

9 276

-2
8 601

7.8

1)

The eliminations include the eliminations of business
transactions between segments in the Retail and Wholesale
Business. The eliminations between the segments include
EUR 4,495 million of the Corporation’s internal EDI invoicing
(EUR 3,795 million).

2)

S-Bank Ltd and its subsidiary S-Asiakaspalvelu Oy were
consolidated in the Corporation as a subsidiary during
1 January–30 June 2009, and as an associated company as
of 1 July 2009.

Revenue from the Retail and Wholesale Business
Supermarket Trade
The Supermarket Trade includes operations in Estonia, Latvia,
Lithuania, and Russia. In Estonia, there are five Prisma stores
in Tallinn and the stores in Narva and Tartu, which opened at
the end of 2010. There are two Prisma stores in Riga, Latvia. In
Lithuania, there is one Prisma store in Vilnius and another one in
Kaunas, which opened in December 2010. Six Prisma supermarkets operate in St. Petersburg. The revenue of the Supermarket
Trade was EUR 224 million, an increase of 34.2 per cent. The
increase in revenue was due to both the expansion of the network
and the market recovery.
Tourism and Hospitality Business
In 2010, Tourism and Hospitality Business in the SOK Corporation was operated by Sokotel Oy in Finland, AS Sokotel in
Estonia, and OOO Sokotel in Russia.
Sokotel Oy’s revenue was EUR 226 million, up 1.9 per cent
from the previous year. The volume of sales in the hotel business
recovered well at the end of the year. The positive impact on the
price level will be visible after a longer delay.
In Tallinn, the revenue of AS Sokotel, operating the Sokos Hotel
Viru hotel and restaurant business, increased by 2.6 per cent from
the previous year, to EUR 13 million.
SOK Corporation’s Tourism and Hospitality Business was
operated by OOO Sokotel in St. Petersburg. There are three Sokos
Hotels in St. Petersburg. The company’s revenue totalled EUR 25
million, representing growth of 44.3 per cent. The boost experienced in the domestic tourism in Russia in particular increased
growth.
Automotive Trade and Accessories
Revenue from SOK’s Automotive Trade and Accessories decreased
from the previous year since the revenue of the sold import
company was included in the figures for the beginning of the year
only. However, revenue from Automotive Trade and Accessories
was at the targeted level, and the comparable growth in revenue
was approximately 10 per cent, considering the impact of the 2009
vehicle tax change. Purchases by customer-owners increased by 15
per cent compared to the previous year. In other words, the relative
share of purchases by customer-owners grew significantly. Approximately EUR 1.1 million in bonuses were paid to customer-owners.
The total market in new passenger cars was 111,968 vehicles,
showing a increase of 23.6 per cent compared to the previous year.
The market share of Ford passenger cars was 8.2 per cent; Peugeot
passenger cars made up 3.7 per cent of the market. The market
share of both makes was slightly lower than in 2009. The total
market in vans in 2010 was 11,045 vehicles, an increase of 27.3
per cent compared to the previous year. The market for trade-in
cars in 2010 slightly exceeded the previous year’s level.
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Agricultural Trade
Revenue of the Agricultural Trade, including the retail and
wholesale of building supplies, decreased by 1.0 per cent, to EUR
889 million, from the previous year. The comparable revenue
was at the previous year’s level, taking into account the effect of
the hardware store business restructuring which took place in
Hankkija-Maatalous Oy during the financial period. In 2010, the
hardware product range was reduced in 23 outlets and the use of
the S-Rautamarket chain logos was discontinued. Demand for agricultural machinery continued to be slow during the first months
of the year, but towards the end of the year, demand for machinery
and other capital goods in agriculture started to recover gradually
from the recession. The tractor market remained at the previous
year’s level, but thanks to the positive market share development,
the number of John Deere tractors sold increased.
Procurement
The Procurement Business comprises SOK’s procurement and
logistics services for groceries and consumer goods and the logistics
services for speciality products by Inex Partners Oy, the procurement and logistics services for HoReCa business by Meira Nova
Oy, and fuel procurement by the North European Oil Trade Oy.
Inex Partners Oy’s revenue was EUR 3,404 million. The increase
in comparable revenue from the previous year was 9.2 per cent.
The increase in revenue is attributable to S Group’s successful retail
operations. In terms of groceries, the increase in Inex’s comparable revenue compared to the previous year was 8.2 per cent. In
consumer goods, the increase in Inex’s sales was 13.1 per cent.
The favourable growth in consumer goods was also boosted by the
expansion of the network (the Kodin Terra chain).
Meira Nova Oy’s revenue of EUR 318 million was better than
expected, showing an increase of 3.6 per cent compared to the
previous year. Sales in the entire HoReCa sector increased by approximately 1.6 per cent. Sales to the S Group amounted to 43.0
per cent of the total sales and showed an increase of 2.2 per cent
compared to the previous year.
The fuel trade revenue of the fuel procurement company
North European Oil Trade Oy was EUR 2,031 million. Growth
compared to the previous year was 26.8 per cent, primarily due
to the increase in global market prices. Sales volume in litres also
increased in 2010.
Services Business
Revenue from the Services Business was EUR 6,613 million.
The Services Business includes the EDI invoicing of the coopera50
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tive enterprises’ goods procurement as well as the revenue from
services produced by SOK for the S Group’s units. EDI invoicing
amounted to EUR 6,337 million, showing an increase of EUR
416 million (7.0 %) over the previous year.
Associated companies’ business development
Among the associated companies engaging in business operations
within the SOK Corporation, the most significant was S Group’s
own bank, S-Bank Ltd. At the beginning of the year, S-Bank
had 2.176 million customers. The number of S-Bank’s customers
increased by an average of 12,000 customers per month. At the
end of the year, the number of customers was approximately 2.319
million.
S-Bank issued an average of 24,000 new S-Etukortti bonus
cards with Visa per month. At the end of the year, the number
of S-Etukortti bonus cards issued with Visa was approximately
664,178. The number of S-Etukortti Visa users increased by more
than 70 percent during the year.
S-Bank signed approximately 137,000 new banking ID agreements for electronic services. At the end of the year, S-Bank’s
electronic services had 932,949 users. Approximately 39,000
S-Bank customers had started using S-Bank’s NetPosti service by
the end of the year.
At the end of the year, the amount of deposits in S-Bank was
almost at the same level as at the beginning of the year. The total
amount of funds on deposit in S-Bank decreased by EUR 5.5 million during the year. The total funds on deposit at year-end were
nearly EUR 2,452.0 million.
Deposits by private customers increased by EUR 33.5 million.
At the end of the year, the share of private customers’ deposits
of the total funds on deposit was 93.3 per cent, or nearly EUR
2,290.0 million. The total funds of corporate deposit at year-end
were nearly EUR 162.1 million.
The amount of credit issued by S-Bank nearly doubled. At
the end of the year, the total amount of outstanding credit was
EUR 299.0 million, of which EUR 210.9 million were to private
customers. The increase in the amount of outstanding credit was
boosted by the credit customers transferred to S-Bank from Citibank in March.
S-Bank’s financial performance was excellent in 2010. The result
was EUR 12.4 million. The associated companies’ joint effect on
earnings in the consolidated financial statements in 2010 was EUR
7.7 million (EUR 1.8 million).

Financial performance
SOK Corporation’s result before taxes was EUR 32.1 million
positive (EUR 16.8 million).The result of continuous operations
before taxes was EUR 41.2 million positive (EUR 37.1 million).
The improved performance was partly attributable to the powerful
streamlining and cost-saving programme launched in the previous
year, as well as the decrease in net financing expenses.
The Corporation’s return on capital employed, including the
central business operations related to financing and procurement
operations and serving the cooperative enterprises, was 3.6 per
cent (2.1 per cent).
Impairment losses on non-current assets amounted to less than
EUR 0.1 million (EUR 5.6 million). SOK Corporation’s financial
income and expenses amounted to EUR -7.4 million (EUR -26.0
million).
Valuations in accordance with the Finnish accounting legislation
were applied in the calculation of SOK Corporation’s operational
result.
SOK Corporation’s operational result by segment
EUR million
EUR million
1.1.–31.12.
1.1.–31.12.
2010
2009
Supermarket Trade
-16.9
-20.1
Tourism and Hospitality Business
-6.1
-24.3
Automotive Trade and Accessories
-5.3
-13.8
-8.7
4.0
Agricultural Trade
Procurement
18.3
12.6
Services Business
10.9
17.0
Elimination of internal items for
-2.2
-5.4
the Retail and Wholesale Business 1)
Operational result from the
Retail and Wholesale Business
-10.0
-30.0
Operational result from Banking
6.2
4.3
-3.7
-25.6
SOK Corporation total
1)

The eliminations include the eliminations of business
transactions between segments.

SOK Corporation’s operational result, EUR -3.7 million, is reconciled with SOK Corporation’s result before taxes, EUR +32.1 million. Items not included in the operational result include capital
gains and losses, other operating income and expenses, and impair-

ment losses. In 2010, capital gains and losses amounted to EUR
+33.3 million, other operating income and expenses amounted to
EUR -0.1 million, and other items were EUR +2.7 million.
Operational result from the Retail and
Wholesale Business
Supermarket Trade
The Supermarket Trade includes supermarket trade in the Baltic
countries and Russia. The operational result of Supermarket Trade
was better than expected and better than in the previous year. This
was attributable to both the expansion of the network and the
market recovery.
Tourism and Hospitality Business
The operational result of Sokotel Oy, operating Tourism and
Hospital Business in Finland, was better than in the previous year
due to the improved economic situation and the development and
streamlining projects, but fell short of the target.
The operational result of AS Sokotel, engaging in Tourism and
Hospitality Business in Tallinn, was at the previous year’s level.
The operational result of OOO Sokotel, engaging in Tourism and
Hospitality Business in St. Petersburg, was better than planned and
also better than in the previous year.
Automotive Trade and Accessories
The operational result of Automotive Trade and Accessories
continued to show a loss but was significantly better than in the
previous year.
Agricultural Trade
The operational result of the Hankkija-Maatalous Group did not
reach the target level and showed a loss. The weakened result was
significantly affected by the hardware store business restructuring
that was decided on and completed during the financial year.
Procurement
Inex Partners Oy’s operational result was better than planned and
better than in the previous year due to the increase in volume and
the successful management of expenses. Due to the increase in
sales and the effective management of fixed costs and net financing
costs, Meira Nova Oy’s operational result was significantly better
than budgeted and at the previous year’s level. The operational result of the fuel procurement company North European Oil Trade
Oy was better than budgeted and than in the previous year.
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Services Business
The operational result of the Services Business was weaker than the
year before but clearly better than planned.
Operational result from Banking
The operational result of Banking was EUR 6.2 million (EUR 4.3
million). As of 1 July 2009, S-Bank’s result as an associated company has been reported as the operational result in Banking. In
January–June 2009, S-Bank Ltd was consolidated with the SOK
Corporation as a subsidiary.
SOK’s operations
SOK is the parent company of SOK Corporation. In accordance
with its statutes, SOK acts as the central organisation of the S
Group, promoting and developing the operations of the cooperative enterprises and other organisations belonging to the S Group,
and managing and supervising the Group’s overall resources for
maximum efficiency while also monitoring the operations and seeing to the interests of the S Group and its various segments.
SOK is in charge of the S Group’s strategic management. Its
tasks are to provide the S Group companies with services in chain
management, customer-ownership and marketing, as well as other
group and corporate services and development activities related
to these services and other activities of the S Group. Services
central to the S Group operations also include procurement, rental
services, and assortment and invoicing services for goods delivered
directly from manufacturers to the chain units.
Through its nationwide and regional subsidiaries, SOK offers a
wide spectrum of services to its customer-owners in the S Group.
Furthermore, through its subsidiaries, SOK engages in supermarket trade and the hotel and restaurant business in the Baltic area
and St. Petersburg.
SOK’s revenue was EUR 6,591 million, up 6.5 per cent from
the previous year. Growth in revenue is mainly attributable to the
increase in EDI invoicing related to the cooperative enterprises’
goods procurement.
SOK’s operating profit was EUR 9.5 million, compared to EUR
23.1 million in 2009. SOK’s surplus before extraordinary items
was EUR 22.0 million, compared to EUR 30.3 million the previous year.
Investments and divestments
SOK Corporation’s non-current asset procurement totalled EUR
98.8 million in 2010 (EUR 103.5 million). Significant investments included the Supermarket Trade investing in the St. Peters52
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burg area and the Baltic countries. North European Oil Trade Oy
purchased the fuel procurement operations from Oy Shell Ab. Real
estate and information system investments were also made, as well
as tourism and hospitality business investments in Finland.
The sales of non-current assets amounted to EUR 78.4 million
(EUR 91.3 million). The most significant divestments were the
sale of Maan Auto Oy’s shares to Veho Group Oy Ab, and the sale
of the remaining 49 per cent of the shares of Kilon Logistiikkakeskus Oy to S-ryhmän Logistiikkakeskukset Oy.
Financing
SOK Corporation’s liquidity remained good throughout the year.
Liquid cash assets and money market investments amounted to
EUR 268.3 million at the end of the year (previous year: EUR
241.4 million). In addition, the Corporation had EUR 305.0
million of undrawn binding credit facilities, all of which were
long-term. SOK Corporation’s interest-bearing net liabilities stood
at EUR 54.5 million at the turn of the financial period (previous year: EUR 173.9 million). Gearing was 9.3 per cent on 31
December 2010 (previous year 31.3%), and SOK Corporation’s
equity ratio was 28.9 per cent (previous year 28.0%).
Staff
SOK Corporation’s average number of personnel, converted to
full-time equivalents, was 8,442 people during the review period
(8,574).
At the end of 2010, SOK Corporation’s number of personnel
was 9,406, of whom 1,196 (12.7 per cent) were employed by
SOK and 8,210 (87.3 per cent) by the subsidiaries. The number of
personnel increased by 374 people (4.1 per cent) from the previous
year. The number of employees working abroad was 2,276. During
the year, the increase in the number of personnel was mainly due
to the growing supermarket trade in neighbouring countries.
SOK management and auditors
As of 1 April 2010, Kuisma Niemelä was SOK’s chairman of the
Board of Directors and CEO. As Arto Hiltunen resigned from the
position of SOK’s Chief Executive Officer on 31 December 2009
due to health reasons, Antti Sippola, Senior Vice President, Business Units, acted as the deputy to the CEO between 1 January and
31 March 2010. The duties of the Chairman of SOK’s Executive
Board were attended to by the Vice-Chairman of the Board Taavi
Heikkilä, Managing Director of Osuuskauppa Hämeenmaa cooperative enterprise, between 1 January and 31 March 2010.
In addition to the CEO, the Executive Board in 2010 consisted

of the following members: Managing Director Taavi Heikkilä,
Managing Director Harri Koponen, Managing Director Arttu
Laine, Managing Director Antti Määttä, Managing Director Matti
Niemi, and Managing Director Kimmo Simberg.
The auditors in 2010 were APA Tomi Englund, APA Juhani
Heiskanen, and APA Tapani Rotola-Pukkila.
SOK’s Supervisory Board appointed the same members to
SOK’s Executive Board for the term starting on 1 January 2011 as
in 2010, with the exception of outgoing Kimmo Simberg. Managing Director Esko Jääskeläinen was appointed a new member of
the Executive Board for 2011.
Assisting SOK’s CEO Kuisma Niemelä in the strategic management of the SOK Corporation and the S Group was SOK’s Corporate Management Team, which in 2010 comprised the following
members: Antti Sippola, Senior Vice President, SOK Business
Units, and Deputy CEO; Jari Annala, Senior Vice President, SOK
Finance and Administration; Suso Kolesnik, Senior Vice President,
Communications and Publications; Harri Miettinen, Senior Vice
President, SOK Development; Leena Olkkonen, Senior Vice
President, SOK Human Resources; Risto Pyykönen, Senior Vice
President, Chain Management of the S Group’s Businesses and
Procurement; and Markku Viljanen, Senior Vice President, SOK
Legal Affairs (until 30 June 2010). After Viljanen retired, Seppo
Kuitunen, General Counsel, worked as secretary to the Corporate
Management Team. As Risto Pyykönen will retire in 2011, Managing Director Vesa Kyllönen and Director Leena Laitinen were
appointed the new members of the Corporate Management Team
as of the beginning of 2011.
Risks and uncertainties
SOK Corporation applies a risk management policy approved by
the Executive Board, which defines the principles and implementation of the Corporation’s risk management. The goal of risk
management is to support the strategic and operative business
objectives. Risk management within the SOK Corporation is comprehensive and integrated in the management process and system.
In 2010, the main focus in the development of SOK Corporation’s
risk management was in the determination of the 2011–2015 risk
management strategy, implementation of a calculation method
for willingness to take risks and ability to bear risks, management
of crises relating to product safety, and risk management practices
related to investments and projects.
Significant investments and projects in which risk management
was a central focus included the development of online trade,
planning and implementation of a new logistics centre for consumer goods, and investments in neighbouring countries.

A risk analysis was carried out as part of SOK Corporation’s strategy update. The most significant risk areas and their management
are briefly described below.
The management of overall resources is key to efficient operations and uniform operating models. Several projects have been
launched in the SOK Corporation in order to ensure this. For
example, in order to safeguard the resources for and management
of development projects, a development portfolio and project
management model is being defined in the SOK Corporation.
In order to maintain the competitiveness of business operations,
it will also be important in the future to be able to commit skilled
experts and leaders who will ensure an ongoing development of
the services. A model of total remuneration, development of supervisory work, and competence and change management are ways to
address this challenge.
SOK Corporation has expanded its operations to the Baltic
countries and Russia in recent years. These markets offer plenty
of opportunities, but there is also uncertainty concerning the
development of the operations. The business operations in
neighbouring countries are supported by developing international
competence and regular risk monitoring. In SOK Corporation’s
operations in Finland, safeguarding the competitiveness and development of concepts is being monitored on an ongoing basis.
In 2011, the near-term risks and uncertainties relate to the
development of the performance of SOK Corporation’s business
operations. Significant investments and benefits expected from
them are associated with risks that may affect the Corporation’s
financial result.
SOK Corporation’s financing and management of financing
risks is centralised within SOK’s Treasury unit. The Group has a
financing policy, financing strategy, and risk management instructions established by SOK’s Executive Board. They define the
principles of managing financial risk and the permissible maximum amounts for financial risks. In addition, numerical targets
have been set for the different sub-areas of financing in order to
ensure that financing is sufficient, balanced, and affordable under
all circumstances. The management of financial risks and price
risks of goods are described in greater detail in the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
Environmental risks associated with SOK Corporation’s business
operations have been identified and analysed by business area. The
obligations related to mitigating climate change, improving energy
efficiency, and increasing renewable sources of energy include both
risks and opportunities for S Group’s business operations. The
most significant environmental considerations and related measSOK Corporation Annual Report 2010
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ures are described in S Group’s corporate responsibility report,
which will be published on the S-kanava website (www.s-kanava.fi)
in the spring of 2011. The most central key figures depicting SOK
Corporation’s business operations as well as financial position
and result are presented in the key figure table in the Notes to the
financial statements.
Outlook for the current year
Economic growth in Finland is likely to continue above the average growth of the euro region. The conditions for continuing export-driven growth are good. Our most important export markets
are growing strongly, and the weakening of the euro strengthens
our competitiveness. The debt problems in the euro region pose a
risk to the Finnish economy as well.
Private consumption is likely to grow moderately. Growth in
household real wages and salaries and purchasing power is likely to
be very modest. It is estimated that the comparatively low increase
in wages and the slight acceleration of inflation on the horizon
will curb the increase in real wages. Nevertheless, the improving employment will increase the total amount of wages paid in
the national economy, which is important in terms of private
consumption.
SOK Corporation’s result will be significantly affected by the
development of the overall economy, both in Finland and abroad.
As the economy in Finland recovers, demand is anticipated to
increase and have a positive impact on the Automotive Trade and
Accessories in particular. Thanks to the economic development
and the streamlining programmes and reorganisation implemented
and underway in SOK Corporation’s business operations, it is
believed that the result of all operations in Finland will be better
than last year.
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The positive development in the Russian economy is expected to
continue, and the Corporation’s Supermarket Trade and Tourism
and Hospitality Business are estimated to develop positively. Budding signs of positive development are also seen in the economic
situation in the Baltic countries. The continuing extensive network
expansion will have a negative impact on the result of the Supermarket Trade in Russia and the Baltic countries. Due to this, the
result in the Supermarket Trade is likely to be weaker than last
year.
Thanks to the general economic development and the streamlining programmes and reorganisation implemented in SOK Corporation, it is believed that the result of the Corporation’s business
operations will develop positively in 2011.
Helsinki, 17 February 2011
SUOMEN OSUUSKAUPPOJEN
KESKUSKUNTA
Executive Board
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Consolidated financial statements, IFRS
Consolidated income statement, IFRS
		
EUR million

Note
		1.1.–31.12.2010		1.1.–31.12.2009
		

Continuing operations:
Revenue
Other operating income

		
9 257.7		
8 532.1
(5) 		33.3		48.0
		
Materials and services
-8 524.4		
-7 821.7
		
Employee benefit expenses
(6) 		-335.1		-327.8
Depreciation and impairment losses
(7) 		-64.6		-71.9
		
Other operating expenses
(8) 		-326.0		-297.4
Share of results of associated companies (+/-) (17)		7.9		1.6
Operating profit
		
48.8		62.8
Financial income and expenses (+/-)
(10)		
-7.4		
-25.9
-0.2		
0.1
Share of results of associated companies (+/-) (17)		
		
Profit before taxes
41.2		37.1
		
		
Income taxes (+/-)
(12)		
-6.9		
0.2
		
34.3		37.3
Result for the financial year from continuing operations
		
Result for the financial year
from discontinued operations
(2) 		
-9.2		-20.9
		
Result for the financial year
		25.1		16.4
		
Attributable to:
		
Owners of the parent
		24.4		14.9
Non-controlling interests
		0.7		1.6
		25.1		16.4
Statement of other comprehensive income
		
		
EUR million
		1.1.–31.12.2010		1.1.–31.12.2009
Result for the financial year
		25.1		16.4
Other comprehensive income:
		
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations
		
1.4		
-0.2
Available-for-sale financial assets
		
Fair value changes during the period
		0.0		7.6
Income tax relating to available-for-sale financial		
assets
0.0		
-2.0
Cash flow hedges
		
Fair value changes during the period
		5.4		7.4
Income tax relating to cash flow hedges
		-1.4		-1.9
Share of other comprehensive income of associated		
companies
-4.0		
4.1
Other comprehensive income for the financial year,
net of tax
		
1.4		
15.0
Total comprehensive income for the financial year
		
26.5		31.4
		
Total comprehensive income for the financial year		
attributable to:
Owners of the parent
		25.8		29.9
Non-controlling interests
		0.7		1.6
		26.5		31.4
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Consolidated statement of financial
			
position, IFRS
EUR million
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Investments in associated companies
Non-current financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Non-current assets, total
Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables and other current
non-interest-bearing
receivables
Current interest-bearing receivables
Short-term investments
Cash and cash equivalents
Current assets, total
Assets held for sale
Assets, total
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Cooperative capital
Restricted reserves
Retained earnings
Equity attributable to the the
owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Equity, total

			
Note
		31.12.2010		31.12.2009
			
			
			
(13)		358.9		348.5
(14)		28.8		31.6
(15)		128.1		102.9
(17)		90.0		90.8
(18)		58.0		71.7
(19)		38.0		38.3
		
701.9		683.8
			
			
(20)			
		346.2		346.4
(21)		717.9		677.3
(22)		33.5		47.5
(23)		
30.0		
0.0
(24)		238.3		240.8
		
1 365.8		
1 312.0
(2) 				
19.3
		
2 067.7		
2 015.1
			
			
			
(25)		139.6		133.4
(25)		18.7		18.7
		409.0		383.6

		
567.3		535.6
		20.0		19.5
		587.2		555.1
			
Non-current liabilities
			
Supplementary cooperative capital
(26)		12.8		14.8
Non-current interest-bearing liabilities
(27)		136.5		191.4
Non-current non-interest-bearing liabilities (28)		36.7		38.8
Provisions
(30)		12.3		16.2
Deferred tax liabilities
(19)		24.6		22.2
Non-current liabilities, total
		
222.7		283.4
			
Current liabilities
			
Current interest-bearing liabilities
(27)		173.5		188.5
Current non-interest-bearing liabilities
(28)		229.2		232.2
Trade payables
(28)		851.7		729.7
Tax liabilities for the financial year
		3.4		4.8
Current liabilities, total
		
1 257.8		
1 155.3
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale (2) 				
21.3
Equity and liabilities, total
		
2 067.7		
2 015.1
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Consolidated statement of cash flows,
				
IFRS
EUR million

Note

				
		1.1.–31.12.2010		1.1.–31.12.2009
				

BUSINESS OPERATIONS
		48.8		33.2
Operating profit from continuing operations
		
-9.1		
9.5
Operating profit from discontinued operations
		
-3.2		
7.2
Adjustments to operating profit
(1)
		47.1		27.8
Change in working capital
(2)
83.6		77.6
Cash flow from business operations before financing		
and taxes
		
-0.4		
-40.2
Increase (-) / decrease (+) in current receivables
				
-1.5
Change in current investments
		
1.5		
-51.6
Interest paid and other financial expenses
		
4.5		
47.0
Interest received and other financial income
		0.1		0.1
Dividends received from business operations
		
-10.5		
-4.2
Income taxes paid
		
78.8		27.1
Cash flow from business operations
				
				
INVESTMENTS
-13.7
				
Acquired shares in subsidiaries
				
-1.0
Acquired shares in associated companies
		-98.8		-88.8
Acquisition of other fixed assets
		51.1		60.9
Sale of shares in subsidiaries
		27.3		30.4
Sale of other fixed assets
		0.2		4.0
Change in other long-term investments
		
-4.9		
-94.8
Liquid assets of divested and acquired subsidiaries
		0.2		0.1
Dividends received from investments
		
-24.9		-102.9
Cash flow from investments
				
				
FINANCING
		
-30.8		
60.9
Increase (+) / decrease (-) in long-term loans
		
-2.2		
16.0
Increase (+) / decrease (-) in short-term liabilities
-20.0		
-230.4
Changes in bonds and notes and mutual fund shares 		
		6.0		9.0
Increase in cooperative capital
		-0.6		-9.7
Interest paid on the cooperative capital
				
-0.1
Other decrease in equity
		
-47.5		-154.2
Cash flow from financing
				
6.4		
-230.0
Increase / Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 		
				
		241.4		471.2
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
		0.4		0.2
Foreign exchange rate effect on cash and cash equivalents
6.4		
-230.0
Increase / Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 		
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 		248.2		241.4
				
				
Adjustments to operating profit
(1)
		-33.3		-49.6
Gains from the sale of fixed assets
		64.9		74.4
Depreciation and impairment losses
				
-20.9
Regrouping of interests in banking
		
-34.8		
3.3
Other non-cash income and expenses
		
-3.2		
7.2
				
Change in working capital
(2)
		
-94.1		
30.3
Change in trade and other receivables
		
-11.6		
1.5
Change in inventories
		
152.8		
-4.0
Change in non-interest-bearing liabilities
		47.1		27.8
				
				
Only short-term, under three month debt securities have
been categorised as cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow statement.
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Consolidated statement of changes
									
in equity, IFRS

Total

Retained earnings

Translation differences

Supervisory Board’s
Disposal fund

Reserve fund

Fair value reserve

EUR million

Cooperative capital

									
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent
NonEquity
controlling
total
interests

									

Equity
									
1 Jan 2009
122.5 -15.1
18.5
0.1
-2.7
380.8 504.1
18.0
522.1
Total comprehensive income
		15.2			 -0.2
14.9
29.9
1.6
31.4
Increase in cooperative capital
10.9						10.9		 10.9
Interest on cooperative capital and supplementary
cooperative capital
						 -9.7
-9.7		 -9.7
Other changes
				 -0.0		 0.4
0.4		 0.4
Change of non-controlling interests
							0.0
0.0
0.0
31 Dec 2009
133.4
0.1
18.5
0.0
-2.9
386.5 535.6
19.5
555.1
Total comprehensive income
		 0.0			 1.4
24.4
25.8
0.7
26.5
Increase in cooperative capital
6.2						6.2		 6.2
Other changes
				 0.0		 -0.4
-0.4		 -0.4
Change of non-controlling interests
							0.0
-0.3
-0.3
31 Dec 2010
139.6
0.1
18.5
0.1
-1.5
410.5 567.3
20.0
587.2
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Company information
In accordance with SOK’s Statutes, the name ‘SOK Corporation’
is used for the SOK Group. SOK Corporation comprises Suomen
Osuuskauppojen Keskuskunta (SOK) and its subsidiaries. SOK is
domiciled in Helsinki and its registered address is Fleminginkatu
34, 00510 Helsinki.
SOK’s purpose is to create competitive advantage for the S
Group’s businesses. SOK implements its operational objective by
developing and guiding the S Group’s strategies, value chain, and
chain operations in co-operation with the cooperative enterprises.
SOK produces the shared, competitiveness-enhancing services the
S Group requires and engages in profitably growing operations in
Finland and its neighbouring countries, with the aim of creating
synergies and added economic value for the S Group’s products.
A copy of the consolidated financial statements is available at
http://www.s-kanava.fi/sryhma.do or from SOK Reputation and
Responsibility, PL 1, 00088 S-ryhmä.
Accounting policies for consolidated financial
statements
Accounting basis
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”), and the IAS and IFRS standards and SIC and IFRIC
interpretations in force on 31 December 2010 have been applied
in preparing them. ‘International Financial Reporting Standards’ refers to the standards defined in the Finnish Accounting
Act and related regulations approved for application in the EU
and their interpretations in accordance with EU regulation (EC)
1606/2002.
The financial statement information is presented in millions of
euro and is based on original acquisition costs unless indicated
otherwise in the accounting policies below.
All figures in the tables of the Financial Statements have been
rounded off, which is why the total of the individual figures may
differ from the sum presented. The key ratios have been calculated
with exact values.

–
–
–
–
–
–

Amendments to standards and interpretations
published by IASB taking effect in the 2010
financial period
IFRS 3 (revised) Business Combinations (effective as of 1 July
2009)
IAS 17 (amended) Leases
IAS 27 (revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
IAS 39 (amended) Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement – Hedged items
Annual amendments to the IFRS standards
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

New or revised standards and interpretations published by IASB
in the financial period 2010 did not have a significant effect on the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with
IFRS calls for the making of estimates and for judgement in applying accounting policies. The estimates are based on management’s
best judgement on the balance sheet date, but it is possible that the
actual outcome will differ from the estimates used. Any changes to
estimates and assumptions are recognised in the financial period
during which the estimate or assumption is corrected.
The main uncertainties in respect of estimates and assumptions concerning the future that cause a risk of significant changes
to the carrying values of assets and liabilities in the subsequent
financial period concern the determination of the fair value of assets acquired in business combinations and financial instruments,
impairment testing, as well as deferred tax assets and provisions.
Impairment testing has been carried out on unprofitable foreign
operations.
The recoverable monetary amount from the operations of a
business entity subject to impairment testing is based on value in
use calculations or on the fair value less expenses incurred by sales.
Value in use has been calculated on the basis of forecast discounted
cash flows. The forecast cash flows are based on financial plans approved by the management for a five-year period or, in some cases,
longer. The cash flows after this period have been extrapolated
using a two per cent growth rate, which, according to estimates,
does not exceed the actual long-term growth in the sector. The
discount rate used is the average weighted cost of capital (WACC),
defined by sector and country, taking into account the special risks
connected with the unit to be tested. Depending on the sector
and country, the discount rate has been in the range of 9.6–14.2
per cent. The capital structure of the cost of capital is based on the
average for the sector and a sector-specific beta.
Principles of consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the parent cooperative and all companies in which the parent cooperative holds,
either directly or indirectly, over 50 per cent of the number of
votes conferred by the shares or in which the parent cooperative
otherwise has a controlling interest. In addition to Finland, the
parent cooperative has subsidiaries in Russia, Estonia, Latvia, and
Lithuania.
Associates in which SOK Corporation holds 20–50 per cent of
the votes and in which the Corporation has significant influence
but does not exercise control have been consolidated using the
equity method. If SOK Corporation’s share of an associate’s losses
exceeds the carrying amount of the investment, the investment is
entered in the balance sheet at zero value and losses in excess of
this amount are not taken into account unless the Corporation has
obligations towards associates. The share of the profits of an associate that has been acquired for investment purposes is presented
below operating profit, before financial income and expenses. The
profit or loss of associates serving the Corporation’s ordinary operations is, however, presented as a component of operating profit
before the final operating profit.
Acquired subsidiaries are consolidated using the purchase
method, according to which all the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the acquired company are measured at fair value on the date of

acquisition. The remaining unallocated portion of the difference
between the purchase price and the net assets acquired is goodwill.
Companies acquired or established during the financial year
have been consolidated from the date of acquisition or establishment. Divested subsidiaries, associated companies, and joint
ventures have been consolidated up to the date of sale.
Intra-Group transactions, receivables, liabilities, unrealised
margins, and internal distribution of profits have been eliminated
in the consolidated financial statements. Minority interest has
been separated from net profit and presented as a separate item in
consolidated equity.
Mutual real-estate companies are consolidated line by line as
jointly controlled assets in proportion to the Corporation’s shareholding.
Items denominated in foreign currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in euro, which
is the functional and presentation currency of SOK Corporation’s
parent cooperative.
Transactions in foreign currency have been recognised at
the exchange rate on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items at the end of the financial year have been
translated into euro at the exchange rate quoted by the European
Central Bank on the closing day of the financial year and the
exchange rate differences have been recognised through profit and
loss. Non-monetary items have been translated at the rate on the
date of the transaction.
Exchange rate differences arising from the translation of trade
receivables are recognised in revenue, and exchange rate differences arising from the translation of trade payables are recognised
in expenses. The exchange gains and losses of receivables belonging to other financial items in the balance sheet are recognised in
financial income and, correspondingly, those belonging to other
liabilities, in financial expenses.
The income statements of foreign subsidiaries are translated into
euro at the average rate of the financial period, and the balance
sheets at the rate on the balance sheet date. An exchange difference
arising from changing income statement items according to the average rate and in balance sheet items at the balance sheet date and,
similarly, a translation difference in subsidiaries’ equity as a result
of exchange rate changes, have been recognised as a separate item
in retained earnings. When a foreign subsidiary or associated company is divested, the cumulated translation difference is recorded
in the income statement as part of the capital gain or loss.
Financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets are included in the following balance sheet items:
non-current financial assets, trade receivables and other current
non-interest-bearing receivables, current interest-bearing receivables, current investments and cash and cash equivalents.
Non-current financial assets consist of shares, capital loan receivables, other long-term loan receivables, long-term trade receivables
and long-term receivables that have been sold to finance companies and for which the Corporation still has a repurchase obligation. Trade receivables and other current non-interest-bearing
receivables, which are included in financial assets, comprise trade

receivables, derivative receivables, and accrued income in respect
of financial items. Current interest-bearing receivables comprise
short-term loan receivables, other short-term receivables, and current receivables sold to finance companies.
Current investments consist of debt securities that have been invested with the intention to sell them within a year of the balance
sheet date. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and
receivables from credit institutions and the central bank.
Financial liabilities are included in the following balance sheet
items: supplementary cooperative capital, non-current interestbearing liabilities, non-current non-interest-bearing liabilities,
current interest-bearing liabilities, current non-interest-bearing
liabilities, and trade payables.
Supplementary cooperative capital is treated as a liability because, in accordance with its terms and conditions, the cooperative
bears an obligation to return the capital on demand. Non-current
interest-bearing liabilities consist of liabilities to financial institutions and others, long-term interest-bearing trade payables, finance
lease liabilities, and finance company liabilities for sold receivables.
Non-current, non-interest-bearing liabilities, which are included in
financial liabilities, comprise the regional cooperative enterprises’
funds that have been invested in SOK Corporation’s cash-counting
service. Trade payables consist of current trade payables. Current
interest-bearing liabilities consist of current liabilities to financial
institutions, the cooperative enterprises and others, as well as current finance lease liabilities and current finance company liabilities
for sold receivables. Current non-interest-bearing liabilities, which
are included in financial liabilities, comprise derivative liabilities as
well as accruals and deferred income related to financial items.
SOK Corporation applies a settlement-date practice in recognising financial assets and liabilities on the balance sheet. Financial
assets and liabilities that will not be later measured at fair value
through profit and loss are initially measured at fair value plus the
immediate acquisition costs.
Financial assets and liabilities are classified as financial assets or
liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss, financial
assets held to maturity, available-for-sale financial assets, loans and
other receivables, and other financial liabilities. Financial assets
and liabilities are measured at fair value or amortised cost using the
effective interest method in accordance with their classification.
The fair value of a financial instrument is determined on the
basis of prices quoted in active markets or by using measurement
methods that are generally applied in the markets. Financial assets
and liabilities to be measured at fair value include certificates of
deposit, commercial papers, and interest rate swaps, the fair value
of which has been determined by discounting future cash flows
from the present value using the market interest rates on the balance sheet date. The fair value of interest rate options is determined on the basis of the Black-Scholes pricing model. Bonds
and notes as well as quoted shares have been measured at market
prices. The fair value of forward exchange contracts, interest rate
swaps, and foreign exchange agreements has been calculated by
discounting future cash flows from the present value and translating the foreign currency amounts thus obtained into euro using
the foreign exchange rates quoted by the ECB on the balance
sheet date. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value have been
measured using average rates.
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Derivative contracts in which hedge accounting is not applied are
recognised in financial assets and liabilities to be measured at fair
value through profit and loss. Derivative contracts are primarily
used for hedging purposes, but hedge accounting is not applied,
with the exception of electricity derivatives. In 2009, debt securities that have been actively traded and acquired for a short-term
gain have also been measured at fair value through profit and loss.
Since the beginning of 2010, debt securities measured at fair value
have been recognised in available-for-sale financial assets, since
they are no longer actively traded for gain.
Financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss are measured at fair value. The change in fair value is entered
in the income statement in such a manner that the difference
between the value on the balance sheet date of the financial instruments recognised at fair value in the income statement and the carrying value on the previous balance sheet is entered as the income
or expense for the period. If the financial instrument recognised at
fair value was acquired during the financial period, the difference
between the value of the financial instrument on the balance sheet
date and its acquisition cost is entered as the income or expense for
the period.
In accounting, derivatives have been measured at fair value
and changes in the value have been recognised through profit
and loss. Realised and non-realised gains and losses from deriva
tive contracts made in order to hedge sales and trade receivables
are recognised in sales income. Realised and non-realised gains
and losses from derivative contracts made in order to hedge other
receivables are recognised in financial income. Realised and nonrealised gains and losses from derivative contracts made in order
to hedge purchases, trade payables and inventory value and from
currency-denominated loans are recognised in purchases. Gains and
losses from derivatives made in order to hedge other receivables are
recognised in financial expenses.
Held-to-maturity investments include debt securities and other
non-derivative financial assets that are connected to fixed or determinable payments and mature on a certain date. Held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised acquisition cost using
the effective interest method. Any impairment loss is recognised
through profit and loss and the accrual of interest is continued
on the lowered balance at the original effective interest rate of the
contract.
Loans and other receivables and other financial liabilities include
financial assets and liabilities that are unquoted on an active
financial market, for which the payments are fixed or determinable
and which do not belong to financial assets or liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss, financial assets held to maturity, or
available-for-sale financial assets. The transaction costs of liabilities
and receivables are included in the amortised acquisition cost calculated using the effective interest method and amortised through
profit and loss for the term-to-maturity of the receivable. After
the initial recognition, liabilities and receivables are measured at
amortised acquisition cost using the effective interest method.
An item belonging to other financial liabilities is recognised in
the financial statements at its nominal value when its fair value
is the nominal value. If the debt capital received is less or more
than the nominal value of the liability, the debt is measured at
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the amount that has been received. The amount of the difference
between the nominal value of the debt and the cost recognised as
expense or income for the period is amortised and recognised as an
increase or decrease in the cost of debt. The difference between the
nominal value and cost, or a fee or other expense that is associated
with the debt and is included in the interest expense related to the
debt, is amortised using the effective interest method as an expense
for the term-to-maturity of the debt. Other financial liabilities are
measured at the amortised cost on the balance sheet date using the
effective interest method.
The items recognised in available-for-sale financial assets are
debt securities and other domestic and foreign securities and
participations that are not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss, investments held to maturity, or loans and
other receivables. Financial assets available for sale are measured at
fair value. The fair value of publicly traded investments is defined
on the basis of their market values. Investments that are not
publicly quoted are measured at cost if their fair values cannot be
reliably determined. The change in fair value is recorded directly
in equity in the Fair value reserve. When the financial instrument
is sold, the cumulative change in fair value recorded in equity,
together with accrued interest and capital gains or losses, is recognised in the income statement.
Hedge accounting
Cash flow hedge accounting has been applied to electricity derivatives which have been effective for the risk being hedged and met
the conditions set for hedge accounting in the IAS 39 standard.
Options written and the time value of purchased options are excluded from hedge accounting. The hedging relationship between
the hedging derivative and the hedged item as well as the risk
management objectives related to hedging have been documented
at the inception of hedging.
A hedge has been considered effective when the change in the
cash flows of the hedging instrument has eliminated 80 to 125
percent of the change in the cash flows of the contract or position
being hedged.
The effective portion of the change in the fair value of the
electricity derivatives that hedge the cash flow has been recognised
directly in the fair value fund in equity, and the ineffective portion
has been recognised in the purchases of materials and services in
the income statement. Hedge gains or losses accumulated in equity
have been recognised in purchases of materials and services during
the same period in which the electricity purchases being hedged
have realised and they have been recognised in the income statement.
When the hedging instrument has matured or has been sold,
or when the hedge accounting criteria have no longer been met,
the gain or loss accumulated from the hedging instrument has
remained in equity until the transaction has materialised. If the
transaction is no longer expected to materialise, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity has immediately been recognised in the
income statement.
Cash flow hedge accounting was discontinued on 1 June 2010
when the majority of the electricity derivatives were transferred to
S-Voima Oy. In connection with this, some electricity derivatives

remained with SOK and were transferred to S-Voima Oy through
contracts with opposite items. The electricity derivatives are measured at fair value but their net effect on earnings is zero.
The Corporation has derivative contracts outside of hedge accounting which, according to the Corporation’s financial policy,
are effective economic hedging instruments but to which hedge
accounting in accordance with the IAS 39 standard is not applied.
Impairment of financial assets
On each balance sheet date, the Corporation assesses whether
there is any objective evidence that the value of an item other
than those classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss is impaired. Objective evidence is considered to be, for
example, a customer’s delay in payment, insolvency or bankruptcy,
reorganisation or consolidation of debt, as well as a major change
in the credit rating. If there is objective evidence of impairment,
an impairment loss is recorded.
The amount of an impairment loss on financial assets recorded
at amortised cost is determined as the difference between the carrying amount of an asset and the present value of estimated future
cash flows from the asset, including the fair value of any collateral.
The discount rate applied is the original effective interest rate of
the receivable. The difference is recognised as an impairment loss
in the income statement, and the accrual of interest is continued
on the lowered balance at the original effective interest rate of the
contract.
If the amount of an impairment loss subsequently decreases
and the change can be attributed to an event that has taken place
after the recognition of the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is reversed.
When there is objective evidence of the impairment of debt
securities or shares included in available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss that was recognised in equity is recognised in
the income statement as an impairment loss. The impairment loss
of a share that is not publicly quoted is determined as being the
difference between the carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the market yield of a
similar item on the reporting date. If the fair value of debt securities classified as available for sale later increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed and recognised through profit and loss. If the fair value of
a share later increases, the increase in value is recognised in equity.
Principles of income recognition
Sales of goods are recognised as income when the major risks and
benefits of ownership of the goods are transferred to the purchaser.
Income from services is recognised when the service has been rendered. In calculating revenue, sales income is stated less items such
as discounts granted, value added tax, and exchange differences on
sales.
Government grants
Grants received from the government or another party are recognised in the income statement when the costs relating to the object
of the grant are recorded as an expense. Grants received concerning

purchases of property, plant and equipment are deducted from the
carrying amounts of the related assets. Such grants are recognised
as income over the economic life of the asset.
Other operating income
The items recorded in other operating income are gains on the
sale of assets, capital gains on divestments, and income other than
revenue recognised from the ordinary sale of goods and services.
Employee benefit expenses
Pension plans are classified as defined-benefit and defined-contribution plans. Fixed premiums are paid to separate companies under defined-contribution plans. SOK Corporation does not have
a legal or constructive obligation to make additional payments
if the recipient cannot pay the pension benefits in question. All
plans that do not fulfil these conditions are defined benefit plans.
Payments made for defined contribution plans are recognised as
expenses in the income statement in the financial period in which
they are incurred. SOK Corporation does not have defined-benefit
plans.
Income taxes
Income taxes include current taxes for the financial period, adjustments of prior year taxes, and changes in deferred taxes. The tax
effect of items directly recognised in equity is correspondingly
recognised in equity. Taxes are calculated using the tax rates valid
on the balance sheet date and, if there is a change in tax rates, on
the enacted tax rate.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognised on all the
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax base
of assets and liabilities. The main temporary differences arise from
the differences between the carrying amounts and tax bases of
property, plant and equipment, and investment properties (finance
leases, depreciation difference, intra-group margins, and gains on
the sale of assets), from measurement at fair value and from unutilised tax losses. Deferred taxes are calculated on the undistributed
earnings of foreign subsidiaries, unless a resolution has been passed
that profits shall be distributed.
The deferred tax liability is included in the consolidated balance
sheet in its entirety and any deferred tax asset to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised.
Goodwill and other intangible assets
The goodwill arising from business combinations constitutes the
difference between the acquisition cost and the identifiable net
assets acquired, which are measured at fair value at the time of
acquisition. Goodwill is not amortised but is annually tested for
impairment. The compulsory impairment testing of goodwill can
lead to non-recurring impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to
the cash-generating units. With regard to associates, goodwill is
included in the acquisition cost of the associate.
Other intangible assets include, for example, software licences
and copyrights. Other intangible assets are measured at cost and
amortised over their estimated economic lives on a straight-line
basis.
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The depreciation periods of other intangible assets are:
Software licence fees
Other intangible assets

Leases
Years
3–5
3–10

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are measured at acquisition cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Straight-line depreciation is recorded on property, plant, and
equipment in accordance with each item’s economic life. Land
areas are not depreciated.
The depreciation periods for property, plant, and equipment are:
Years
Buildings
15–35
Lightweight structures and equipment in buildings
5–15
Office and warehouse equipment
5–10
Warehouse, maintenance, and production machinery
5–10
3–10
Restaurant and hotel equipment
In-store equipment
3–7
Motor vehicles and servers
3–5
Renovations of premises
3–10
Depreciation on items of property, plant, and equipment is discontinued when the item is classified as held for sale. Gains from
the sale or decommissioning of property, plant, and equipment are
recognised in other operating income or expenses.
Impairment losses
The carrying amounts of asset items belonging to property, plant,
and equipment are assessed annually to determine whether there
is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable monetary amount of the asset
is determined. The recoverable amount is estimated annually on
the following assets, regardless of whether there are indications of
impairment or not: goodwill, intangible assets in progress, and
intangible assets with an indefinite economic life. An impairment
loss is recognised if the carrying amount of the asset or cashgenerating unit is greater than its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognised in the income statement.
An impairment loss on a cash-generating unit is first allocated
as a reduction of the goodwill of the cash-generating unit and
thereafter to reduce the carrying amounts of the unit’s other assets
on a proportionate basis.
The recoverable amount is defined as the higher of fair value less
cost to sell and value in use. In determining value in use, estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value based on
discount interest rates reflecting the average cost of capital before
tax on the cash-generating unit.
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed if the assumptions used in estimating the recoverable amount change. An
impairment loss is reversed to an amount not greater than the carrying amount of the asset (less depreciation or amortisation) would
have been if an impairment loss had not been recorded in previous
years. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed.
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Leases that substantially transfer all the risks and rewards incident
to ownership of an asset are classified within SOK Corporation as
finance leases. Where assets are acquired under a finance lease, the
lower of the asset’s fair value or the present value of future lease
payments is recognised at the inception of the lease in property,
plant, and equipment or in investment properties on the balance sheet (details of investment properties are given below) and
the obligations under the lease are recognised in interest-bearing
liabilities. Lease payments are split between interest expenses and
a reduction in lease liabilities. The interest expense is recognised
in the income statement during the lease period so as to produce
an equal rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Depreciation according to plan is provided on assets obtained by
a finance lease, and any impairment losses are recognised. Items of
property, plant, and equipment are depreciated according to the
Corporation’s depreciation periods, or if shorter, the lease term.
SOK Corporation is not a lessor in lease agreements that would
be interpreted as finance leases.
Leases where substantially all of the risks and rewards incident
to ownership are borne by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Lease payments received or paid on the basis of other leases
are recognised as income or expense in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease period.
If a finance lease arises as the result of a sale and leaseback agreement, any gain on the sale is recorded as a liability on the balance
sheet and is recognised as income during the lease period. Any loss
on the sale is immediately recorded in the income statement.
Income from finance leases cancelled during the agreement
period on a property owned by the Corporation is eliminated and
presented in accruals and deferred income on the balance sheet. It
will be reduced against the value of shares in associate companies.
The earnings are only recognised as income when the Corporation
sells the associate company shares or divests the property owned
by the associate. On 31 December 2010, such eliminations in accordance with the IAS 28 Investments in Associates standard were
recognised in accruals and deferred income for EUR 4.6 million.
Investment property
Investment properties are properties that are in use in operations
outside SOK Corporation’s mainline operations and which the
Corporation primarily holds in order to obtain rental income and/
or an appreciation in the asset value. Investment properties are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses in accordance with the same principles that are applied
to real estate belonging to property, plant, and equipment. Real
estate classified as investment properties comprises solely properties that are owned. Rental income from investment properties is
recognised in revenue.
Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the FIFO method or the weighted
average cost method, and includes all the direct expenses incurred
in acquiring materials and goods. In ordinary operations, the net
realisable value is the estimated selling price less the estimated cost
to complete the product and the necessary selling expenses.

Cooperative interest and dividends payable
Cooperative capital interest and dividends payable by SOK
Corporation are recorded as a decrease in equity in the period
during which the owners approved the cooperative capital interest/
dividend for payment. The interest on supplementary cooperative
capital is recognised as an interest expense.
Provisions
A provision is recognised when SOK Corporation has a legal or
constructive obligation as the result of a past event, it is probable
that a payment obligation will be realised, and the amount of
the obligation can be reliably estimated. Compensation that can
be obtained from a third party in connection with a liability is
recorded in the balance sheet as a receivable. The amounts of provisions are estimated on every balance sheet date and are adjusted
to correspond to the best estimate on the reporting date.
Provisions can be set up for underutilised premises, warranty
provisions, and restructurings.
Assets held for sale and discontinued operations
An asset that is part of a plan of sale or a disposal group is classified
as an asset held for sale when the recoverable amount primarily
comes from the sale of the asset and not from its continuous use.
An asset or group of assets classified as held for sale is measured at
the lower of its carrying amount or fair value less estimated selling
costs. Non-current assets held for sale and the associated liabilities
are presented in the balance sheet separately from assets and liabilities connected with continuing operations from the date on which
they have been classified as held for sale. Information for the year
of comparison is not reclassified.
A discontinued operation is a separate, significant function that
has been disposed of (or has been permanently decommissioned)
or is classified as held-for-sale. The profit or loss from discontinued
operations is presented in the income statement on a separate line
after the result from continuing operations. The income statement
information for the year of comparison is adjusted accordingly.
SOK sold the entire share capital of Maan Auto Oy to Veho
Group Oy Ab on 1 May 2010. Maan Auto Oy has been presented
in the Financial Statements as discontinued operations in accordance with the IFRS 5 requirements. S-Bank Ltd organised a share
issue aimed at the cooperative enterprises on 15 May – 30 June
2009. In the comparison data of the Financial Statements, S-Bank
Ltd and its subsidiary S-Asiakaspalvelu Oy have also been classified
as discontinued operations.
The SOK Corporation did not have items classified as assets
held for sale on 31 December 2010.

either at amortised cost or at fair value after the initial recognition,
depending on the business model of the company’s management
of financial assets and the agreement-based cash flows of financial
assets. Equity investments are recognised at fair value after the
initial recognition. As for financial liabilities, the rules concerning
classification and valuation remain primarily the same. The Corporation estimates that the implementation of the standard may have
a significant effect on future financial statements.
The following other new or revised standards and interpretations
published by IASB, not yet in effect, will have some impact on the
future consolidated financial statements, according to a preliminary estimate. The Corporation will apply them as of the effective
date of each standard and interpretation or, if the effective date is
not the first day of the financial period, as of the beginning of the
financial period following the effective date.
– IAS 24 (amended) Related Party Disclosures
(effective as of 1 January 2011
– IFRS 7 (amended) Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation (effective as of 1 July 2011
– Annual amendments to the IFRS standards
(effective as of 1 January 2011)
– IFRIC 14 (amended) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement (effective as of 1 January 2011)
– IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments (effective as of 1 July 2010)

Amendments to standards and interpretations
published by IASB taking effect later
The Corporation is likely to apply the IFRS 9 Financial Instruments standard, partially approved in 2009 and 2010, as of 1
January 2013 (it must be implemented no later than 1 January 2013; it is not approved by the EU). IFRS 9 will gradually
replace the current IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement standard. The first published sections of the
standard deal with the classification and valuation of financial assets and liabilities. In the new standard, financial assets are valued
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1. Segment information
SOK Corporation applies the new IFRS 8 standard in its segment reporting. For reporting to top management, SOK Corporation’s operations are
divided into seven business segments. The segments are based on business areas. The Banking segment and Maan Auto Oy from the Automotive
Trade and Accessories segment have been classified as discontinued operations.
SOK Corporation’s segments to be reported are
Supermarket trade
SOK Corporation carries on supermarket trade in the Baltic countries and Russia via its subsidiaries. AS Prisma Peremarket has five hypermarkets
in Tallinn. In 2010 one Prisma unit was openned in Narva and another in Tarto. A/S Prisma Latvija has two hypermarkets in Riga. UAB Prisma
LT openned its first hypermarket in 2009 in the Lithuanian capital of Vilnius and another Prisma unit in Kaunas in 2010. OOO Prisma has five
supermarkets and one hypermarket in St. Petersburg. More Prisma units will be openned in the Baltic countries and Russia also in coming years.
Tourism and hospitality business
SOK Corporation’s tourism and hospitality business is carried on by Sokotel Oy in Finland, AS Sokotel in Estonia and OOO Sokotel in Russia.
SOK Corporation’s hotels operate under the brands Sokos Hotels, Radisson Blu and Holiday Club Spa Hotels. In Finland, Sokotel Oy operates 15
Sokos hotels, 7 Radisson Blu hotels and 6 Holiday Club Spa hotels. Visitors to Tallinn are warmly received at the Sokos Hotel Viru, with its wide
choice of restaurants. OOO Sokotel has three Sokos Hotel chain hotels in St. Petersburg, one of which is a spa hotel.
Automotive trade and accessories
SOK Corporation’s vehicle and car accessory sales are carried on by SOK Autokauppa Oy (formerly Automaa Oy) which is a dealer for Peugeot
and Ford cars and commercial vehicles and an authorised service centre for both. In 2010 sold SOK the entire share capital of Maan Auto Oy to
Veho Group Oy Ab. The sale comprised the import of Peugeot vehicles, spare part operations, and vehicle PDI functions in Hanko.
Agricultural trade
Within SOK Corporation, agricultural trade is carried on by the Hankkija-Maatalous Group. The Hankkija-Maatalous Group comprises
Hankkija-Maatalous Oy, Hiven Oy, SIA Baltic Feed, UAB Baltijos Pasarai and Movere Oy. Hankkija-Maatalous Oy bought the building supplies
operations of Rainex Yrityspalvelu Oy on 1 January 2009. Hankkija-Maatalous Oy engages in agricultural trade, machinery sales, hardware sales
and the gardening/horticultural trade through Agrimarkets, Agrimarket Machine Centres, S-Rautamarket hardware stores, Multasormi gardening
stores and the John Deere Centre.
Hankkija-Maatalous Group is Finland’s largest manufacturer of feeds. The group develops, manufactures and markets feed for cattle, pigs and
poultry, horse fodder as well as pet foods. The subsidiaries also have operations in the Baltic countries, including an own feed factory in Latvia.
Movere Oy, in turn, is a logistics company that has specialist expertise in order-delivery processes for agriculture, the building supplies industry
and the mechanical forest industry.
Procurement
SOK Corporation’s procurement operations are handled by Inex Partners Oy, Meira Nova Oy and North European Oil Trade Oy. Inex Partners
Oy offers procurement and logistics services for grocery and consumer goods supplies as well as logistics services for speciality goods supplied to
the retail chains. SOK combined its grocery and consumer goods procurement companies Inex Partners Oy and Intrade Partners Oy in February
2010. Meira Nova Oy provides purchasing and logistics services for groceries supplied to locations in the HoReCa sector. Meira Nova Oy bought
the Premium Trading catering unit form Rainex Yrityspalvelu Oy on 1 January 2009. North European Oil Trade Oy is a fuel procurement
company.
Services Business
The aim of the service functions provided by SOK Corporation is to develop operational models and processes that generate the maximum added
value for the S Group’s businesses. The service units develop and maintain business models that increase the competitiveness of the entire S Group,
and produce cost-effective services for the S Group. The joint service functions cover all the S Group’s service functions that can be organised
centrally to yield cost savings and/or a qualitative improvement in operations.
Banking
The supermarket bank will supersede the S Group’s building societies and widen the scope of the S Group’s service assortment still further. The
amendments to the Cooperatives Act, passed in 2003, made it impossible to continue building-society operations. S-Bank’s mission is to provide
competitive basic banking services for the S-Group’s customer-owners. The supermarket bank will strengthen customer loyalty whilst achieving
savings in operating costs. S-Bank Ltd. organised a share issue directed at the cooperative enterprises on 15 May–30 June 2009. As a result of the
issue, SOK’s ownership in S-Bank decreased to 50 per cent. S-Bank Ltd. is SOK’s associated company as of 1 July 2009. As Banking segment is
reported the profit of an associate as of 1 July 2009.
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Segment reporting principles within SOK Corporation and reconciliation with the IFRS financial statements
The items to be included in the reporting to SOK Corporation’s top management are revenue, the operational result, investments, disposals and
working capital. Management reporting is based on Finnish accounting legislation and on the principles of management accounting. Each segment
is reported with intra-segment items eliminated. For example, revenue from the Agricultural Trade has been stated eliminating the revenue between
the companies in the Agricultural Trade segment. Accordingly, sales routed to the cooperative enterprises via EDI invoicing, such as Inex Partners
Oy, are reported in the revenue of both Procurement and the Services Business. Said item is eliminated from the revenue in the eliminations
of internal items for the Retail and Wholesale Business. Revenue in management reporting is reconciled with the IFRS revenue for continuing
operations in the accounts. Financial accounting revenue for both continuing and discontinued operations is external revenue from which all of
SOK Corporation’s internal items have been eliminated. The differences between management reporting and financial accounting revenue are not
material.
In calculating the operational result, valuations in accordance with Finnish accounting legislation are used. The income and expenses according to
the matching principle are allocated to the segment. The segment’s result also includes financial income and expenses, except for measurements of
derivatives at fair value. Reconciliation of the operational result with the result before taxes from continuing operations in compliance with IFRS
reveals those items which fall outside the operational result. These are, among others, gains and losses on the sale of property, plant and equipment
as well as impairment losses on goodwill.				
				
In SOK Corporation’s management reporting, assets are not allocated or reported on, except for working capital.
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Management Reporting, total

Banking

Retail and Wholesale Business, total

Elimination of internal items in the Retail
and Wholesale Business

Services Business

Procurement

Agricultural Trade

Automotive Trade and Accessories

Tourism and Hospitality Business

Supermarket Trade

										
										
224.2
263.7
203.5
888.8
5 846.7
6 613.2 -4 764.4
9 275.7		 9 275.7
Revenue
										
-16.9
-6.1
-5.3
-8.7
18.3
10.9
-2.2
-10.0
6.2
-3.7
Operational result
										
18.3
6.7
0.2
3.7
35.9
33.9				
98.8
Investments
0.1
0.2
22.6
0.1
0.0
55.5				
78.4
Divestments
-8.3
3.2
23.8
107.2
32.4
-7.4
6.6
157.3		157.3
Working capital
										
										
Reconciliation of the revenue
						
9 275.7				
Management accounting revenue
to be reported
-17.8				
Revenue from discontinued						
operations
						
-0.2				
Other differences
						
9 257.7				
Revenue from continuing operations
IFRS
										
Reconciliation of the result										
						
-3.7				
Operational result of the segments
to be reported
										
Items excluded from the operational
result within SOK Corporation:
						
33.3				
Gains and losses on the sale
of property, plant and equipment
-0.1				
Other operating income						
and expenses
						
0.0				
Impairment losses
						
-0.1				
Increase in compulsory provisions
						
-0.9				
Valuation gains and losses
on derivatives, and other items
						
9.0				
Profit before taxes from discontinued
operations
						
3.7				
Other adjustments
						
41.2				
Profit before taxes from continuing
operations IFRS
										
										
Additional data at SOK Corporation
level, external income
										
						
9 008.0				
Finland
						
267.5				
Foreign
						
9 275.5				
Revenue, total
										
						
224.1				
Supermarket Trade
						
263.1				
Tourism and Hospitality Business
						
203.4				
Automotive Trade and Accessories
						
782.6				
Agricultural Trade
						
1 306.0				
Procurement
						
6 496.2				
Services Business
						
9 275.5
			
Revenue, total
										
2010 EUR million
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Management Reporting, total

Elimination of items between the Retail
and Wholesale Business and Banking

Banking

Retail and Wholesale Business, total

Elimination of internal items in the Retail
and Wholesale Business

Services Business

Procurement

Agricultural Trade

Automotive Trade and Accessories

Tourism and Hospitality Business

Supermarket Trade

2009 EUR million
											
											
Revenue
167.0
253.3
226.7
897.8
4 872.8
6 216.0 -4 053.1
8 580.4
23.0
-2.3
8 601.1
											
Operational result -20.1
-24.3
-13.8
4.0
12.6
17.0
-5.4
-30.0
4.3
0.1
-25.6
											
Investments
15.8
11.9
0.7
4.5
31.4
38.6			
0.6		
103.5
Divestments
0.0
0.6
0.2
0.6
25.8
64.1					91.3
Working capital
-4.0
1.8
32.0
125.1
41.2
-2.9
2.8
196.0		0.0
196.0
											
Reconciliation											
of the revenue
Management accounting
revenue to be reported
					
8 601.1					
Revenue from discontinued
operations
						
-69.7					
Other differences
						
0.7					
Revenue from continuing
operations IFRS
						
8 532.1					
											
Reconciliation											
of the result
Operational result
of the segments to be reported
						
-25.6					
Items excluded 											
from the operational result within SOK Corporation:
Gains on the						
sale of business operations
0.0					
Gains and losses
on the sale of property, plant and equipment
						
49.6					
Other operating
income and expenses
						
-0.3					
Impairment 						
losses (includes impairment losses on goodwill)
-5.7					
provisions
Decrease in compulsory
						
0.0					
Valuation gains
and losses on derivatives, and other items
						
-6.8					
taxes from discontinued operations
Profit before						
20.3					
Other adjustments
						
5.5					
from continuing operations IFRS
Profit before taxes
						
37.1					
											
Additional data											
at SOK Corporation level, external income
											
Finland
						
8 398.5					
Foreign
						
203.3					
Revenue, total 						
8 601.8					
											
Supermarket Trade
						
167.0					
Tourism and Hospitality
Business
252.8					
						
Automotive Trade
and Accessories
						
226.6					
Agricultural Trade
						
799.7					
Procurement 						
1 039.4					
Services Business
6 092.3					
						
Retail and Wholesale
Business, total
						
8 577.9					
Banking
23.9					
						
Revenue, total 						
8 601.8		 			
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2. Discontinued operations
and assets held for sale
Intra group transactions have been eliminated from the presented figures.
Discontinued operations:
SOK sold the entire share capital of its subsidiary Maan Auto Oy to Veho Group Oy Ab on 1 May 2010. The sale included the import of Peugeot
passenger cars and utility		
vehicles, spare part operations and vehicle PDI functions in Hanko. In this financial statements, Maan Auto Oy, which
is included in automotive		
trade and accessories segment, has been categorised as discontinued operations. Also in the comparison data Maan Auto
Oy has been classified as 		
discontinued operations.
		
		
S-Bank Ltd. organised a share
issue aimed at the cooperative enterprises on 15 May–30 June 2009. As a result of the issue, SOK’s ownership in S-Bank
		
decreased from 100 per cent
to 50 per cent. S-Bank Ltd. and S-Asiakaspalvelu Oy have been consolidated as subsidiaries for period 1 Jan–30 June
2009. In the comparison 		
data 2009, also S-Bank Ltd and its subsidiary S-Asiakaspalvelu Oy have been classified as discontinued operations.
		
		
The result of the discontinued
operations included in the consolidated income statement was as follows:
		
2010
2009
EUR million
17.8
69.7
Revenue
0.0
3.8
Other operating income
-25.5
-66.5
Materials and services
-1.1
-7.8
Employee benefits expenses
-0.3
-2.5
Depreciation and impairment losses
-2.0
-16.9
Other operating expenses
-11.1
-20.2
Operating profit
0.0
-0.2
Financial income and expenses
-11.1
-20.3
Result before taxes
-0.1
-0.6
Income taxes
-11.2
-20.9
Result for the period
2.0
Gain on disposal of Maan Auto Oy
-9.2
-20.9
Result for the period from discontinued operations
		
		
The result of the Maan Auto
Oy unit at the time of the sale was EUR -0.9 million excluding the elimination of the Group’s internal items
(EUR 0,0 million on 31 		
Dec 2009).
		
Cash flows of the discontinued operations were following:
		
		
Cash flow
-11.1
-204.7
Cash flow from business operations
0.0
-0.6
Cash flow from investments
Cash flow from financing		37.2
-11.1
-168.1
Cash flow, total
		
1 May 2010
The effect of the disposal on the Group’s financial position
		
1.7
Tangible and intangible assets
2.6
Non-current financial assets
0.1
Deferred tax assets
11.2
Inventories
8.5
Trade receivables and other current non-interest-bearing receivables
2.8
Current interest-bearing receivables
4.2
Cash and cash equivalents
-2.5
Non-current interest-bearing liabilities
-0.5
Provisions
0.0
Deferred tax liabilities
-3.9
Current interest-bearing liabilities
-18.2
Current non-interest-bearing liabilities
6.1
Assets and liabilities, total
		
22.6
Cash payment
-4.2
Net cash disposed of with the discontinued operation
18.4
Cash flow effect
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In the Banking segment cash flow		
statement, bonds and notes of over three months and changes in the fund units have been presented in the
business operations cash flow. 		
		
Assets held for sale:
		
In December SOK sold 51 percent
of mutual real-estate company Kilon Logistiikkakeskus Oy to S-ryhmän logistiikkakeskukset Oy.
		
The remaining 49 percent of Kilon
Logistiikkakeskus Oy was sold to S-ryhmän logistiikkakeskukset Oy in March 2010.
		
		
The SOK Corporation did not have
items classified as assets held for sale on 31 December 2010.
		
31.12.2009
Assets
		
Tangible and intangible assets 		18.5
Trade receivables and other current
non-interest-bearing receivables
		0.1
Cash and cash equivalents
		0.6
Assets, total
		
19.3
		
Liabilities
		
Non-current interest-bearing liabilities
		20.6
Deferred tax liabilities
		0.9
Current non-interest-bearing liabilities
		-0.2
Liabilities, total
		
21.3
				
3. Acquisitions

Acquisitions during the financial
year 2010
		
		
SOK Corporation’s subsidiary North
European Oil Trade Ltd. acquired the fuel procurement functions of Oy Shell Ab in an asset purchase made on
		
21 December 2010. The purchase price
was EUR 30.0 million and it will be paid in cash. The acquisition increases North European Oil Trade Oy purchase
		
volume. The acquisition created EUR
0.0 million goodwill. The assets and liabilities recorded on the acquisition are presented in the table below.
		
		
Fair values recorded
on business combinations
Acquisition contract
30.0
Assets, total
30.0
		
Acquisition costs
30.0
Goodwill
0.0
		
Purchase price paid in cash
30.0
Cash and cash equivalents of acquired
business
		
Cash flow effect
30.0
		
Acquisitions during the financial year 2009
North European Oil Trade Oy, a fuel procurement company jointly owned by Suomen Osuuskauppojen Keskuskunta (SOK) and ST1 Oy,
acquired 100 percent of the share capital of ST1 Varastot Oy on 3 March 2009. ST1 Varastot Oy engages in terminal operations in the port of Pori
in Finland. In the acquisition, the St1 oil product terminal in Tahkoluoto in Pori and its personnel were transferred to North European Oil Trade
Oy’s ownership. The purchase price was EUR 4.1 million and it was paid in cash. In addition to the monetary payment, the acquisition cost also
included EUR 0.1 million of asset transfer tax and EUR 0.0 million of transaction fees. SOK also paid the seller a group loan of EUR 1.0 million.
The generation of goodwill (EUR 0.1 million) was attributable to the transfer of the personnel’s special expertise in the acquisition. Revenue from
SOK Corporation’s continuing operations in 2009 would have been EUR 8,578.2 million and the profit for the financial year EUR 14.4 million
if ST1 Varastot Oy had been included in the consolidated financial statements from the beginning of the financial period. ST1 Varastot Oy was
renamed NEOT Varastot Oy in April 2009 and it merged with its parent company North European Oil Trade Oy on 30 September 2009.
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Assets and liabilities recognised from the acquired company are presented in the below table.
		
Fair values recorded
Carrying amounts
on business combinations
before combination
EUR million		
Note
4.6
4.6
Property, plant and equipment
(13)
1.3
0.0
Intangible assets(15)
0.0
0.0
Investments and non-current receivables
0.0
0.0
Trade receivables and other current non-interest-bearing receivables
0.1
0.1
Cash and cash equivalents
6.0
4.7
Assets, total
		
0.8
0.5
Deferred tax liabilities
(19)
0.9
0.9
Non-current liabilities and deferred tax liabilities
0.2
0.2
Current liabilities
1.9
1.6
Liabilities, total
		
4.1
3.1
Net assets
4.2
Acquisition cost
0.1
Goodwill		
(15)
		
-4.1
Purchase price paid in cash
-0.1
Transaction costs
0.1
Cash and cash equivalents of acquired subsidiary
-4.1
Cash flow effect
		
		
Oy purchased the oil terminal operations of ST1 Oy in Vaasa on 3 March 2009. In the acquisition, the St1 oil product
North European Oil Trade
terminal in Vaskiluoto in Vaasa and its personnel were transferred to North European Oil Trade Oy’s ownership. The purchase price was EUR 5.2
million and it was paid in cash. It is not possible to estimate the effect of the acquired operations on the SOK Corporation’s revenue. Assets and
liabilities recognised from the acquired company are presented in the below table.
Fair values recorded
on business combinations
EUR million		
Note
5.2
(13)
Property, plant and equipment
5.2
Assets, total
		
5.2
Acquisition costs
0.0
Goodwill		
(15)
		
-5.2
Purchase price paid in cash
0.0
Cash and cash equivalents of acquired business
-5.2
Cash flow effect
		
		
Oy acquired an oil and chemicals terminal from Hamina Terminal Service Oy in Hamina on 31 August 2009. In the
North European Oil Trade
acquisition, the terminal operations and personnel of Hamina Terminal Services Oy were transferred to North European Oil Trade Oy’s ownership.
The purchase price was EUR 11.1 million and it was paid in cash. In addition to the monetary payment, the acquisition cost also included EUR
0.3 million of transaction fees.
It is not possible to estimate the effect of the acquired operations on the SOK Corporation’s revenue. Assets and liabilities recognised from the
acquired company are presented in the table below.
Fair values recorded
on business combinations
Note
EUR million		
9.1
Property, plant and equipment
(13)
9.1
Assets, total
		
11.3
Acquisition costs
2.2
Goodwill		
(15)
		
-11.1
Purchase price paid in cash
-0.3
Transaction costs
0.0
Cash and cash equivalents of acquired business
-11.3
Cash flow effect
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4. Revenue from banking
		
		
EUR million
2010
2009
and fees
Net income from interest		22.8
Administrative services income
		1.1
Total
23.9
		
Revenue from banking 2009
is for the period of 1 Jan–30 June 2009.
		
		
5. Other operating income
		
EUR million
2010
2009
Gains on sale of property, plant and equipment
32.0
46.6
Government grants
0.2
0.3
Other income
1.1
1.1
Total
33.3
48.0
		
6. Employee benefit expenses
		

EUR million
2010
2009
Salaries and remuneration
270.0
264.8
Pension expenses, defined contribution plan
47.9
46.8
Other personnel expenses
17.2
16.2
Total
335.1
327.8
		
Average number of personnel by segment
2010
2009
Supermarket trade
1 643
1 278
Tourism and hospitality business
2 063
2 143
Automotive trade and accessories
521
607
Agricultural trade
1 283
1 380
Procurement
2 655
2 574
Services business
1 350
1 309
Banking
0
104
Total
9 514
9 395
		
The average number of personnel by segment has been calculated as the average number of personnel at the end of each quarter.
The number of personnel		
of the Banking operations is included up until 30 June 2009.
		
7. Depreciation and impairment

EUR million
2010
2009
Depreciation
		
Property, plant and equipment
		
Buildings and structures
16.7
17.5
Machinery and equipment
23.2
24.2
Other property, plant and equipment
0.3
0.2
Other intangible assets
22.8
23.0
Investment properties
1.5
1.6
Total
64.5
66.5
		
Impairment
		
Property, plant and equipment
		
Buildings and structures
		1.1
Machinery and equipment
0.0
0.0
Other tangible assets
0.0
0.0
Intangible rights
		4.3
Total
0.0
5.4
		
Depreciation and impairment, total
64.6
71.9
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8. Other operating expenses
2010
2009
EUR million
108.4
96.5
Rental expenses
14.9
16.1
Marketing expenses
29.2
30.5
Administrative expenses
93.5
86.9
Equipment and supplies
52.1
41.0
Property maintenance expenses
27.9
26.3
Other business expenses
326.0
297.4
Total
		
		
9. Auditor’s fees
EUR million
Audit fees
Auditors’ statements
Tax services
Other services
Total

2010
2009
1.3
1.3
		0.0
		0.0
0.0
0.1
1.3
1.4
		
		
10. Financial income and
expenses
2010
2009
EUR million
		
Financial income
0.3
0.2
Interest income from loans and receivables
0.2
0.1
Dividend income from available-for-sale investments
		0.0
Gains on investments held
for trading
-14.3
-12.2
Gains on derivatives held for trading
7.9
9.8
Other financial income
-6.0
-2.0
Total
		
		
Financial expenses
9.3
14.9
Interest expenses on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
0.0
0.0
Expenses on investments held for trading
-2.7
1.7
Expenses on derivatives held for trading
-5.3
7.3
Other financial expenses
1.4
23.8
Total
		
-7.4
-25.9
Financial income and expenses, total
11. Financial instrument items recognised in the income statement
		
2010
2009
EUR million
		
Retail and Wholesale Business
		
		
In revenue
-0.5
-0.3
Net expenses for derivatives held for trading
		
		
In other operating income
0.2
1.3
Capital gain on available-for-sale investments
		
		
In purchases of materials
and services
4.8
-7.3
Net expenses for derivatives held for trading
0.0
-0.5
Inefficient portion of electricity derivatives in hedge accounting
-2.8
-5.1
Item transferred from equity in hedge accounting
		
In financial income and		
expenses
0.2
0.1
Dividend yields from available-for-sale investments
0.3
0.0
Other income from available-for-sale investments
0.0
1.6
Net income from investments held for trading
7.9
7.7
Interest income on loans and receivables
0.0
0.7
Net exchange differences on loans and receivables
-4.1
-14.9
Net income from derivatives held for trading
		
-13.9
-18.1
Interest expenses on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
0.5
-4.0
Net exchange differences on liabilities measured at amortised cost
		
-7.4
-38.6
Net income in the Retail and Wholesale Business, total
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In revenue
Net interest income of S-Bank Ltd
0.0
20.9
Income from commissions and fees of S-Bank Ltd
0.0
1.9
		
In financial income and		
expenses
Net income from available-for-sale investments
0.0
1.6
Net income from derivatives held for trading
0.0
-1.7
		
Net income from Banking, total
0.0
22.6
		
SOK Corporation’s net income, total
-7.4
-16.0
		
		
Summary by IAS 39 category:
2010
2009
Loans and receivables
7.9
31.3
Available-for-sale investments
0.6
3.0
Investments and derivatives held for trading
0.3
-22.5
Hedge accounting derivatives
-2.8
-5.6
Liabilities measured at amortised cost
-13.4
-22.1
Total
-7.4
-16.0
		
Only SOK Corporation’s		
external items are stated as income, expenses, gains and losses. Net expenses from derivatives held for trading, which has
been recorded in purchases
of materials and services of the Retail and Wholesale Business, consists of derivatives that have been taken out to hedge
		
purchases and sales but to
which hedge accounting has not been applied.
		
		
An income of EUR 0.0 million
was recognised in other comprehensive income from available-for-sale assets in 2010. The Retail and Wholesale
		
Business’s expenses for liabilites
measured at amortised cost also include the commissions on committed credit facilities and other commission
		
expenses as well as guarantee
commission expenses.
		
		
The figures of the Banking operations in 2009 are for the period of 1 January–30 June 2009. The net income of S-Bank Ltd includes net interest
income and commission and fee income and expenses. They are classified as net income from loans and receivables.
Banking segment

12. Income taxes

		
EUR million
2010
2009
Current tax
3.3
8.1
Taxes for previous financial years
3.0
1.4
Changes in deferred taxes
0.7
-9.7
Total
6.9
-0.2
		
Reconciliation statement
between tax expense in the income statement and taxes calculated at the Corporation’s tax rate (26%) in Finland:
		
		
EUR million
2010
2009
Profit before taxes
41.2
37.1
Taxes at parent company’s tax rate (26%)
10.7
9.6
Effect of different tax rates in foreign subsidiaries
1.6
2.4
Effect of tax-free income
-11.1
-5.5
Effect of non-deductible expenses
1.2
2.2
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised previously
-0.6
-0.1
Other items
2.2
-10.2
Taxes for previous financial years
3.0
1.4
Taxes in the income statement
6.9
-0.2
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13. Property, plant and equipment
						
Land and water Buildings and
Machinery Other tangible
Construction
Total
2010
areas
structures
and
assets
in progress and
			 equipment		 advance payments
EUR million
						
Acquisition cost
22.0
374.4
195.8
4.3
1.7
598.2
Acquisition cost, 1 Jan 2010
3.9				3.9
Translation differences 		
0.8
1.9
21.1
0.0
23.0
46.9
Increases
-2.1
-3.3
-6.0
0.0
-0.9
-12.3
Decreases
-4.3
22.8
6.6		
-18.8
6.4
Transfers between items
16.4
399.8
217.5
4.3
5.1
643.1
Acquisition cost, 31 Dec 2010
						
Accumulated depreciation
-0.9
-137.5
-110.0
-1.3		-249.7
Accumulated depreciation, 1 Jan 2010
-0.3				-0.3
Translation differences 		
Accumulated depreciation on deducted and
0.4
2.3
7.2
0.0		9.9
transferred items
		
-19.0
-24.9
-0.2		-44.0
Depreciation for the period
			 0.0			0.0
Impairment losses
-0.5
-154.4
-127.8
-1.5		-284.2
Accumulated depreciation, 31 Dec 2010
						
21.1
236.9
85.7
3.0
1.7
348.5
Carrying amount, 1 Jan 2010
15.9
245.3
89.7
2.8
5.1
358.9
Carrying amount, 31 Dec 2010
						
						
Assets under a finance lease
are included in the cost of property, plant and equipment as follows:
						
Buildings and Machinery and
Total
31.12.2010
structures
equipment
EUR million
		
143.6
5.5			149.2
Acquisition cost
		
-67.9
-3.4			-71.3
Accumulated depreciation
		
75.7
2.1			77.8
Carrying amount
						
Land and water Buildings and
Machinery Other tangible
Construction
Total
2009
areas
structures
and
assets
in progress and
			 equipment		 advance payments
EUR million
Acquisition cost
24.1
375.0
213.1
3.2
5.6
621.0
Acquisition cost, 1 Jan 2009
0.0
-1.3
-0.9
0.0
-0.1
-2.3
Translation differences
2.7
12.2
4.9		
0.0
19.9
From business combinations
-1.2
-26.0				-27.2
Assets held for sale
0.2
25.1
18.4
1.2
27.3
72.2
Increases
-3.5
-41.1
-44.7
-0.2
-4.8
-94.3
Decreases
-0.4
30.6
5.0
0.1
-26.3
9.0
Transfers between items
22.0
374.4
195.8
4.3
1.7
598.2
Acquisition cost, 31 Dec 2009
						
						
Accumulated depreciation
-1.4
-128.0
-125.1
-1.3		-255.9
Accumulated depreciation, 1 Jan 2009
0.0
0.0
0.0			0.1
Translation differences
-3.2
-1.6			-4.8
Business combinations 		
0.1
8.6				8.7
Assets held for sale
Accumulated depreciation on deducted and
0.5
7.5
41.0
0.1		49.1
transferred items
		
-21.0
-24.3
-0.2		-45.5
Depreciation for the period
		
-1.4
0.0
0.0		-1.4
Impairment losses
-0.9
-137.5
-110.0
-1.3		-249.7
Accumulated depreciation, 31 Dec 2009
						
22.6
247.0
88.0
1.9
5.6
365.1
Carrying amount, 1 Jan 2009
21.1
236.9
85.7
3.0
1.7
348.5
Carrying amount, 31 Dec 2009
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The increases in buildings						
and structures include capitalised borrowing costs of EUR 0.1 million. The average capitalisation rate was 2.3%.
The adoption of the IAS 						
23 standard began on 1 January 2009.
						
						
Assets under a finance lease
are included in the cost of property, plant and equipment as follows:

			
Machinery				
Buildings and
and
Total
structures
equipment
EUR million
		
143.7
7.4			151.1
Acquisition cost
		
-60.4
-4.6			-65.1
Accumulated depreciation
		
83.2
2.8			86.0
Carrying amount
						
						
14. Investment properties
						
2010
2009
EUR million
Acquisition cost, 1 Jan
58.5
72.1
Increases
		0.0
Decreases
-5.3
-9.6
Transfers between items
0.3
-4.0
Acquisition cost, 31 Dec
53.5
58.5		
		
Accumulated depreciation, 1 Jan.
-26.9
-32.1
Accumulated depreciation on deducted and transferred items
3.5
6.7
Depreciation for the period
-1.4
-1.6
Accumulated depreciation, 31 Dec
-24.7
-26.9		
		
Carrying amount, 1 Jan
31.6
40.0
Carrying amount, 31 Dec
28.8
31.6		
		
Fair value
113.1
106.8
						
15. Intangible assets 						
31 Dec 2009

2010
EUR million

Goodwill
Other
Construction
Total
		
intangible
in progress and
		 rights
advance
			payments
					

Acquisition cost
Acquisition cost, 1 Jan 2010
64.5
192.6
12.0
269.2
Translation differences 		 0.2		0.2
Increases
0.0
36.5
16.5
53.0
Decreases
		 -5.6
-1.1
-6.6
Transfers between items 		 7.7
-14.4
-6.7
Acquisition cost, 31 Dec 2010
64.5
231.4
13.0
309.0
Accumulated amortization
				
Accumulated amortisation and impairment, 1 Jan 2010
-22.0
-144.2		-166.3
Translation differences 		 0.0		0.0
Increases
		 4.5		4.5
Decreases
		 -19.1		-19.1
Accumulated amortisation, 31 Dec 2010
-22.0
-158.9		-180.9
Carrying amount, 1 Jan 2010
Carrying amount, 31 Dec 2010

42.5
42.5

48.4
72.6

12.0
13.0
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2009
EUR million

				
Goodwill
Other
Construction
Total
		
intangible
in progress and
advance
		 rights
			payments
				

Acquisition cost
62.2
205.1
14.9
282.3
Acquisition cost, 1 Jan 2009
Translation differences 		 0.0		0.0
2.3
0.0		2.3
From business combinations
		 5.8
13.5
19.3
Increases
		 -25.3
-2.3
-27.6
Decreases
-14.2
-7.2
Transfers between items 		 7.0
64.5
192.6
12.0
269.2
Acquisition cost, 31 Dec 2009

					
Accumulated amortisation
-22.0
-131.8		-153.8
Accumulated amortisation and impairment, 1 Jan 2009
Translation differences 		 0.0		0.0
		 13.4		13.4
Increases
		 -21.8		-21.8
Decreases
		 -4.0		-4.0
Impairment losses
-22.0
-144.2		-166.3
Accumulated amortization, 31 Dec 2009
				
40.2
73.4
14.9
128.5
Carrying amount, 1 Jan 2009
42.5
48.4
12.0
102.9
Carrying amount, 31 Dec 2009
16. Impairment testing 						
of goodwill
						
Goodwill has been allocated to SOK Corporation’s cash-generating units or to groups of cash-generating units as follows:
						
		
Discount		
Discount
		
rate, %		
Rate, %
2010
2010
2009
2009
EUR million
7.4
11.7
7.4
12.8
Sokos Hotels chain
32.7
9.6
32.7
10.2
Agricultural Trade
2.3
10.2
2.3
North European Oil Trade Oy
42.5		42.5
Total
				
				
Apart from goodwill, SOK
Corporation does not have other intangible assets with an indefinite economic life.
				
				
SOK Corporation’s cash-generating
units are defined for the level below the business segment. As a rule, a cash-generating unit is a legal company.
				
For the Tourism and Hospitality
Business, goodwill is monitored and tested at the chain level. The acquisition of Suomen Rehu has been tested as
				
part of the Agricultural Trade
value chain. The companies to be tested were Hankkija-Maatalous Oy, Hiven Oy and SIA Baltic Feed. The goodwill
				
of North European Oil Trade
Oy was not tested for the 2009 financial statements. At the balance sheet date, less than 12 months had elapsed
				
from the time of acquisition,
nor did the result for 2009 and the forcasts for the next years give indications of impairment. In the 2010 financial
				
statements the goodwill of
North European Oil Trade Oy was tested at the company level.
				
				
Impairment losses
				
In the 2010 financial statements
no impairment losses of goodwill were recognised.
				
In the 2009 financial statements
no impairment losses of goodwill were recognised.
				
				
Testing and sensitivity analysis
				
In impairment testing, the
recoverable amount for the business is based on value-in-use calculations. Value in use has been calculated on the basis
				
of estimated discounted cash
flows. The projected cash flows are based on financial plans which have been approved by management and cover a
five-year-period. The cash				
flows after this period have been extrapolated using a 2% growth rate which, according to the estimate, does not exceed
the long-term actual growth rate of the business areas. The discount rate applied is the weighted average cost of capital (WACC) that is determined
by sector and by country, taking into account the special risks associated with the unit. The required return is based on the average capital structure
for the sector and a sector-specific beta.
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The main variables in impairment
testing are the discount rate, the EBITDA margin (%) as well as the growth rate after the five-year forecasting
				
period. In assessing the EUR
32.7 million goodwill attributable to the Agricultural Trade, the EBITDA margin realised as one percentage point
				
lower during the first year
of the forecasting period does not create a need for impairment. Had the discount rate used been one percentage
				
point higher than that applied
in the calculations, EUR 7.3 million of the goodwill would be recognised as an impairment loss. In assessing the
				
goodwill of the Sokos Hotels
chain or the goodwill of North European Oil Trade Oy, a possible foreseeable change in any of the key variables
				
does not lead to a situation
that would result in the need to recognise an impairment loss.
				
17. Shares in associated				
companies
				
EUR million
2010
2009
Carrying amount, 1 Jan
90.8
11.8
Share of result for the period
7.7
1.8
Dividends received
-0.1
-0.1
Increases
		6.8
Decreases
-5.1
-2.7
Translation differences
0.0
0.0
Transfers between items
-3.3
73.1
Carrying amount, 31 Dec
90.0
90.8		
			
Most significant associated
companies
							
						
2010 EUR million
Assets
Liabilities
Revenue
Result
Share holding %
Finnfrost Oy
36.6
33.2
339.5
0.4
50.0
Coop Trading A/S
25.1
4.8
23.0
-0.7
25.0
Kauppakeskus Mylly Oy
103.8
96.9
14.5
3.4
50.0
S-Bank Ltd
2 687.6
2 521.5
38.3 1)
12.4
50.0
Others
17.2
2.6
5.5
-0.2

Most significant associated
companies
						
2009 EUR million
Finnfrost Oy
Coop Trading A/S
Kauppakeskus Mylly Oy
S-Pankki Oy
Others

Assets
35.8
24.8
103.7
2 689.0
27.6

Liabilities
32.7
4.9
100.2
2 527.5
10.8

Revenue
319.2
23.4
13.9
35.4
4.8

1)

Result
Share holding %
0.1
50.0
0.0
25.0
2.7
50.0
2.9
50.0
-0.5		

							
S-Bank Ltd’s net interest
income has been presented as revenue.
							
S-Bank Ltd has changed							
from a subsidiary to a associated company from July 1st 2009.
							
All associated companies							
of the SOK Corporation are unlisted.
							
							
18. Non-current financial
assets
							
EUR million
2010
2009
Shares and participations
Carrying amount, 1 Jan
5.4
6.8
Increases
0.7
0.4
Decreases
-1.1
-1.7
Change in fair value
0.0
-0.1
Carrying amount, 31 Dec
5.0
5.4
1)

Shares and participations				
include shares in unlisted companies. Unlisted shares are stated at cost,
because their fair values 			
cannot be obtained reliably.
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Non-current financial receivables

EUR million
2010
2009
Non-current trade receivables
0.1
0.1
Receivables sold to the finance companies
30.4
42.9
Receivables from associated companies
0.0
0.9
Capital loan receivables from others
0.7
0.8
Non-current loan receivables
21.1
21.2
Other non-current receivables
0.8
0.4
Non-current financial receivables
53.0
66.3
			
Non-current financial assets, total
58.0
71.7		
			
19. Deferred taxes
							
							
Changes in deferred taxes in 2010
							
Deferred tax assets
							
							
31 Dec 2009
Recognised
Recognised
Foreign
Businesses
Groupings
31 Dec 2010
		 in the income
in equity
exchange
acquired/
and assets
		
statement		
differences
divested
held for
EUR million
						
sale
Confirmed losses
14.1
2.0					
16.2
Provisions and impairment losses 5.1
-1.2					
4.0
Internal margin on inventories and
property, plant and equipment
2.9
-0.2			
0.0		
2.7
Finance lease liabilities
14.5
0.9					
15.4
Fair value reserve
1.4		
-1.4				
0.0
Other items
0.3
0.0
-0.4
0.0		
-0.2
-0.3
Total
38.3
1.6
-1.8
0.0
0.0
-0.2
38.0
							
Deferred tax liabilities 							
EUR million
							
Cumulative depreciation difference9.3
0.4			
0.8
-0.2
10.3
Business combinations
9.0
1.0					
10.1
Other items
3.9
0.3		
0.0			
4.2
Total
22.2
1.8		0.0
0.8
-0.2
24.6
							
Changes in deferred taxes
in 2009
					
		
Deferred tax assets
							
							
31 Dec 2008
Recognised
Recognised
Foreign
Businesses
Groupings
31 Dec 2009
		 in the income
in equity
exchange
acquired/
and assets
		
statement		
differences
divested
held for
EUR million
						
sale
Confirmed losses
12.7
6.4
0.1		
-5.0		
14.1
Provisions and impairment losses 6.8
-1.7					
5.1
Internal margin on inventories and
property, plant and equipment
3.2
-0.3					
2.9
Finance lease liabilities
13.9
1.1				
-0.5
14.5
Fair value reserve
5.3		
-3.9				
1.4
Other items
0.1
0.1		
0.0			
0.3
Total
42.0
5.6
-3.8
0.0
-5.0
-0.5
38.3
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Deferred tax liabilities 							
							
							
EUR million
-1.4
-0.9		
-0.8
-0.9
9.3
Cumulative depreciation difference 13.3
7.1
2.1			
0.3
-0.5
9.0
Business combinations
8.1
-4.7
0.6
-0.2		
0.1
3.9
Other items
28.5
-4.0
-0.2
-0.2
-0.5
-1.3
22.2
Total
							
							
20. Inventories

2010
2009
EUR million
94.3
96.0
Raw materials and consumables
251.7
250.2
Supplies
0.1
0.2
Other inventories
346.2
346.4
Total
		
21. Trade receivables and
other current non-interest-bearing receivables
		

EUR million
2010
2009
Trade receivables
663.1
581.2
Non-interest-bearing loan and other receivables
19.6
25.4
Derivative assets
11.8
17.0
Prepayments and accrued income in financial items
1.5
5.6
Other prepayments and accrued income
21.8
48.1
Trade receivables and other current non-interest-bearing receivables, total
717.9
677.3
		
22. Current interest-bearing
receivables
		

EUR million
2010
2009
Interest-bearing loan and		0.0
other receivables
Receivables sold to the finance companies
33.5
47.5
Current interest-bearing receivables, total
33.5
47.5
		
23. Short-term investments
EUR million
Mutual fund shares
Bonds and notes
Total

2010
2009
		0.0
30.0
30.0
0.0
		
24. Cash and cash equivalents
		

EUR million
2010
2009
Cash on hand and deposits
238.3
240.8
		
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows are made up as follows:
		
EUR million
2010
2009
Cash on hand and deposits
248.2
241.4
Total
248.2
241.4
		
Items categorised as cash 		
and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows have a maturity of a maximum of three months from the acquisition date.
The statement of cash flows includes the cash on hand and deposits of assets held for sale.
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25. Equity

		

2010
2009
EUR million
133.4
122.5
Cooperative capital, 1 Jan
6.2
10.9
Cooperative contributions paid
139.6
133.4
Cooperative capital, 31 Dec
		
		
Cooperative capital consists
of the cooperative contributions paid to Suomen Osuuskauppojen Keskusosuuskunta (SOK) for participations in the
cooperative enterprises. 		
The number of participations in a cooperative enterprise is determined on the basis of the number of the members and
annual purchases of the 		
cooperative enterprises.
		
		
Restricted reserves
		
		
Fair value reserve
		
The fair value reserve includes
changes in the fair values of derivative instruments used to hedge available-for-sale investments and cash flow.
		
Value of the reserve is EUR
0.1 million on 31 Dec 2010 (EUR 0.1 million on 31 Dec 2009).
		
Reserve fund
		
The reserve fund comprises
the portion of non-restricted equity that can be transferred under the cooperative’s statutes. Value of the fund is
EUR 18.5 million on 31		
Dec 2010 (EUR 18.5 million on 31 Dec 2009).
		
		
Supervisory Board’s Disposal
fund
		
The Supervisory Board decides
on the use of its disposal fund. Value of the fund is EUR 0.1 million on 31 Dec 2010
(EUR 0.0 million on 31		
Dec 2009).
26. Supplementary cooperative capital
2010
2009
EUR million
12.8
12.8
Non-current supplementary cooperative capital
Current supplementary 		2.0
cooperative capital
		
		
Supplementary cooperative
capital consists of voluntary investments in Suomen Osuuskauppojen Keskusosuuskunta (SOK) made by the
cooperative enterprises. 		
The cooperative enterprises have the right to have their supplementary cooperative capital contributions returned in the
		
manner and subject to the
conditions prescribed in the Cooperatives Act and SOK’s statutes.
		
27. Interest-bearing liabilities
		
Non-current interest-bearing liabilities
2010
2009
EUR million
0.0
20.2
Loans from financial institutions
89.3
97.1
Finance lease liabilities
0.3
0.3
Trade payables
46.9
73.7
Other non-current interest-bearing liabilities
136.5
191.4
Non-current interest-bearing liabilities, total
		
		
Current interest-bearing
liabilities
EUR million
Loans from financial institutions
Finance lease liabilities
Other current interest-bearing liabilities
Current interest-bearing liabilities, total
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2010
42.0
7.8
123.7
173.5

2009
24.3
7.9
156.4
188.5

		
Finance lease liabilities		

EUR million
2010
2009
Finance lease liabilities –		
total amount of minimum lease payments
In one year
13.1
13.5
In one to five years
45.2
48.0
Over five years
54.9
65.5
Minimum lease payments, total
113.2
127.0
		
Finance lease liabilities –		
present value of minimum lease payments
In one year
7.8
7.9
In one to five years
29.9
30.5
Over five years
45.2
52.7
Present value of minimum lease payments, total
83.0
91.1
		
Accrued financial expenses
30.2
35.9
		
Lease payments expected from subleases
6.8
2.6
		
Finance lease agreements		
consist primarily of lease agreements on properties.
		
28. Non-interest-bearing
liabilities
		

EUR million
2010
2009
Non-current non-interest-bearing liabilities
27.4
28.1
Accruals and deferred income
9.3
10.7
Non-current non-interest-bearing liabilities, total
36.7
38.8
		
Trade payables, total
851.7
729.7
		
Advances received
33.8
32.0
Current liabilities
44.9
52.6
Derivative financial instruments
8.2
19.7
Accruals and deferred income
142.3
127.9
Current non-interest bearing liabilities, total
229.2
232.2
		
Material items included		
in current accruals and deferred income
Personnel expenses
57.4
57.3
Financing items
2.1
4.1
Others
82.9
66.5
Current accruals and deferred income, total
142.3
127.9
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Carrying amount 2010

Liabilities to be measured
at amortised cost

Financial assets
and liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss

						
29. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value 2010

Hedge accounting
derivatives

Available-for-sale
financial assets

Loans and receivables

						
						
						
							
EUR million		

Note
							
							
Financial assets
							
Non-current financial assets
(18)
			 5.0			 5.0
5.0
Shares and participations
		 22.6				 22.6
22.9
Loan receivables
		 0.1				 0.1
0.1
Trade receivables
		 30.4				 30.4
27.6
Receivables sold to a finance company
							
Trade receivables and other current
(21)
non-interest-bearing receivables
		 663.1				 663.1
663.1
Trade receivables
		
1.4				 1.4
1.4
Prepayments and accrued income in financial
items
11.9					 11.9
11.9
Derivatives assets
Current interest-bearing receivables
(22)							
33.1
		 33.5				 33.5
Receivables sold to a finance company
(23)							
Short-term investments
30.0
			 30.0			 30.0
Available-for-sale investments
Cash and cash equivalents
(24)							
238.3
		 238.3				 238.3
Cash in hand and deposits
							
11.9
989.3
35.0			
1 036.2
1 033.3
Financial assets, total
							
							
Financial liabilities
							
12.8
12.8
Supplementary cooperative capital
(26)					 12.8
Non-current interest-bearing liabilities
(27)							
14.3
14.5
					 14.3
Pension loans
					 0.3
0.3
0.3
Trade payables
					 2.8
2.8
2.9
Interest-bearing loans from others
Finance company liability for
					 29.8
29.8
27.0
sold receivables
					 89.3
89.3
92.6
Finance lease liabilities
Non-current non-interest-bearing liabilities (28)							
					 19.8
19.8
19.8
Cash counting service
Current interest-bearing liabilities
(27)							
42.0
42.1
					 42.0
Interest-bearing loans from financial institutions
					 5.7
5.7
5.8
Pension loans
					 84.4
84.4
84.5
Interest-bearing loans from others
Finance company liability for
					 33.3
33.3
32.9
sold receivables
					 7.8
7.8
12.8
Finance lease liabilities
Current non-interest-bearing liabilities (28)							
					 1.1
1.1
1.1
Accruals and deferred income in financial items
13.7					 13.7
13.7
Derivatives liabilities
851.7
851.7
Trade payables		
(28)					 851.7
							
13.7				
1 195.1
1 208.7
1 214.6
Financial liabilities, total
							
							
Available-for-sale shares of the Retail and Wholesale
Business include EUR 5.0 million of unquoted shares (2009: 5.4 million),
for which the fair value cannot be determined.
The fair value of supplementary cooperative capital, EUR 12.8 million (2009: 14.8 million), as well as of non-current and current receivables sold to a
finance company cannot be determined reliably. The receivables sold to a finance company are trade receivables in the automotive and agricultural trade.
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Fair value 2009

Carrying amount 2009

Liabilities to be measured
at amortised cost

Hedge accounting
derivatives

Available-for-sale
financial assets

Loans and receivables

Financial assets
and liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss

							
Note
								
							
Financial assets
		
					
Non-current financial assets
(18)
							
Shares and participations
			 5.4			 5.4
5.4
Loan receivables
		 22.4				 22.4
22.4
Trade receivables
		 0.1				 0.1
0.1
Receivables sold to a finance company
		 42.9				 42.9
40.0
Trade receivables and other current
							
non-interest-bearing receivables
(21)
Trade receivables
581.2
		 581.2				 581.2
Prepayments and accrued income in financial
		
6.2				 6.2
6.2
items
Derivatives assets
16.4			 1.0		 17.3
17.3
Current interest-bearing receivables
(22)
							
Receivables sold to a finance company
47.2
		 47.5				 47.5
(24)
							
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand and deposits
240.8
		 240.8				 240.8
							
Financial assets, total
16.4
941.1
5.4
1.0		 963.9
960.6
							
Financial liabilities
							
							
Supplementary cooperative capital
(26)
12.8
12.8
					 12.8
Non-current interest-bearing liabilities
(27)
							
Interest-bearing loans from financial institutions
20.2
20.3
					 20.2
Pension loans
					 20.0
20.0
20.1
Trade payables
					 0.3
0.3
0.3
Interest-bearing loans from others
					 13.1
13.1
13.3
Finance company liability
for sold receivables
					 42.7
42.7
39.9
Finance lease liabilities
					 97.1
97.1
99.7
Non-current non-interest-bearing liabilities (28)
							
Cash counting service
19.6
19.6
					 19.6
Current supplementary cooperative capital (26)
					 2.0
2.0
2.0
Current interest-bearing liabilities
(27)
							
Interest-bearing loans from financial institutions
24.3
25.0
					 24.3
Interest-bearing loans from others
					 105.2
105.2
113.5
Finance company liability
for sold receivables
					 49.0
49.0
48.7
Finance lease liabilities
					 7.9
7.9
13.4
Current non-interest-bearing liabilities
(28)
							
Accruals and deferred income in financial items
3.4
3.4
					 3.4
Derivatives liabilities
22.6			 6.4		 28.9
28.9
Trade payables		
(28)
					 729.7
729.7
729.7
							
Financial liabilities, total
22.6			
6.4
1 147.4
1 176.3
1 190.6
EUR million		
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The fair value hierarchy for financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
EUR million		

Note

Assets measured at fair value
Non-current financial assets
Shares and participations
Trade receivables and other current
non-interest-bearing receivables
Derivatives assets
Short-term investments
Available-for-sale investments
Total

(18)
(21)

Fair Value 2010
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
				
				
				
5.0			
5.0
				

11.9		 11.9
				
30.0		 30.0
46.9		41.9
5.0
				
				
Liabilities measured at fair value
				
				
Current non-interest-bearing liabilities (28)
13.7
4.7
9.0
		Derivatives liabilities
13.7
4.7
9.0
Total
				
and 2 in the fair value hierarchy in 2010.
There were no significant transfers between levels 1				
				
Fair values on hierarchy level 1 are based on the quoted
prices of completely identical asset items or liabilities in an active market.
				
The Group has used valuations by Bloomberg, Reuters,
Platts, and Nasdaq OMX Commodities as pricing sources in determining the fair value of
				
these instruments.
				
The fair values of level 2 instruments are to a significant extent based on inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1.
However they are based on information that is observable for the said asset item either directly or indirectly. In determining the fair value of
these instruments, the Group uses generally accepted valuation models in which the input is to a significant extent based on verifiable market
information.
(23)

The fair values of level 3 instruments are based on inputs concerning the asset item or liability which is not based on verifiable
market information.
The fair value hierarchy level to which an item measured at fair value has been classified in its entirety is determined based on the lowest level
inputs that are significant for the entire item in question, measured at fair value. The significance of the input has been estimated in its entirety in
relation to the item in question measured at fair value.
				
Fair Value 2009
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
EUR million		
Note
Assets measured at fair value
Non-current financial assets
Shares and participations
Trade receivables and other current
non-interest-bearing receivables
Derivatives assets
Total

(18)
(21)

Liabilities measured at fair value
Current non-interest-bearing liabilities
		Derivatives liabilities
Total

86

(28)

				
				
				
5.4			
5.4
				
17.3
7.3
10.1
22.7
7.3
10.1
5.4
				
				
		
		
				
28.9
16.7
12.2
28.9
16.7
12.2
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Reconciliation calculation for financial assets measured
				
at fair value in accordance with level 3
EUR million
Opening balance, 1 Jan
Profits and losses total
Under other operating income
Purchases
Sales
Closing balance, 31 Dec

2010
2009
		
5.4
5.4
0.2
0.7
-1.3
5.0

0.3
0.3
-0.6
5.4

During 2010, there were no transfers to or from level
3 of the fair value hierarchy in the financial assets’ or liabilities’ fair value classes
			
For financial instruments measured on level 3, changing one or more inputs used for determining the fair value to a fairly possible
alternative assumption would not significantly change
the fair value of the items, considering the relatively small total quantity of the
			
said assets.
			
30. Provisions
		
EUR million
Other provisions
Provisions, 1 Jan 2010
Increases in provisions
Provisions used
Reversals of unused provisions
Provisions, 31 Dec 2010
All provisions were long-term.
EUR million

16.2
0.4
-3.5
-0.8
12.3
		
		
		
Other provisions

Provisions, 1 Jan 2009
Increases in provisions
Provisions used
Reversals of unused provisions
Provisions, 31 Dec 2009

22.9
2.5
-4.3
-5.0
16.2
		
All provisions were long-term.
		
		
Other provisions consist mainly of vacant premises		
rental liability, which will end latest on year 2017.
		
31. Operating leases
		
		
Group as lessee
		
Minimum lease payments on non-cancellable operating
leases:
		
		
EUR million
2010
2009
In one year
105.3
102.3
In one to five years
356.4
350.2
Over five years
539.6
574.1
Total
1 001.3
1 026.6
		
Year 2009 figures have been adjusted.
		
		
Group as lessor
		
		
Minimum lease payments on non-cancellable operating
leases:
		
EUR million
In one year
In one to five years
Over five years
Total

2010
0.8
5.3
0.7
6.8
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2009
1.1
1.3
0.2
2.6
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32. Management of financial
and commodity price risks
The management of finance and financial risks has been centralised within SOK’s Treasury unit. SOK Corporation has a financial policy, strategy
and risk management instructions that are established by SOK’s Executive Board. These define the principles of managing financial risks and the
permissible maximum amounts for financial risks. In addition, numerical targets have been set for the different subareas of financing with the aim
of being able to ensure the sufficiency, balance and affordability of financing in all conditions.
Derivatives are used mainly to hedge SOK Corporation’s financial risks and the price risks of commodities. Trading in derivatives for other than
hedging purposes is done only within the risk limits approved by SOK’s Executive Board. In the books all derivatives have been valued at fair value
and the changes in value have been recognised through profit and loss.
CREDIT RISK
The management of credit risks associated with commercial operations is part of the daily operations of the business areas. Investment activities
and trading in derivatives		
are carried on only with the counterparties approved by SOK’s Executive Board and within the framework of the limit
approved by the Executive
Board.
		
		
Maximum amount of credit
risk for financial assets
					
		
EUR million		
Note
2010
2009
		
Non-current financial assets
(18)
		
Loan receivables
22.6
22.4
Trade receivables
0.1
0.1
Receivables sold to a finance companies
30.4
42.9
Trade receivables and other
current
		
non-interest-bearing receivables (21)
Trade receivables
663.1
581.2
Prepayments and accrued income in financial items
1.4
6.2
Derivatives assets
11.9
17.3
Current interest-bearing 		
receivables (22)
Receivables sold to a finance companies
33.5
47.5
Short-term investments		
(23)
Available-for-sale investments
30.0
Cash and cash equivalents
(24)
238.3
240.8
Off-balance sheet liabilities
(34)
		
Nominal value of warranty liabilities
70.3
91.8
		
Yhteensä
1101.5
1050.3
		
Receivables sold to a finance
company are trade receivables in the automotive and agricultural trade. The credit risk and interest benefit of the
		
receivables have not been		
transferred to the finance company when the assets were transferred; for this reason, the receivables continue to be stated in
the balance sheet. The liability
corresponding to the receivables, EUR 63.1 million (2098: EUR 91.8 million) is stated under non-current and current
		
interest-bearing liabilities		
in the balance sheet (Note 27). SOK Corporation has a repurchase liability for the receivables. The credit risk is reduced by
the asset or commodity sold.
				
		
Derivatives assets comprise the positive market values in the accounting of agreements.
Items reducing the credit risk
The value of real securities received as counter-guarantees for collaterals given on behalf of the cooperative enterprises was EUR 2.5 million
(2009: EUR 2.5 million). Trade receivables in the agricultural trade have been secured by taking out credit insurance to a value EUR 3.2 million
(2009: 28.6 million). In addition, SOK Corporation has received rental guaranty deposits in the form of both bank guaranties and cash to a value
of EUR 0.4 million (2009: 0.4 million).
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Ageing of loan and trade receivables
2010
Of which not
Of which reduced in value at the balance sheet date.		 Impairment
but having fallen due in the following periods
		reduced in value or
losses recorded
		due at the balance			
in the financial
EUR million		
Note
		
sheet date
1–30 days
31–90 days
over 90 days
period
							
Loan receivables
		
due in less than one year
(22)
due in over one year
(18)
22.6
22.6				
						
Trade receivables
					
due in less than one year
(21)
663.1
646.5
10.6
3.1
3.0
due in over one year
(18)
0.1
0.1				
						
Total
685.7
669.1
10.6
3.1
3.0
						
Of which reduced in value at the balance sheet date.		 Impairment
2009
Of which not
but having fallen due in the following periods
		reduced in value or
losses recorded
		due at the balance			
in the financial
EUR million		
Note
		
sheet date
1–30 days
31–90 days
over 90 days
period
		
						
Loan receivables
due in less than one year
(22)
						
due in over one year
(18)
22.4
22.4				
						
Trade receivables
						
due in less than one year
(21)
581.2
562.7
11.6
2.7
4.2
due in over one year
(18)
0.1
0.1				
						
Total
603.8
585.3
11.6
2.7
4.2
						
The ageing analysis of loan
and trade receivables has been presented for SOK Corporation’s external items only.
						
		
Reconciliation of the credit
loss accounts
				
						
EUR million
			
2010		2009
						
Realised credit losses 			1.0		
1.1
Returned credit losses 			-0.3		
-0.3
the financial year
Impairment recognised for
						
Closing balance, 31 Dec			
0.7		0.9
		
Credit losses are due to trade
receivables that did not gain interest and that did not have collateral.		
						
						
Quality analysis of debt						
securities
				
		2010		2009
EUR million		
Note
		
Value
Share of receivables, %
Value Share of receivables
				
Senior loans		
(23)
		
30.0
100.0		
Total
		30.0
100.0		
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Debt securities by credit				
rating 1)
		2010		2009
		
Value
Share of receivables, %
Value Share of receivables
EUR million		
Note
				
		
30.0
100.0		
AA		 		
(23)
		30.0
100.0
Total
				
1)
				
The S&P rating has primarily
been used. If the S&P rating has not been available, a corresponding Moody’s or Fitch rating has been used.
				
The Corporation did not
have debt securities on 31 December 2009.
				
Risk concentrations 				
Geographical distribution of receivables 2010
		
Finland
			
EUR million

Nordic
countries

Other		
EU countries

Other
countries

		
21.8		
0.2		
0.5
Loan receivables
		
63.9			
Receivables sold to a finance
companies
		
657.0
0.2
3.6		
2.3
Trade receivables
		 30.0			
Available-for-sale investments
		
143.5
69.9
11.7		
13.3
Cash and cash equivalents
		 13.4			
Other items
		929.5
70.0
15.6		
16.1
Total
				
		
Geographical distribution
of receivables 2009
		
Finland
Nordic
Other		
Other
			
countries
EU countries
countries
EUR million
		
22.0		
0.0		
0.4
Loan receivables
		
90.4			
Receivables sold to a finance
companies
		
572.5
0.8
4.3		
3.7
Trade receivables
		
186.1
45.2
2.4		
7.1
Cash and cash equivalents
		 23.5			
Other items
		894.5
45.9
6.8		
11.2
Total
				
				
Risk concentrations are presented
in the tables only for SOK Corporation’s external items.
				
		
LIQUIDITY RISK
SOK endeavours to minimise liquidity and refinancing risks by maintaining a balanced maturity distribution for its loans and by means of
sufficient financial reserves. Adequate liquidity is maintained by means of cash balances, overdraft facilities, liquid money-market investments and
long-term binding credit facilities.
SOK Corporation seeks, in accordance with its financing strategy, to keep its liquid funds and unused long-term binding facilities at a minimum
amount of 10 per cent of its total assets plus the amount of the unused credit facility. Liquid assets at the end of the year stood at EUR 268.3
milloin (2009: EUR 241.4 million), and unused long-term binding credit facilities amounted to EUR 305 million (2009: EUR 325 million),
							
thus totalling 24.1 per cent
(2009: 22.9 per cent) of SOK Corporation’s total assets plus the amount of unused credit facilities.
In the operative accounting, the quick ratio target has been set at more than 1, including long-term undrawn credit facilities.
At the end of the year the quick ratio calculated in the above-mentioned manner was 1.1 (2009: 1.2).
SOK Corporation has concluded agreements on committed credit facilities to an amount of EUR 305 million (2009: EUR 345 million).
The credit facilities have not been secured by collateral. In 2012 EUR 15 million will fall due, in 2013 EUR 200 million will fall due, in 2014
EUR 50 million will fall due and the remaining EUR 40 million will fall due in 2015. The committed credit limit in use in 2010 amounted to an
average of EUR 14.8 million.
In addition, the SOK Corporation has an EUR 150 million commercial paper programme of which an average of EUR 24.4 million was in use.
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Maturity analysis of SOK
Corporation’s agreement-based cash flows from financial liabilities and derivative contracts

EUR million		

2010
		
		
Note

Agreement On demand
based		
cash flows 1)

Less than 3–12 mths 1–2 yrs 2–5 yrs
3 mths				

over
5 yrs

Non-derivative financial assets
Supplementary cooperative capital
(26) 12.8
15.2				 0.2
1.0
14.0
Non-current interest-bearing
liabilities
(27)
								
Pension loans
14.3
14.9				 6.1
8.8
Trade payables
0.3
0.3				 0.2
0.1
Interest-bearing loans to others
2.8
2.9		 0.0		 2.3
0.6
0.0
Finance company liability
for sold receivables
29.8
29.8				 17.1
12.7
Finance lease liabilities
89.3
114.1				 12.8
44.1
57.1
liabilities (28)
Non-current non-interest-bearing
								
Cash counting service
19.8
19.8
19.8					
Current supplementary cooperative capital
Current interest-bearing liabilities
(27)
Interest-bearing loans from
financial institutions
42.0
42.1		41.9
0.2			
Pension loans
5.7
6.3		3.2
3.1			
Interest-bearing loans from others
84.4
84.5		84.3
0.2
Finance company liability
			
for sold receivables
33.3
33.3		 8.3
25.0			
Finance lease liabilities
7.8
13.1		 3.3
9.8			
Current non-interest-bearing liabilities
(28)
Accruals and deferred income in
financial items
1.1
1.1		0.7
0.4			
Trade payables		
(28) 851.7
851.7		668.7
183.0			
Off-balance liabilities 								
(34)
Nominal value of guarantee liabilities
70.3
70.3
70.3					
Non-derivative financial assets,
total

1265.3

1299.3

90.0

810.3

221.8

38.7

67.3

71.2

Derivatives liabilities
(22), (26)
Currency derivatives
2.6
3.4		 1.8
0.8
0.7
0.1
Interest rate derivatives
6.1
6.1		 0.3
2.2
2.8
0.8
0.0
Electricity derivatives
0.3
0.3					0.2
0.1
Oil product derivatives
4.6							
Other commodity derivatives
0.2
0.2		0.2
0.0			
Derivatives assets		
(19), (22)
								
Currency derivatives
5.7
2.2		 1.1
-0.3
1.4
0.0
Interest rate derivatives
5.9
6.3		 0.2
2.0
2.5
1.1
0.4
Electricity derivatives
0.3
0.3					0.2
0.1
								
Net derivatives liabilites, total
1.7
1.1		 0.9
1.2
-0.4
-0.2
-0.4
								
Total
1267.1
1300.4
90.0
811.3
223.0
38.3
67.1
70.8
1)

Expence on financial liabilities + / return on financial assets +

Given in the table are all the instruments in effect on 31 December 2010 and their agreement-based principal amounts and interest. All items
in foreign currency have been translated into euro, applying the spot rates on the balance sheet date. Floating-rate interest payments on financial
liabilities have been defined applying the forward contract interest rate quotations at the balance sheet date. Financial liabilities for which
repayment can be claimed before the due date have been presented in a period during which repayment can be made at the earliest.
For derivatives, the net cash flows of each agreement have been presented in the table. For interest rate swaps, the net cash flows of each agreement
are shown. Future floating-rate cash flows have been defined applying the quotations at the balance sheet date. For currency derivatives, the net cash
flows of each agreement have been presented. The cash flows presented for electricity derivatives are the fair value at the balance sheet date in the
maturity corresponding to the due date. Oil product derivatives are cleared daily, for which reason, future cash flows are not presented for them.
The cash flows presented for grain product derivatives are the fair value at the balance sheet date in the maturity corresponding to the due date.
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Supplementary Cooperative Capital
Supplementary cooperative capital is a cooperative enterprise’s voluntary investment in the cooperative enterprise. Of the aggregate amount of supplementary
cooperative contributions corresponding to the supplementary cooperative shares issued, the amount paid to the cooperative enterprise at any given time
constitutes the supplementary cooperative capital. The cooperative enterprise has the right to reduce the number of its additional cooperative shares by
notifying the Executive Board of the cooperative enterprise thereof in writing. The reduction in the supplementary cooperative shares and the refund of the
supplementary cooperative contributions corresponding to them is carried out in accordance with the provisions of the Cooperatives Act and in the manner
and subject to the terms of SOK’s statutes.
The supplementary cooperative capital contribution is refunded to the cooperative enterprise at a time decided by the Executive Board of the cooperative
enterprise, which can be no earlier than six months after the close of the financial period during which a demand for reduction in the supplementary
cooperative shares and refund of the supplementary contributions has been presented to the cooperative society and no later than within five years and six
months of such demand, counting
from the beginning of the next calendar year. The equity to be used for the refund and the amount of the supplementary
								
cooperative contribution to								
be returned are calculated on the basis of the financial statements to be prepared for the financial period preceding the date of the
refund, in accordance with							
the provisions of the Cooperatives Act.
2009 Agreement On demand Less than 3–12 mths 1–2 yrs 2–5 yrs
over
		
based		
3 mths				
5 yrs
EUR million		
Note
		
cash flows 1)
								
Non-derivative financial assets
								
Supplementary cooperative capital
(26) 12.8
15.2				 0.2
1.1
14.0
Non-current interest-bearing
liabilities
(27)
								
Interest-bearing liabilities to
financial institutions
20.2
20.3		 20.0		0.3		
Pension loans
20.0
21.6		
0.1
0.3
6.3
14.9
Trade payables
0.3
0.3				 0.2
0.1
Interest-bearing liabilities to others
13.1
13.5
0.1
0.0
0.2
12.4
0.6
0.2
Finance company liability
for sold receivables
42.7
42.7				 24.9
17.8
Finance lease liabilities
97.1
127.4				 13.4
46.3
67.7
liabilities (28)
Non-current non-interest-bearing
								
Cash counting service
19.6
19.6
19.6					
Current supplementary cooperative capital
2.0
2.1			 2.0
0.0		
liabilities
Current interest-bearing								
(27)
Interest-bearing liabilities to
financial institutions
24.3
24.7		 8.6
16.1			
Interest-bearing loans from others
105.2
105.4
0.4
104.7
0.2		
Finance company liability
for sold receivables
49.0
49.0		12.3
36.8			
Finance lease liabilities
7.9
13.5		 3.4
10.1			
Current non-interest-bearing
liabilities
(28)
								
Accruals and deferred income in
financial items
3.4
3.4		2.7
0.6			
Trade payables		
(28) 729.7
729.7		728.1
1.6			
Off-balance liabilities 								
(34)
Nominal value of guarantee liabilities
91.8
91.8
91.8					
Non-derivative financial assets, total
1239.2
1280.3
112.0
880.0
67.9
57.6
80.8
81.9
								
Derivatives liabilities 								
(22), (26)
Currency derivatives
5.2
6.2		 3.3
2.7
0.1
0.1
Interest rate derivatives
5.0
5.1		 0.4
2.1
0.8
1.8
0.0
Electricity derivatives
10.2
10.2		 1.4
4.4
3.1
0.5
0.7
Oil product derivatives
8.6
1.0		0.5
0.4			
Other commodity derivatives
0.0
0.0		0.0
0.0			
Derivatives assets		
(19), (22)
								
Currency derivatives
6.0
5.4		 0.5
4.7
0.2		
Interest rate derivatives
4.1
4.4		 0.3
1.8
0.6
1.6
0.0
Electricity derivatives
7.3
7.3		 1.3
3.0
2.1
0.8
Net derivatives liabilites, total
11.6
5.4		 3.5
0.1
1.0
0.0
0.7
								
Total
1250.8
1285.7
112.0
883.5
68.0
58.7
80.8
82.7
1)

Expence on financial liabilities + / return on financial assets +
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INTEREST RATE RISK
The interest rate risk is examined over 12-month and three-year periods. A one percentage point linear change in the market interest rate level
must not cause an increase of over 0.5 percentage point in the interest rate level of average interest-bearing net liabilities.
						
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The table shows the interest rate sensitivity of SOK Corporation’s interest-bearing net liabilities measured at fair value as well as derivatives
receivables and liabilities. The effect of a one percentage point change in the interest rate on SOK Corporation’s income statement and equity on
the balance sheet date is presented as sensitivity. Other variables are assumed to remain constant.
The effect on the income statement and equity is shown without the effect of taxes.
Effect on the income statement		
Position exposed
Duration 1 percentage
1 percentage
2010
to risk		
point rise
point fall
EUR million		
Note

Effect on equity
1 percentage 1 percentage
point rise
point fall

Short-term investments
(23)
30.0
0.1			
0.0
0.0
EUR
						
Derivatives assets and liabilities
(21), (28)
290.8
1.1
1.4
-1.5		
EUR
102.9
0.5
-0.5
0.4		
USD
33.4
0.1
0.0
0.0		
EEK
12.1
0.1
0.0
0.0		
LVL
7.9
0.1
0.0
0.0		
LTL
78.1
1.2
0.8
-0.8		
RUB
						
555.1		 1.7
-1.8
0.0
0.0
Total
						
Effect on the income statement		
Effect on equity
Position exposed
Duration 1 percentage
1 percentage
1 percentage 1 percentage
2009
to risk		
point rise
point fall
point rise
point fall
EUR million		
Note
						
		
						
Derivatives assets and liabilities
(21), (28)
215.5
0.3
-0.1
0.1		
EUR
78.8
0.4
0.3
-0.3		
USD
27.3
0.1
0.0
0.0		
EEK
20.2
0.2
0.0
0.0		
LVL
10.9
0.1
0.0
0.0		
LTL
66.3
0.7
0.3
-0.3		
RUB
0.1
0.0
0.0
0.0		
Other currencies
						
419.0		0.6
-0.6		
Total
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CURRENCY RISK
SOK Corporation’s revenue still comes mainly from Finland. Commercial foreign exchange risks are the responsibility of the unit making the
transaction. The extent of the foreign exchange risk for the balance sheets of subsidiaries in the Baltic countries and Russia is examined on the
basis of the analysis of the source and application of the balance sheet. Currency risk is reduced by financing the operations of the companies in
the same currency as the application of funds as well as by means of derivatives. SOK has primarily hedged the amount of equity of its foreign
subsidiaries by means of currency derivatives to which hedge accounting is not applied. The calculation includes the amount of equity in SOK’s
foreign subsidiaries. Its conversion into euro will have an impact on equity.
Currency sensitivity analysis
The currency sensitivity analysis shows the effect on SOK Corporation’s profit/loss or equity of a 10% appreciation of depreciation in the euro
against other currencies. Other variables are asssumed to remain constant.
The effect on the income statement and equity is shown without the effect of taxes.
		 Effect on the income statement
Position		Appreciation		
Depreciation
exposed		
of the euro 		
of the euro
2010
to risk		
10%		
10%
EUR million
172.1		0.4		
-0.4
USD
33.5		3.3		
-3.3
EEK
21.9		0.7		
-0.7
LVL
11.6		0.4		
-0.4
LTL
130.2		2.1		
-2.1
RUB
2.3		-0.1		
0.1
Other currencies
371.5		6.8		
-6.8
Total
			
			
Effect on equity
Position		Appreciation		
Depreciation
exposed		
of the euro 		
of the euro
2010
to risk		
10%		
10%
EUR million
19.0		-1.9		
1.9
EEK
7.0		-0.7		
0.7
LVL
1.7		-0.2		
0.2
LTL
20.3		-2.0		
2.0
RUB
48.0		-4.8		
4.8
Total
			
			
In assessing SOK Corporation’s
total exposure to the US dollar, the price-tied inventories of oil must be taken into account, which are not included
			
in the currency risk analysis.
The impact of the strengthening of euro on the inventory value compensates for the most part of the value change in
			
the Corporation’s USD-denominated
currency derivatives.
In assessing SOK Corporation’s total exposure to the Russian ruble (RUB), Estonian krooni (EEK), Lithuanian litas (LTL) and Latvian lat (LVL), account
must be taken of the long-term lease agreements of the subsidiaries that operate in these currencies, which are in euros or are currency clause-containing
			
foreign currency-denominated
agreements for which the subsidiaries have hedged the currency risk by means of derivatives. The lease agreements are not
included in the currency sensitivity analysis.											
		 Effect on the income statement
Position		Appreciation		
Depreciation
exposed		
of the euro 		
of the euro
2009
to risk		
10%		
10%
EUR million
122.9		6.9		
-6.9
USD
42.2		2.8		
-2.8
EEK
31.1		1.4		
-1.4
LVL
13.5		0.8		
-0.8
LTL
144.6		-1.2		
1.2
RUB
1.3		0.1		
-0.1
Other currencies
355.6		10.9		
-10.9
Total

2009
EUR million
EEK
LVL
LTL
RUB
Total
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		 		Effect on equity
Position		Appreciation		
Depreciation
exposed		
of the euro 		
of the euro
to risk		
10%		
10%
23.4		-2.3		
2.3
5.7		-0.6		
0.6
1.5		-0.1		
0.1
25.5		-2.5		
2.5
56.1		-5.6		
5.6
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PRICE RISKS
Price risk management in the electricity market trading
The objective of electricity market trading is to cost-effectively obtain the electric energy which the S Group needs from the most affordable
procurement source and to even out the cost impacts due to changes in the market price of electricity.
On 1 June 2010, the management of price risk in S Group’s electricity procurement and the delivery of electric energy to the companies in
S Group was transferred to S-Voima Oy. At the same time, applying hedge accounting to electricity derivatives in the SOK Corporation was
discontinued. The effects of the discontinuation of hedge accounting on the financial result and shareholders’ equity are presented in Note 11.
SOK Corporation did not have an open position related to electricity derivatives on the balance sheet date.
Price risk of available-for-sale investments
Available-for-sale investments are unquoted shares.
The Corporation did not have quoted shares on 31 December 2010.
Fuel trade price risk management
The S Group’s fuels are procured by SOK’s subsidiary North European Oil Trade Oy (NEOT). In procuring fuels, the company incurs price risk through
its stocks of fuel, and the control of this risk is determined by the company’s risk management policy. Price risk is managed by using hedging instruments,
such as the futures and options that are traded on the London and New York oil exchanges as well as by means of swaps on the OTC market.
Oil product derivatives sensitivity analysis
The price risk exposure of oil product derivatives is stated as the effect on SOK Corporation’s profit/loss of a 10 per cent change in the market price of oil.
The effect on the income statement is shown without the effect of taxes.
						
2010
Effect on the income statement		
2009 Effect on the income statement
Position
Appreciation
Depreciation
Position
Appreciation
Depreciation
exposed to risk
of the euro 10%
of the euro 10%
exposed to risk of the euro 10% of the euro 10%
EUR million
						
130.1
-6.0
6.0
104.2
-7.1
7.1
Oil product derivatives
						
Because inventories tied 						
to the price of oil are not included in the analysis, this analysis does not give a representative picture of SOK
Corporation’s overall risk. The inventory value change compensates for the most part of the value change of derivatives.
Commodity price risk management of the agricultural trade
The SOK subsidiary Hankkija-Maatalous Oy make use of wheat, oats, oil seed and soybean meal derivatives to hedge price risks involved in
the trading in and production of these commodities.In addition, the Agricultural Trade has hedged against the trading price risk of fuel oil
used in production by means of futures. These positions were not open on 31 December 2010.
						
Sensitivity analysis of commodity
derivatives of the Agricultural Trade
The price risk exposure of						
commodity derivatives is stated as the effect on SOK Corporation’s profit/loss of a 10 per cent change in the
						
market price of the said commodity.
The effect on the income statement is shown without the effect of taxes.

EUR million
Grain and livestock feed
derivatives

2010
Effect on the income statement		
2009
Effect on the income statement
Position
Appreciation
Depreciation
Position
Appreciation
Depreciation
exposed to risk
of the euro 10%
of the euro 10%
exposed to risk of the euro 10% of the euro 10%
						

4.8
-0.1
0.1
0.8
-0.1
0.1
						
The analysis of the grain 						
and livestock feed derivatives does not provide an accurate picture of the Corporation’s risks in these products.
The grain and livestock feed components in inventory and their binding physical purchase agreements are not included in the analysis.
They have an opposite price risk in terms of physical selling agreements and derivatives.
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33. Related party transactions
SOK Corporation’s related parties include the parent cooperative society, the subsidiaries, the associated companies, CEO and his deputy,
		
SOK’s Corporate Management
Team, SOK’s Executive Board and Supervisory Board and their family members.
		
2010
2009
Management salaries and remuneration
1.9
2.0
CEO and SOK’s Corporate Management Team
0.3
0.3
SOK’s Executive Board and Supervisory Board
2.2
2.3
Total
		
		
Management’s pension commitments:
SOK’s Chief Executive Officer, members of the executive board in an emplyment relationship and the
Corporate Management 		
Team are entitled to retire at the age of 60–62.
Related-party loans to the parent cooperative/affiliates as well as associates have been granted for financing normal business operations. Loans have
not been granted to the management of SOK Corporation’s related parties at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009. Nor have conditional
		
items or other commitments
been granted on the behalf of key employees. Persons belonging to management, including their related parties, are
not in a material business		
relationship with SOK Corporation.
		
34. Transactions and balances
with associated companies:
2010
2009
EUR million
47.1
37.2
Sales
245.3
221.1
Purchases
0.3
0.2
Financial income and expenses
24.8
3.6
Trade and other receivables
90.7
143.5
Loan receivables
3.0
4.0
Loans
15.1
14.2
Trade payables and other liabilities
		
		
34. Contingent liabilities
		
2010
2009
EUR million
		
Pledges given and contingent
liabilities
		
		
Liabilities secured by pledges
41.3
23.4
Loans from financial institutions
		14.2
Carrying amount of pledged
shares
41.8
23.5
Carrying amount of pledged goods
2.0
2.0
Other liabilities
2.2
2.2
Carrying amount of pledged shares
44.0
39.9
Pledges given as security, total
		
		
Other liabilities
0.1
1.9
Pledges
0.4
1.0
Mortgages
12.0
30.8
Guarantees
12.4
33.7
Total
		
Security given on behalf		
of others
47.5
50.0
Guarantees for liabilities of partly owned enterprises
10.3
10.7
Guarantees for liabilities of cooperative enterprises
0.2
0.2
Guarantees for others’ liabilities
58.0
60.9
Total
		
		
Other contingent liabilities
0.2
0.1
Guarantees for liabilities of cooperative enterprises
0.2
0.1
Total
		
		
Other liabilities
Letter of credit liabilities		2.7
0.0
2.7
Total
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The guarantees granted consist
mainly of the guarantees on behalf of the associate company Kauppakeskus Mylly Oy on a loan of
		
EUR 47.5 million and of
counter-obligations on behalf of the Group companies on the total of EUR 9.6 million of bank guarantees granted
to the National Board of		
Customs.
		
In addition, SOK has given letters of comfort for the guarantees granted by SOK-Takaus Oy. The amount of the letters of comfort is
EUR 76.5 million on 31 December 2010 (EUR 84.9 million on 31 December 2009).
In addition, SOK has given a letter of comfort together with St1 Oy on behalf of North European Oil Trade Oy on a EUR 44.9 million
(USD 60 million) overdraft facility.
Other financial liabilities:
The Group is obligated to audit valued added tax depreciations it has made on a property investment if the taxable use of the property decreases
during the auditing period. The maximum amount of the responsibility is EUR 5.9 million (EUR 4.4 million on 31 December 2009).
Other contingent liabilities:
Commitments in accordance with the shareholder agreement to be responsible for the S-Voima Oy commitments and to finance its operations
In accordance with the so-called Mankala principle, the shareholders are responsible for S-Voima Oy’s commitments. This principle states that the
liability for the company’s variable costs is determined based on the energy the shareholder uses. The liability for the company’s fixed costs, also
including loan repayments and interests as well as depreciations, is distributed in proportion to the share series owned by the shareholder. The
company’s series A shares are related to the acquisition of market electricity; series B shares to the acquisition of wind power electricity; and series
C shares to the acquisition of nuclear power electricity.
Furthermore, the shareholders of S-Voima Oy have also agreed in the shareholder agreement on a mutual obligation to finance the company’s
investments in production companies through equity, in which case the liability will by default be distributed by share series in the proportion of
shareholding. The remaining portion of the equity financing liability based on decisions made by SOK’s accounts closing date is estimated at EUR
5.2 million in total. It is estimated that liabilities financing by the company’s shareholders is not needed.
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35. Subsidiaries and associated companies

			
			

Companies owned by SOK Corporation and SOK 31.12.2010

SOK Corporation´s
SOK Corporation´s
SOK´s
sharevoting
shareCountry
holding %
rates %
holding %
			
Group companies
			
Commercial
Finland
100
100
100
SOK Autokauppa Oy
100
100
100
Latvia
A/S Prisma Latvija
Estonia
100
100
100
AS Sokotel
81
81
81
Finland
Hankkija-Maatalous Oy
Finland
100
100
Hiven Oy
Finland
100
100
100
Inex Partners Oy
100
100
100
Finland
Jollas-Opisto Oy
Finland
100
100
100
Meira Nova Oy
Finland
66.7
66.7
Movere Oy
Finland
66
66
66
North European Oil Trade Oy
Russia
100
100
OOO Karelia
Russia
100
100
OOO Real Estate Management
Russia
100
100
OOO Real Estate 1
Russia
100
100
OOO Real Estate 2
Russia
100
100
OOO Otel Plus
Russia
100
100
OOO Prisma
Russia
100
100
1
OOO Sokotel
Estonia
100
100
100
Prisma Peremarket AS
Finland
100
100
100
Rekla Oy
Latvia
100
100
SIA Baltic Feed
Finland
100
100
100
SOK-Holding Oy
Finland
100
100
100
SOK-Invest Oy
Finland
100
100
100
Sokotel Oy
Finland
100
100
99.0
SOK Real Estate Int Oy
Finland
100
100
99.0
SOK Retail Int Oy
Finland
99.9
99.9
99.9
SOK-Takaus Oy
Finland
100
100
100
Suomen Spar Oy
Lithuania
100
100
UAB Baltijos Pasarai
Lithuania
100
100
100
UAB Prisma LT
Finland
100
100
100
S-Verkkopalvelut Oy
			
			
Real-estate companies, 21 companies
Real-estate companies under stock, 3 companies 			
			
Total Group companies, 54 companies
			
			
Participating interest companies
			
Associated companies
Finland
38.6
38.6
38.6
Asunto Oy Kauniaisten Kirkkomäki
Denmark
25
25
25
Coop Trading A/S
Finland
50
50
Finnfrost Oy
Finland
50
50
50
Kauppakeskus Mylly Oy
Finland
31.5
31.5
31.5
Keskuskorttelin Huolto Oy
Finland
21.9
21.9
21.9
Oy Realinvest Ab -Group
Finland
50
50
50
S-Pankki Oy
Finland
50
50
50
S-Asiakaspalvelu Oy
Finland
50
50
Farmit Website Oy
			
			
Total associated companies, 9 companies
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SOK Corporation Key Ratios 2006−2010

					
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
SOK Corporation continuing operations
9 257.7
8 532.1
8 800.2
7 659.0
6 635.7
					
48.8
62.8
48.0
68.5
31.7
Operating profit, EUR million
0.5
0.7
0.5
0.9
0.5
% of revenue
					
41.2
37.1
46.3
57.7
28.3
Profit/loss before taxes, EUR million
0.4
0.4
0.5
0.8
0.4
% of revenue
					
					
SOK Corporation *)
Revenue, EUR million

4.4
3.0
-1.2
8.0
4.6
					
3.6
2.1
1.0
4.8
4.0
Return on investment, %
					
28.9
28.0
13.4
16.7
20.3
Equity ratio, %
					
98.8
103.5
139.3
115.9
204.2
Gross investments in fixed assets, EUR million
1.1
1.2
1.6
1.5
3.1
% of revenue
					
9.3
31.3
40.0
45.6
48.0
Gearing, %
					
					
The average number of the personnel
during
9 514
9 395
9 411
8 921
8 570
the financial year
8 442
8 574
8 365
7 737
7 096
Converted to full-time personnel
					
1 145.5
1 027.8
1 077.0
1 051.0
909.0
Non-interest-bearing liabilities, EUR million
					
					
Key ratios of retail and wholesale business
Return on equity, %

4.4
2.0
-0.3
9.8
3.6
3.6
2.9
7.4
28.9
27.7
27.3
25.6
9.3
31.3
35.4
47.6
					
					
Discontinued operations
		
			
Key ratios of S-Bank **)
0.0
21.3
12.7
9.2
Capital adequacy ratio, %
0.0
2.1
-11.2
-7.2
Return on equity, %
0.0
0.1
-0.4
-0.5
Return on assets, %
					
*)
					
Maan Auto Ltd’s 2010 key ratios are
for the period of 1 Jan−30 April 2010.
Return on equity, %
Return on investment, %
Equity ratio, %
Gearing, %

**)

S-Bank Ltd’s 2009 key ratios are for the period of 1 Jan−30 June 2009.
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5.0
4.1
20.4
51.8

CALCULATION OF KEY RATIOS

Profit/loss after financial items - income taxes
Return on equity, %
=
x 100 %
		 Equity, average
Return on
Profit/loss after financial items + interest and other financial expenses
=
x 100 %
investment, %		 Total assets - non-interest-bearing liabilities - provisions, average
Total equity
Equity ratio, %
=
x 100 %
		 Total assets - advances received
Gross investment
in fixed assets

=

Acquisition costs of subsidiary shares and other fixed assets

Interest-bearing liabilities - Cash and cash equivalents
Gearing, %
x 100 %
=
		 Total equity
The average number
of the personnel during		 The average number of personnel and the number converted to full-time equivalents has been calculated
the financial year		 as the average number of personnel at the end of each quarter (in 2006 at the end of each month).
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Parent Cooperative’s Financial Statement, FAS

				
				
1.1.–31.12.2010		
1.1.–31.12.2009
Note
				
		
6 591.5		
6 191.4
		
15.5		17.8
(1)
				
				
6 347.0		
5 948.5
(2)
65.8
6 412.8
61.8
6 010.3
				
				
(3)
56.5		 55.5
14.0
70.5
12.5
67.9
				
		
4.6		3.8
(4)
				
				
32.1		 37.6
77.5
109.6
66.4
104.1
(5)
				
		
9.5		23.1
				
		
12.5		7.2
(8)
				
		
22.0		30.3
				
		
-9.1		-1.6
(9)
				
		
12.9		28.7
				
-0.5		-0.8
(10) 		
-4.7		-4.2
(11) 		
				
		
7.7		23.7
				

Income statement of SOK, FAS
EUR million
Net turnover
Other operating income
Materials and services
Raw materials and consumables
External services
Personnel costs
Salaries and remuneration
Other personnel costs
Depreciation and impairment
Other operating expenses
Facilities rent
Other expenses
Operating profit (loss)
Financial income and expenses (+/-)
Profit before extraordinary items
Extraordinary items (+/-)
Profit before appropriations and taxes
Appropriations (+/-)
Income taxes (+/-)
Profit for the financial year
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Balance sheet of SOK, FAS
ASSETS EUR million

Note

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Shares in Group companies
Other investments

(12)
(12)
(13)
(13)

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Long-term receivables
Short-term receivables
Securities
Cash in hand and at bank

(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)

LIABILITIES EUR million
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Cooperative capital
Supplementary cooperative capital
Fair value reserve
Legal reserve
Supervisory Board’s disposal fund
Profit for the previous financial years
Profit for the financial year

(18)

ACCUMULATED APPROPRIATIONS
PROVISIONS

(19)
(20)

LIABILITIES
Long-term liabilities
Short-term liabilities

(21)
(22)
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31.12.2010		31.12.2009
				
27.7		 18.4
6.9		
8.0
287.9		 314.1
458.7
781.1
438.3
778.8
				
0.1		
0.2
0.0		
0.9
593.9		 630.3
30.0		
0.0
196.3
820.3
217.7
849.1
				
1 601.4		
1 627.8
		
				
31.12.2010		31.12.2009
				
				
139.6		 133.4
12.8		 14.8
0.0		 -5.4
18.5		 18.5
0.1		
0.0
428.0		 404.7
7.7
606.6
23.7
589.8
				
2.4		2.0
		
		
2.1		2.6
				
				
36.3		 76.7
954.0
990.3
956.8
1 033.5
				
		
1 601.4		
1 627.8
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1.1.–31.12.2010		1.1.–31.12.2009
EUR million
Note
		
		
BUSINESS OPERATIONS
9.5		 23.1
Operating profit
-11.7		-18.3
Adjustments to operating profit
(1)
65.0		 -36.1
(2)
Change in working capital
62.8		 -31.3
Cash flow from business operations before financing and taxes
			
9.0
Increase (+) / decrease (-) in short-term receivables
		
Change in short-term investments
-11.4		-19.8
Interest paid and other financial expenses
21.7		29.7
Interest received and other financial income
1.8		4.1
Dividends received from business operations
-6.5		
0.7
Direct taxes paid
68.4		 -7.6
Cash flow from business operations
		
		
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENTS
-15.6		-13.6
Acquisition of fixed assets
-13.8		-13.3
Acquisition of shares
6.6		5.5
Sale of fixed assets
58.0		11.5
Sale of shares
-23.3		 18.7
Change in other long-term investments
0.1		0.1
Dividends received from investments
12.0		
8.8
Cash flow from investments
		
		
FINANCING
162.0		 55.9
Increase in long-term loans
-182.5		
Decrease in long-term loans
-49.9		-25.9
Increase (+) / decrease (-) in short-term creditors
4.2		7.0
Increase in cooperative capital and supplementary cooperative capital

Cash flow statement of SOK, FAS

Interest paid on the cooperative capital and supplementary
-0.4		 -10.7
cooperative capital
0.0		0.0
Other decrease in capital and reserves
21.6		11.6
Group contributions received
-26.9		-20.0
Group contributions paid
			
0.0
Liquid funds from merger
-72.0		 17.9
Cash flow from financing
		
8.5		 19.1
Increase (+) / decrease (-) in cash and cash equivalents
		
217.7		198.7
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
226.2		217.7
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
		
		
Adjustments to operating profit
(1)
-15.0		-16.8
Gains (-) and losses (+) from the sale of fixed assets
4.6		1.6
Depreciation and value adjustments
-1.2		-3.1
Income and expenses which do not involve payment
-11.7		-18.3
		
Change in working capital
(2)
18.4		 -44.8
Change in trade receivables
0.0		0.1
Change in inventories
46.5		
8.6
Change in short-term interest-free creditors
65.0		 -36.1
		
		
The change in cash and cash equivalents differs from the
change in cash and cash equivalents calculated from the change in the balance sheet such
that measurement gains and losses due to the measurement at fair value of marketable securities have been eliminated from the change in cash and
cash equivalents in the cash flow statement
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Notes to SOK’s financial statements

Accounting policies
The financial statements of Suomen Osuuskauppojen Keskuskunta
(SOK) have been prepared in accordance with the Finnish Accounting Standards (FAS).
Foreign currency transactions and
derivative contracts
Transactions in foreign currency are recognised at the exchange
rate on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency denominated
receivables and liabilities at the end of the financial year are translated into euro at the exchange rate quoted by the European Central Bank on the closing day of the financial year, and the exchange
rate differences are recognised through profit and loss.
Exchange rate differences arising from the translation of trade
receivables are recognised in revenue, and exchange rate differences arising from the translation of trade payables are recognised
in expenses. The exchange gains and losses of receivables belonging to other financial items in the balance sheet are recognised in
financial income and, correspondingly, those belonging to other
liabilities, in financial expenses.
Derivative contracts are primarily used for hedging purposes,
but hedge accounting has not been applied to them, with the
exception of electricity derivatives. In accounting, all except electricity derivatives have been measured at fair value, and changes in
the value have been recognised through profit and loss.
Realised and non-realised gains and losses from derivative contracts made in order to hedge sales and trade receivables are recognised in sales income. Realised and non-realised gains and losses
from derivative contracts made in order to hedge other receivables
are recognised in financial income. Realised and non-realised
gains and losses from derivative contracts made in order to hedge
purchases, trade payables, and inventory value are recognised in
purchases. Gains and losses from derivatives made in order to
hedge other liabilities are recognised in financial expenses.
Hedge accounting has been applied to electricity derivatives,
and income and expenses from electricity derivatives have been
matched against the corresponding opposite items generated by
the hedged item. Hedge accounting was discontinued on 1 June
2010, when the majority of the electricity derivatives were transferred to S-Voima Oy. In connection with this, some electricity derivatives remained with SOK and were transferred to S-Voima Oy
through contracts with opposite items. The electricity derivatives
are measured at fair value but their net effect on earnings is zero.
SOK Corporation’s cash pool
For SOK’s subsidiaries, the funds in accounts within bank cash
pool systems in Finland are included under ‘Cash in hand and
at bank’ and as other current liabilities to Group companies in
SOK’s reporting. The funds of SOK subsidiaries connected to the
cash pools of foreign banks are not presented as SOK’s assets or
liabilities.
Revenue and revenue recognition
Sales are recognised as revenue when goods are delivered or services are rendered. In calculating revenue, sales income is stated less
items such as discounts granted, value added tax, and exchange
differences on sales.
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Other operating income
The items recognised in other operating income are gains on the
sale of property, plant and equipment, capital gains on divestments, and income other than revenue recognised from the
ordinary sale of goods and services.
Pension arrangements
Statutory and voluntary pension security for SOK Corporation’s
employees is arranged through external pension insurance companies.
Lease payments
In the income statement, lease payments of facilities are presented
in facilities rent, and other lease payments are presented in other
operating expenses.
Future expenses and losses
Future expenses and losses which represent a commitment for
the company or which are likely to materialise are recognised as
expenses under the relevant expense item. In the balance sheet,
these cost provisions are presented as ‘Compulsory provisions’ or
‘Accruals and deferred income’ if their exact amount and the time
they were incurred are known.
Extraordinary items
Extraordinary items are income and expenses that arise from
events or transactions that are distinct from ordinary operations
and are non-recurring and immaterial, such as group contributions and considerable amounts connected with acquisitions or
divestments.
Income taxes
Income taxes include current taxes for the financial period and
adjustments of prior year taxes.
A deferred tax liability or tax asset is not recognised in the
income statements and balance sheets of SOK and its subsidiaries.
Material deferred tax liabilities or tax assets are disclosed in the
Notes to the Financial Statements of the company in question in
connection with the note on income taxes.
Non-current assets and depreciations
In the balance sheet, non-current assets have been valued at cost
less accumulated depreciation according to plan.
Depreciation according to plan has been calculated on the
original acquisition cost of the non-current asset in accordance
with an advance schedule and on a straight line basis. Depreciation
has been calculated from the beginning of the month after the asset was placed in use. Depreciation periods are based on estimated
economic lives. Revaluations are not included in the balance sheet
values of non-current assets.
Depreciation periods according to plan are:

Years
20–35
Buildings
5–15
Lightweight structures and equipment in buildings
Machinery and equipment
3–10
Motor vehicles and servers
3–5
Other tangible and intangible assets
within the limits
permitted by tax law

Depreciation according to plan and the change in the depreciation
difference together correspond to depreciation under the Business
Taxation Act. The change in the depreciation difference is presented in ‘Appropriations’ in the income statement. The cumulative difference is presented in the balance sheet as ‘Accumulated
appropriations’.
Publicly traded securities that are recognised in investments
under non-current assets are measured at fair value in accordance
with the alternative method permitted under the Accounting Act,
Chapter 5, Section 2a.
Current assets
Financial instruments have been measured at fair value in compliance with the alternative method permitted under the Accounting
Act, Chapter 5, Section 2a. Financial instruments are classified as
held-for-trading financial assets and liabilities, available-for-sale financial assets, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables,
as well as other financial assets and liabilities. A change in the fair
value of financial assets and liabilities held for trading is recognised
in the income statement. A change in the fair value of availablefor-sale financial assets is recognised in the fair value reserve under
equity. Any impairment loss is, however, immediately recognised
through profit and loss with a corresponding adjustment of the
fair value reserve. Held-to-maturity financial assets, loans and
receivables and other financial liabilities are valued at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Any impairment loss is
recognised through profit and loss and the accrual of interest is
continued on the lowered balance at the original effective interest
rate of the contract.
Inventories are recognised in the balance sheet in accordance
with the lowest value principle at the amount of the variable costs
of the purchase or the probable repurchase price or the selling
price. The value of inventories has been determined using the
FIFO method or the weighted average method.

		
2010
2009
		
1. Other operating income
		
Profits on sale of fixed assets
15.0
16.9
Other operating income
0.4
0.9
Total
15.5
17.8
		
2. Raw materials and consumables
		
Purchases during the financial year
6 347.0 5 948.4
Change in inventories (+/-)
0.0
0.1
Total
6 347.0 5 948.5
		
3. Personnel costs
		
Salaries and remuneration
56.5
55.5
Pension costs
11.2
10.2
Other personnel expenses
2.8
2.3
Total
70.5
67.9
		
Average number of personnel
1178
1141
		
The average number of personnel has been calculated as
the average number of personnel
at the end of each quarter.
		
EUR million

Salaries and remuneration:
		
CEO and members of the Executive Board
0.7
0.9
Members of the Supervisory Board
0.2
0.2
		
Management pension liabilities:
		
Management’s pension commitments:
SOK’s Chief Executive
		
Officer and the Corporate		
Management Team are entitled
to retire at the age of 60–62.
		
		
4. Depreciation and impairment
Depreciation according to plan
4.6
3.8
Total
4.6
3.8
		
The itemised specifications		
of the change in depreciation and
accelerated depreciation are
included under fixed assets and
		
accumulated appropriations
in the notes to the balance sheet.
		

5. Other operating expenses
		
Voluntary indirect employee expenses
3.0
2.8
Property, equipment and supplies expenses
59.8
49.7
Marketing, administration and other operating
expenses
14.8
14.0
Total
77.5
66.4
		
Rents for business premises 		
are presented as a separate item in the
income statement.
		
		
6. Auditor’s fees
Audit expenses
0.6
0.5
Auditors’ statements
		0.0
Tax services
		0.0
Other services
0.0
0.0
Total
0.6
0.6
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EUR million

2010

2009

EUR million

2010

2009

7. Increase (-) / decrease (+) in provisions for liabilities and
NOTES CONCERNING		
ASSETS IN THE BALANCE SHEET
		
charges
		
12. Intangible and tangible
assets
		
0.5
3.5
Decreases related to partially vacant premises
0.5
3.5
Total
Intangible assets
		
8. Financial income and expenses
Intangible rights
		
1.8
4.1
Dividend income from group companies
Acquisition cost at 1 Jan
20.9
15.2
0.1
0.1
Dividend income from others
Increases
1.6
1.7
Total dividend income from investments
Decreases
-0.3
-0.7
1.9
4.2
in non-current assets
Transfers
1.3
4.7
		
Acquisition cost at 31 Dec
23.5
20.9
Interest income from other non-current assets
		
11.5
19.3
From group companies
Accumulated amortisation at 1 Jan
13.5
11.6
0.3
0.1
From others
Accumulated amortisation on decreases
		
and transfers
-0.2
-0.7
		
Other interest and financial
income
Amortisation for the financial year
2.9
2.6
13.4
3.1
From group companies
Accumulated amortisation at 31 Dec
16.1
13.5
-12.5
-9.5
From others
		
12.6
13.0
Total interest and financial income
Book value at 31 Dec
7.4
7.4
		
		
Impairment of investments in
Other long-term expenditure
		
0.0
-2.2
non-current assets
Acquisition cost at 1 Jan
7.1
3.6
		
Increases
0.2
0.2
		
Interest and other financial
expenses
Decreases
		0.0
1.6
3.4
To group companies
Transfers
6.0
3.3
0.5
8.8
To others
Acquisition cost at 31 Dec
13.3
7.1
2.1
12.2
Total interest and other financial expenses
		
		
Accumulated amortisation at 1 Jan
2.3
2.0
12.5
7.2
Total financial income and expenses
Accumulated amortisation 		0.0
on decreases and transfers
		
Amortisation for the financial year
0.6
0.3
9. Extraordinary items 		
Accumulated amortisation at 31 Dec
2.9
2.3
Extraordinary income 		
		
12.1
21.6
Group contributions received
Book value at 31 Dec
10.3
4.8
		3.7
Merger profit
		
12.1
25.3
Total
Advance payments of intangible
assets
		
		
Acquisition cost at 1 Jan
6.1
5.8
Extraordinary expenses 		
Increases
12.2
8.7
21.2
26.9
Group contributions given
Decreases
-1.1
-0.4
21.2
26.9
Total
Transfers
-7.2
-8.0
		
Book value at 31 Dec
10.0
6.1
-9.1
-1.6
Total extraordinary items
		
		
Intangible assets total
27.7
18.4
		
10. Appropriations
		
Increase (-) / decrease (+) in accelerated
Property, plant and equipment
		
-0.5
-0.8
depreciation
		
		
Land and water areas 		
		
11. Income taxes
Acquisition cost at 1 Jan
4.3
4.3
Income taxes on ordinary operations
Decreases
-1.3
0.0
4.7
5.5
for the financial year (+/-)
Acquisition cost at 31 Dec
3.0
4.3
0.0
Income taxes for the previous financial years (+/-) 2.4
		
Income taxes on extraordinary items for the
Accumulated impairment at 1 Jan
0.9
0.9
-2.4
-1.4
financial year (+/-)
Accumulated depreciation on decreases
4.7
4.2
Total
and transfers
-0.5
		
Accumulated impairment at 31 Dec
0.4
0.9
		
		
Book value at 31 Dec
2.6
3.4
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EUR million

		
2010
2009
EUR million

2010

2009

13.4
15.6
Buildings and structures
Accumulated impairment at 1 Jan
		-2.2
9.7
9.7
Acquisition cost at 1 Jan
Impairment
13.4
13.4
-2.7
0.0
Decreases
Accumulated impairment at 31 Dec
0.0
Transfers
		
7.0
9.7
Acquisition cost at 31 Dec
Book value at 31 Dec
287.9
314.1
		
		
8.2
8.0
Accumulated depreciation at 1 Jan
Shares in Group companies total
287.9
314.1
-2.6
0.0
Accumulated depreciation on decreases
		
and transfers
Capital loans from Group		
companies
0.2
0.2
Depreciation for the financial year
Amount at 1 Jan
1.5
3.1
5.8
8.2
Accumulated depreciation at 31 Dec
Decreases
		-1.6
		
Amount at 31 Dec
1.5
1.5
1.2
1.5
Book value at 31 Dec
		
		
Book value at 31 Dec
1.5
1.5
		
Machinery and equipment
		
8.4
7.7
Acquisition cost at 1 Jan
Receivables from Group companies
		
0.9
0.8
Increases
Amount at 1 Jan
324.1
356.4
-0.3
-0.1
Decreases
Increases
134.0
162.7
0.2
Transfers
Decreases
-110.5
-195.0
9.2
8.4
Acquisition cost at 31 Dec
Amount at 31 Dec
347.7
324.1
		
		
6.1
5.6
Accumulated depreciation at 1 Jan
Participations in participating
interest companies
		
Accumulated depreciation on decreases
Acquisition cost at 1 Jan
97.5
17.0
-0.3
-0.1
and transfers
Increases
0.5
1.0
0.8
0.7
Depreciation for the financial year
Decreases
-2.8
0.0
6.7
6.1
Accumulated depreciation at 31 Dec
Transfers
		79.5
		
Acquisition cost at 31 Dec
95.2
97.5
2.5
2.3
Book value at 31 Dec
		
		
Accumulated impairment at 1 Jan
8.6
8.6
		
Other tangible assets
Accumulated impairment at 31 Dec
8.6
8.6
0.5
0.5
Acquisition cost at 1 Jan
		
0.0
0.0
Increases
Book value at 31 Dec
86.5
88.9
0.6
0.5
Acquisition cost at 31 Dec
		
		
Receivables from participating interest companies
0.0
0.0
Accumulated depreciation at 1 Jan
Amount at 1 Jan
20.0
0.0
0.0
Accumulated depreciation at 31 Dec
Increases
		20.0
		
Amount at 31 Dec
20.0
20.0
0.5
0.5
Book value at 31 Dec
		
		
Receivables from participating interest
Construction in progress		
and advance payments
companies, total
20.0
20.0
0.4
0.1
Acquisition cost at 1 Jan
		
0.7
2.1
Increases
Other shares and participations
		
-0.8
-1.9
Decreases
Acquisition cost at 1 Jan
3.1
3.7
-0.2
Transfers
Increases
0.3
0.4
0.0
0.4
Acquisition cost at 31 Dec
Decreases
-1.1
-1.0
		
Acquisition cost at 31 Dec
2.2
3.1
6.9
8.0
Tangible assets total
		
Accumulated impairment at 1 Jan
0.0
0.0
		
13. Investments
Accumulated impairment on decreases and transfers 0.0
0.0
Impairment
0.0
0.0
Shares in Group companies
Accumulated impairment at 31 Dec
0.0
0.0
327.5
416.4
Acquisition cost at 1 Jan
		
13.1
11.9
Increases
Book value at 31 Dec
2.2
3.1
-39.3
-21.3
Decreases
		-79.5
Transfers
301.3
327.5
Acquisition cost at 31 Dec
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EUR million

		
2010
2009
EUR million

		
2010
2009

Capital loans from others
NOTES CONCERNING LIABILITIES IN THE BALANCE
0.8
0.8
Amount at 1 Jan
SHEET
-0.1
0.0
Decreases
0.7
0.8
Amount at 31 Dec
18. Capital and reserves
		
Cooperative capital at 1 Jan
133.4
122.5
0.0
0.0
Accumulated value adjustments at 1 Jan
Increase
6.2
10.9
0.0
0.0
Accumulated value adjustments at 31 Dec
Cooperative capital at 31 Dec
139.6
133.4
		
		
0.7
0.8
Book value at 31 Dec
Cooperative capital consists 		
of the cooperative payments which the
		
cooperative societies make to		
Suomen Osuuskauppojen Keskus746.5
752.4
Investments total
osuuskunta (SOK) for cooperative shares. The number of a cooperative
		
society’s shares is determined on the basis of the cooperative society’s
		
14. Inventories
total membership and annual purchases. The amount of cooperative
0.1
0.2
Other inventories
payments as allowed by the SOK Statutes that are unpaid and not
0.1
0.2
Total
fallen due was EUR 4.4 million on 31 December 2010 (EUR 6.2
		
million unpaid cooperative payments on 31 December 2009).
15. Long-term receivables		
0.0
0.0
Loan receivables
Supplementary cooperative capital at 1 Jan
14.8
14.8
		0.9
Prepayments and accrued income
Decreases
2.0
0.0
0.9
Total long-term receivables
Supplementary cooperative capital at 31 Dec
12.8
14.8
		
		
		
16. Short-term receivables
The supplementary cooperative
capital consists of voluntary
		
		
investments which the cooperative societies make to Suomen
493.1
433.8
Trade receivables
Osuuskauppojen Keskusosuuskunta (SOK). The cooperative societies
		
have the right to a return on their supplementary cooperative capital
		
Receivables from group companies
contributions in the manner and subject to the conditions specified
4.3
9.0
Trade receivables
in the Cooperative Societies Act and SOK’s statutes.
42.6
86.0
Loan receivables
12.1
21.6
Other receivables
Fair value reserve at 1 Jan
-5.4
-12.7
23.6
31.8
Prepayments and accrued income
Change in value 1)
5.4
7.2
82.5
148.3
Total
Fair value reserve at 31 Dec
0.0
-5.4
		
		
1)
Receivables from participating interest companies
		
Deferred taxes or tax assets
are not as a rule presented in the income
1.2
0.3
Trade receivables
		
statements and balance sheets
of SOK`s subsidiaries but only as a
0.1
0.0
Prepayments and accrued income
Note to the Financial Statements if the item is material in amount.
1.3
0.4
Total
		
Legal reserve at 1 Jan
18.5
18.5
		0.0
Loan receivables
Legal reserve at 31 Dec
18.5
18.5
0.1
0.1
Other receivables
		
17.0
47.6
Prepayments and accrued income
Supervisory Board’s disposal fund at 1 Jan
0.0
0.1
593.9
630.3
Total short-term receivables
Decrease
0.0
0.0
		
Supervisory Board’s disposal fund at 31 Dec.
0.1
0.0
		
Specification of prepayments
and accrued income
		
13.4
24.5
Financial items
Profit brought forward at 1 Jan
428.5
415.4
27.2
55.8
Other
Transfer to Supervisory Board’s disposal fund
-0.1
40.6
80.3
Total prepayments and accrued income
Interest on cooperative capital and supplementary
		
cooperative capital
-0.4
-10.7
		
17. Securities
Profit brought forward at 31 Dec
428.0
404.7
30.0
0.0
Money market securities
Profit for the financial year
7.7
23.7
30.0
0.0
Total
Total capital and reserves
606.6
589.8
		
		
		
A fair value specification by
financial instrument group is
Distributable funds at 31		
Dec
given in a separate table. 		
Profit for the previous financial years
428.0
404.7
Profit for the financial year
7.7
23.7
Total
435.7
428.5
		
19. Accumulated appropriations
		
Accelerated depreciation
Intangible rights
1.4
1.5
Other capitalised expenditure
1.1
0.5
Buildings and constructions
-0.1
-0.1
Machinery and equipment
0.1
0.1
Total
2.4
2.0
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EUR million
20. Provisions

		
		
2010
2009
EUR million
2010
2009
		
		
Other contingent liabilities
		

2.1
2.6
Repurchasing liabilities:
2.1
2.6
Other repurchasing liabilities
13.9
13.9
		
Total
13.9
13.9
21. Long-term liabilities 		
		
		
Leasing liabilities:
		
0.0
20.2
Loans from financial institutions
Payable next year
3.1
3.3
36.3
56.4
Other long-term creditors
Payable in more than one year
3.0
3.2
36.3
76.7
Total long-term creditors
Total
6.0
6.5
		
		
22. Short-term liabilities		
In addition, SOK has given
letters of comfort for the guarantees
		
		
granted by SOK-Takaus Oy.
The amount of the letters of comfort
		
0.2
1.2
Loans from financial institutions
is EUR 76.5 million on 31		
December 2010 (EUR 84.9 million on
5.7
Pension loans
31 December 2009).
		
0.0
0.4
Advances received
182.0
182.0
Trade payables
In addition, SOK has given a letter of comfort together with
		
St1 Oy on behalf of North European Oil Trade Oy on a
		
Liabilities to group companies
EUR 44.9 million (USD 60 million) overdraft facility.
321.9
261.9
Trade payables
306.6
326.8
Other short-term liabilities
Other financial liabilities:
7.0
2.7
Accruals and deferred income
The Group is obligated to audit valued added tax depreciations
635.5
591.4
Total
it has made on a property investment if the taxable use of the
		
property decreases during the auditing period. The maximum
Amounts owed to participating interest companies
amount of the responsibility is EUR 1.9 million (EUR 0.7 million
0.1
0.1
Trade payables
on 31 December 2009).
		0.0
Accruals and deferred income
Other short-term liabilities		4.0
Other contingent liabilities:
0.1
4.1
Total
Commitments in accordance with the shareholder agreement to be
		
responsible for the S-Voima Oy commitments and to finance its
86.8
104.8
Other short-term liabilities
operations.
43.6
73.0
Accruals and deferred income
954.0
956.8
Total short-term liabilities
In accordance with the so-called Mankala principle, the
		
shareholders are responsible for S-Voima Oy’s commitments. This
Specification of accruals 		
and deferred income
principle states that the liability for the company’s variable costs is
14.5
15.0
Personnel costs
determined based on the energy the shareholder uses. The liability
12.6
23.1
Financial items
for the company’s fixed costs, also including loan repayments and
23.5
37.6
Other
interests as well as depreciations, is distributed in proportion to
50.7
75.7
Total accruals and deferred income
the share series owned by the shareholder. The company’s series
		
A shares are related to the acquisition of market electricity; series
		
SECURED ASSETS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
B shares to the acquisition of wind power electricity; and series
		
C shares to the acquisition of nuclear power electricity.
23. Contingent liabilities		
		
Furthermore, the shareholders of S-Voima Oy have also agreed in
		
Pledges and contingent liabilities
the shareholder agreement on a mutual obligation to finance the
		
company’s investments in production companies through equity,
Loans secured by pledges		
in which case the liability will by default be distributed by share
2.0
2.0
Other creditors
series in the proportion of shareholding. The remaining portion
2.2
2.2
Book value of pledged shares
of the equity financing liability based on decisions made by SOK’s
2.2
2.2
Total pledges given as security
accounts closing date is estimated at EUR 5.2 million in total. It is
		
estimated that liabilities financing by the company’s shareholders
Other security given
is not needed.
		1.9
Pledges
		20.0
Guarantees
		21.9
Total
		
Security given on behalf of Group companies
282.9
290.0
Guarantees
		
Security given on behalf of others’ liabilities
0.2
0.2
Guarantees given on behalf of others’ liabilities
0.2
0.2
Total
Partially vacant premises
Total
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Executive Board’s Proposal for the Distribution
of SOK’s Profit for the Year

Profit indicated in the income statement
Profit for the previous financial years
Total

7 694 024.07 €
428 005 322.44 €
435 699 346.51 €

The Executive Board proposes that the profit for the financial
year of EUR 7 694 024.07 be used as follows:
− paid as interest on the supplementary cooperative capital
− left in the retained earnings account

323 389.86 €
7 370 634.21 €

Providing that the Cooperative Meeting approves
the above proposal, SOK’s capital and reserves will be:
Cooperative capital
Supplementary cooperative capital
Legal reserve
Supervisory Board’s disposal fund
Profit for the previous financial years
Total

139 592 000.00 €
12 750 000.00 €
18 473 154.85 €
78 634.97 €
435 375 956.65 €
606 269 746.47 €

Helsinki, 17 February 2011

Kuisma Niemelä

Taavi Heikkilä

Arttu Laine
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Esko Jääskeläinen

Harri Koponen

Antti Määttä

Matti Niemi

Auditor’s report

To the members of Suomen Osuuskauppojen
Keskuskunta
We have audited the accounting records, the financial statements,
the report of the Board of Directors, and the administration of
Suomen Osuuskauppojen Keskuskunta for the financial period
1.1.–31.12.2010. The financial statements comprise the consolidated statement of financial position, income statement, statement
of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, as well as the cooperative’s balance sheet, income statement, cash flow statement and notes to the financial statements.
Responsibility of the Board of Directors and
the Managing Director
The Board of Directors and the Managing Director are responsible
for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU, as well as for
the preparation of financial statements and the report of the Board
of Directors that give a true and fair view in accordance with the
laws and regulations governing the preparation of the financial
statements and the report of the Board of Directors in Finland.
The Board of Directors is responsible for the appropriate arrangement of the control of the cooperative’s accounts and finances,
and the Managing Director shall see to it that the accounts of the
cooperative are in compliance with the law and that its financial
affairs have been arranged in a reliable manner.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements, on the consolidated financial statements and on the report
of the Board of Directors based on our audit. The Auditing Act requires that we comply with the requirements of professional ethics.
We conducted our audit in accordance with good auditing practice
in Finland. Good auditing practice requires that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors are
free from material misstatement, and whether the members of the

Supervisory Board and the Board of Directors as well as the Managing Director of the cooperative are guilty of an act or negligence
which may result in liability in damages towards the cooperative or
violated the Cooperative Societies Act or cooperative by-laws.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements and report of the Board of Directors that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the cooperative’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements and the report of the Board of Directors.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion on the consolidated financial statements
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows of the group in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU.
Opinion on the cooperative’s financial statements
and the report of the Board of Directors
In our opinion, the financial statements and the report of the
Board of Directors give a true and fair view of both the consolidated and the cooperative’s financial performance and financial
position in accordance with the laws and regulations governing
the preparation of the financial statements and the report of the
Board of Directors in Finland. The information in the report of
the Board of Directors is consistent with the information in the
financial statements.

Helsinki 10 March, 2011
Tomi Englund
Authorized Public Accountant
Juhani Heiskanen
Authorized Public Accountant

Tapani Rotola-Pukkila
Authorized Public Accountant
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Statement of the Supervisory Board

In accordance with Item 2, Paragraph 1 of Section 13 of the
Statutes of Suomen Osuuskauppojen Keskuskunta SOK, the Supervisory Board has today examined the financial statements and
consolidated financial statements prepared by the Executive Board
for the 2010 financial year and acquainted itself with the Auditors’
Report.
The Supervisory Board proposes as its statement to the Annual
Cooperative Meeting that the financial statements and consolidated financial statements be adopted and that the Executive Board’s
proposal concerning the profit for the financial year and shareholders’ equity be approved.

The members of the Supervisory Board due to resign are Jorma
Bergholm, Heikki Ikonen, Maija-Liisa Lindqvist, Sinikka Kelhä,
Jouko Pihlajamaa, Timo Sonninen and Timo Mäki-Ullakko.
In addition, Esko Hakala, Matti Vanto and Hanna Valtari have
tendered their resignations from membership of the Supervisory
Board.
In place of the above-listed persons, it is proposed that at the
Annual Cooperative Meeting, a corresponding number of persons
be elected for the next three-year term of office.

Helsinki, 25 March 2011
SUOMEN OSUUSKAUPPOJEN
KESKUSKUNTA
For the Supervisory Board
Otto Mikkonen
Chairman

Seppo Kuitunen
Secretary
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